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MR. MOHAMMED HARIRI - Chairman of the Board
Mohammed Hariri is the Chairman – General Manager of GroupMed sal
(Holding), IRAD Investment Sal Holding, Al Mal Investment Sal Holding,
SaudiMed Investment Company, the Bank, Méditerranée Investment Bank
SAL and Saudi Lebanese Bank SAL. He is also Senior Vice-President and
General Secretary of the Board of Directors of Saudi Oger Ltd. He is in
charge of investments and transactions on behalf of Saudi Oger Ltd. and
its associates. Mr. Hariri is the Chairman of Oger Telecom, AVEA Iletisim
Hizmelteri (AVEA), Turk Telekom A.S. and Ojer Telekomunikasyon (in
Turkey) and serves on the boards of directors of various companies
including 3C Telecommunications (in South Africa), Medgulf Holding sal,
Oger International S.A. and Entreprise de Travaux Internationaux (ETI). Mr.
Hariri is also a board member of Arab Bank PLC - Jordan.

GROUPMED SAL HOLDING - Members

The principal shareholder of the Bank.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS - Members
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MRS. NAZEK AUDI HARIRI - Member
Mrs. Hariri, the wife of H.E late Prime Minister, Mr. Rafic Hariri, is a board
member of GroupMed S.A.L. (Holding) and Arab Bank plc - Jordan. She
is also the President of the Rafic Hariri Foundation and several other
humanitarian, cultural and educational institutions in the Lebanese
Republic and the Gulf region. She is the First Ambassador of the
International Osteoporosis Foundation, as well as President of this
Foundation's 206-A Bone Fund.

MR. BASILE YARED, ESQ - Member
Mr. Yared is an attorney at law, with law offices in Beirut. He is a Board
Member of GroupMed S.A.L. (Holding), The Lebanese Company for the
Development and Reconstruction of the Beirut Central District S.A.L.
(Solidere), Medgulf, Saudi Oger Ltd. ,Oger International and
Méditerranée Investment Bank S.A.L and Turk Telecom

MR. NEMEH SABBAGH - Member
Mr. Nemeh Sabbagh is Executive General Manager and Board member
of BankMed and its banking subsidiaries. He is also Chairman of
Turkland Bank (T-Bank) in Turkey, Board member of Oger Telecom (in
Dubai), The Mediterranean and Gulf Insurance and Reinsurance Co. (in
Saudi Arabia), the Mediterranean and Gulf Insurance Co. P.L.C.-Jordan,
SaudiMed Investment Company (in Saudi Arabia) and Chairman of Med
Securities Investment Company (in Lebanon). Previously he was
Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Arab National Bank (in
Saudi Arabia).

MR. USAMA MIKDASHI - Member
Mr. Mikdashi is a former Managing Director of Citigroup, Corporate and
Investment Banking-Risk Management for Europe, Middle East and Africa.
Mr. Mikdashi spent his entire career with Citibank and Citigroup working in
many countries. He held senior responsibilities in the areas of corporate
lending, risk management, operations, project finance and general management. Mr. Mikdashi serves as a non executive director on a number of
business entities and in several non-profit organizations. Mr. Mikdashi
holds a BBA and an MBA from the American University of Beirut.

MR. MAROUN ASMAR - Member
Mr. Asmar is the Advisor of the Management Committee at BankMed.
He is also the Chairman General Manager of MIB S.A.L. (Holding).
He is the former Dean of the Faculty of Engineering at Saint Joseph
University. Mr. Asmar served as the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of Electricité du Liban.
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2008 has marked the opening of a new chapter in Lebanon with the election of a new President and a return to the proper
functioning of institutions. But what was noteworthy after all, was the impressive economic performance which was
achieved even under very difficult circumstances. Final official figures now show that the Lebanese economy grew by an
impressive 7.5% in real terms during 2007. Furthermore, economic indicators point that growth in 2008 exceeded 8% in
real terms, an all time record. This was achieved, among other things, through strong capital inflows by the large
Lebanese expatriate community as well as Arab investors and tourists. These figures are very telling in their reflection of
the great potential of Lebanon.

Equally impressive, were the results achieved by the domestic banking sector, especially in light of the global financial crisis
and its implications on most local banking sectors around the world. Assets of the domestic banks increased by 14.6%,
while customer deposits were also up by 15.6 % over the year to reach $94.3 billion and $77.8 billion respectively. Strong
remittances, which topped $6 billion in 2008, constituting over a quarter of GDP, are among the highest in the world. The
international financial crisis which turned into a global economic crisis and caused a significant loss of confidence and a
breakdown of the intermediation process at the global level, fortunately did not hit the Lebanese banks. With the ratio of
private sector loans-to-customer’s deposits around 32% and a solid profitability for the year 2008; banks in Lebanon were
among the outliers in the world in terms of their liquidity and their profitability, having benefited from a strong regulatory
framework and a deep rooted conservative banking culture.
At BankMed, 2008 was a veritable leap forward. The labor of restructuring, reorganization, and re-branding bore fruit. The
progress that was achieved on the retail and corporate fronts, and the achievements in investment, hedging and brokerage
services were all translated into the bottom line, as profits recorded a 74% growth to reach US$70.2 million in 2008. An
indispensable component of this success was the fundamental change in the breadth and depth of customer service, which
today constitutes one of the cornerstones of BankMed’s new culture, putting customers’ needs first while using the latest
technology. A valuable addition was made to the Board of Directors in early 2009 through the appointment of a new member
who has extensive international banking experience.
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Now present in five countries, BankMed feels that it has successfully completed an important round of its expansion strategy.
Its commercial banking subsidiary in Turkey, Turkland Bank (T-Bank), is quickly establishing itself as a boutique bank, while
the newly launched SaudiMed Investment Company focuses on providing investment banking services in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia and the Middle East, leveraging on the Group’s strong presence in the region. Meanwhile, BankMed Suisse will
continue to focus on providing private banking services mostly to our Middle Eastern clientele through its offices in Geneva.
BankMed also enjoys a presence in Cyprus via a branch in Limassol.
We can state with confidence that in 2008 we strengthened our position as a major player on the domestic banking scene.
This could be confirmed through high quality service delivery across the board, through the use of state-of-the-art technology,
through our customer-driven culture, and last but not least, through a significant improvement in the bottom line. Going
forward we will continue to give our domestic operations the absolute priority, seeking to consolidate our position as one of
Lebanon’s top banks. In implementing this strategy, we will continue to rely on the assets that we value most: the dedication
of the staff, the leadership of management, and most importantly the trust and loyalty of our clients. To all of them, we are
truly grateful.

Mohammed Hariri
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The 2008 figures were a reconfirmation of the validity of the strategy that was developed and executed over the last
period. Building on BankMed’s privileged history as one of Lebanon’s major banking players, a clear, bold, and forward
looking strategy was put in place: we were going to focus more on certain lines of business, we were going to go regional,
and we were going to significantly boost the breadth and depth of customer service and make it one of the cornerstones
of the Bank’s new image and culture. The global financial crisis in 2008 was a challenging time for all banks. At BankMed,
we proactively managed the crisis through reassessing and consistently revisiting the Bank’s overall exposure and
activities.
Our strategy was clear because it defined deliverables and assigned ownership and accountability for the various
initiatives. Our strategy was bold because traditionally, and given its crucial role of rebuilding the country in the wake of
the civil war, BankMed was perceived as the Bank of the large corporate clients that were defining the country’s business
landscape, and not necessarily a retail bank. Our strategy was forward looking because it understood the value of
diversification both horizontally and vertically. Carefully designed and well executed, the strategy is now delivering valueadded to our clients.
The numbers clearly speak for themselves. BankMed’s profits increased by 74% to reach US $70.2 million in 2008,
compared to US $42 million realized in 2007. Specifically, net interest income contributed US$ 175.1million, a growth of
79% over last year, while fees and commissions contributed US $39.1 million, a growth of 46% over last year.
We are conscious that our human resources remain our most valuable asset, and that none of these achievements would
have been possible without their hard work and dedication. Aware that this is an area where our focus should not slow or
slip, we continued to aggressively recruit highly qualified individuals, and indeed new employees joined all the business lines
as well as most support services in 2007 and 2008 in order to maintain our pace of growth. Training courses and seminars
continue to be designed and delivered with a view to keeping our existing staff abreast of the latest developments and
advances in their respective domains.
Investments in infrastructure, in its broadest sense, have gone hand in hand with investments in human capital. Work has
already started on five new branches in North, South and Mount Lebanon, enhancing our reach across the nation even in
remote areas. We also modernized our ATM and Debit cards switch system, allowing additional capacity to support the
growth of cards’ issuance. Adoption of the latest in technology has rendered our internet and phone banking services
highly effective and popular among our customers, and we will continue to upgrade them as needed to provide our client
base with cutting edge customer service.
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Always a market leader in terms of its corporate business, BankMed saw additional success in maintaining and growing
its list of top corporate players in Lebanon, with the core loan portfolio registering annual growth of over 52% in 2008. The
Bank continued to support local companies as well as Lebanese firms operating in the GCC region, closing some major
deals including project and aircraft finance transactions. Meanwhile, the major boost to retail operations is paying off, with
the retail loan portfolio recording strong growth, as new creative products, catering to various clients’ needs were
designed and introduced.
Over the last two years, BankMed has also consolidated its position as a market leader in treasury and investments products,
introducing a strong variety of investment products. While some of these products were customized to meet specific investment
and hedging requests by clients, many were sold to investors at the retail level. Most importantly, most of the products that were
designed and sold by BankMed have allowed investors to take positions on global equity and foreign exchange markets, while
simultaneously protecting clients’ capital. This has turned out to be crucial in a year in which almost all financial markets around the
globe suffered major losses.
Regional expansion, an important element of BankMed’s strategy was enhanced in 2008 with the launch of the SaudiMed
Investment Company, providing investment banking services to our clients in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and in the
Middle East. Meanwhile, BankMed Suisse, our private banking subsidiary operating from Geneva, is in the process of
putting in place a new strategy to enhance its ability to better target high net worth individuals in Lebanon and across the
region. Turkland Bank, our commercial bank in Turkey, has completed the second transition year of the strategy that was
designed upon its acquisition. Finally, our branch in Cyprus is playing an increasingly important role within the Bank.
2008 has surely brought us very close to where we should be. Tough political and security circumstances at home as well
as harsh global economic and financial conditions did not derail us from carrying through the execution of a focused and
well designed plan of action. We trust that the years ahead will see continued progress for BankMed, and to that goal, we
will continue to put our best resources and capabilities to work. The dedication and valuable contribution of all my
colleagues at BankMed remain, as always, the most appreciated.

Nemeh Sabbagh
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Key Financial Information

In billion LL
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In millions US$
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Other Data
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Total Loans in USD Million
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Comissions & Fees in USD Milion
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FRONT ROW

Faten Matar - Advisor, Omar Sultani - Saudi Lebanese Bank, Ameen Bissat - Chief Audit Executive

BACK ROW

Joy Saba - Legal Management, Samir Hammoud - Remedial Management, Aref Mneimne - Legal Advisor, Ahmad Kanaan - Remedial Management

FRONT ROW

Diala Choucair - Marketing & Communication, Lina Jebeile - Office Manager for Chairman General Manager, Khaled Zeidan - MedSecurities

BACK ROW

Zyad Ghosn - Financial Institutions & Trade Finance, Mohammed Ali Beyhum - Advisor, Mazen Soueid - Market & Economic Research
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MANAGEMENT TEAM

FRONT ROW

Antoine Boustany - Operations, Dania Kaakani - Human Resources, Marwan Abiad - Financial Control, Technology & Central Operations,
Fouad Baalbaki - InformationTechnology

BACK ROW

Nabil Zakka - Commercial Credit Risk, Iman Baba - Information Security & Business Continuity, Samir Mouawad - Risk Management,
Mahmoud Kibbi - Administration

FRONT ROW

Hatem Chaarani - Electronic Delivery Channels & Card Products, Muhieddine Fathallah - Consumer Credit Products, Fadi Flaihan - Branch
Network & Retail Liability Products, Mohamad Loutfi - Corporate Banking

BACK ROW

Walid Cheikha - Large Corporate Credit, Adel Jabre - Treasury, Basil Karam - Retail Banking, Fouad Saad - Advisor
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GROUP STR UCTURE
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One of the oldest banking and financial groups
in Lebanon and the region, BankMed was
originally established in 1944 as a credit
institution. Since then, it has grown and
flourished to become one of the country's
largest financial institutions, with assets
constituting 11% of the total of the Lebanese
banking sector.
Its role in financing commercial, industrial, and
contracting activities has contributed to the
growth of these sectors and the resurgence of
the Lebanese economy since 1990. BankMed
is also giving increasing emphasis to
developing its retail banking business and
intends to expand its customer base by
ensuring that its products and services are
competitive, relevant and innovative.
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Turkland Bank (T-Bank)
BankMed teamed up with Arab Bank in acquiring a commercial bank in Turkey, in December 2006 and renamed it
Turkland Bank, or T-Bank. Since 2007, the bank has gone through a period of considerable transformation. This includes
a human resources reorganization in addition to a continued commitment to investment in infrastructure and information
technology.
T-Bank has remained focused on achieving the targeted growth set out at the beginning of the year, while strengthening
its risk management measures and liquidity position. Significantly increasing T-Bank’s balance sheet has been an
important milestone in the Bank’s achievements in 2008, accomplished through a capital injection by T-Bank’s
shareholders totaling YTR 100 million (c/v US$ 65 million), during 2008, which has made T-Bank one of the strongest in
the Turkish sector in terms of capital adequacy.
Looking forward, T-Bank will continue to develop its business amongst the small-to-medium-size enterprises, one of the
fastest-growing and most promising sectors in the increasingly liberalized and open Turkish economy.

SaudiMed Investment Company
Incorporated as a closed joint stock in Saudi Arabia in December 2007 and regulated by the Saudi Capital Market
Authority (CMA), SaudiMed Investment Co. has been an important addition to BankMed’s regional presence, acting as a
financial intermediary offering investment and advisory services in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia since it started operations in the second half of 2008.
This past year was a busy and exciting one for us. Time was spent on attracting and hiring local and regional talents, setting up offices,
systems and operations, all the while instilling an uncompromising business culture that focuses on integrity, transparency, and ethical responsibility. In parallel, SaudiMed’s management and Board members actively explored and initiated strategic relationships with
potential clients in the Saudi and regional markets.

Despite the dramatic changes being witnessed in the regional financial environment, with signs of uncertainty and insecurity
clouding investment planning and decision making, SaudiMed is seeing good growth opportunities going forward. SaudiMed’s
strategic decision to prioritize cautiousness and controlled expansion over rapid growth, early on in its life, has placed the company among the few financial services companies in the region that are able to respond flexibly to the dynamic changes in the
local and regional business environments.
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BankMed Suisse
Offers high net worth individuals a wide range of private banking and asset management services out of Switzerland, the
private banking hub of the world. BankMed Suisse, as well as its Beirut representative office, has been focusing on
attracting new private banking business from the Middle East and the GCC. In 2008 a new range of investment products
was introduced to clients.

BankMed Cyprus
This branch is both near to Lebanon and within the European community providing BankMed with a strategic location from
which to serve international and local customers. Many of our corporate clientele are making use of this conveniently
located facility.
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A Bank for All Institutions
BankMed’s corporate clientele includes names that are recognized among Lebanon’s leaders in business circles
throughout the country and across industries. We provide banking services to around 90% of the top Lebanese groups,
which include trade finance, investment, corporate restructuring and all other financing needs. In addition to the significant
market share in the top tier local corporates, we have also strengthened the capabilities of our syndication desk for the
participation in regional and international syndicated transactions through BankMed’s network of prime financial institutions
active on the debt capital markets.
In addition, we enhanced our Small and Medium Enterprises sector (SME) business, as two dedicated teams have been
established to focus solely on attracting clients from these increasingly important segments of the Lebanese economy.
We also work continuously on diversifying our funding sources and participating in international financing programs that
support the business growth of our customers through access to international and regional financial institutions, including
but not limited to banks, government agencies and investment/development banks. Recently, BankMed signed an
agreement with the European Investment Bank (EIB), to secure further long-term financing on behalf of its SME
customers. This demonstrated the EIB’s confidence in Lebanon’s dynamic, resilient economy and in BankMed’s
increasing activities in the SME sector. BankMed is committed to the development and growth of the Lebanese private
sector and will continue to enhance its role as a conduit to foreign investment into the country.
The needs of corporate clients are serviced on a daily basis, and in close coordination with relationship managers for
trade finance, treasury and correspondent banking needs. Despite the crisis that the world went through last year, not to
mention the challenging moments that Lebanon has witnessed over the past years; we were able to expand and
strengthen our regional and international financial institutions network of correspondent banks which includes more than
70 prime names. This has enabled us to continuously support the growing needs of our customers and our business
model in various areas such as trade finance, correspondent banking, cash management, treasury services, brokerage,
custody, etc. Our strong credit policy and conservative judgment to protect our clientele’s assets and interests have also
been instrumental during the crisis, as we were able to cruise safely through the crisis without impacting the Bank’s dayto-day business or our ability to support our clientele’s needs in international trade, treasury and overseas transactions.
In addition to the aforementioned, BankMed provides investment banking services through its Saudi based, wholly owned
subsidiary, SaudiMed Investment Company. In that context, and in line with the regulators’ decision to allow non-resident
foreign investors access to Saudi public equities through the use of equity SWAP agreements, SaudiMed was among the
first licensed institutions to establish and launch the service to its and BankMed’s global client base. SWAPs allow foreign
counterparties to gain economic exposure to any public stock trading on the Saudi Stock Exchange Tadawul.
We stand properly positioned to offer regional and international clients corporate finance advisory and asset management
services. On the corporate finance side, we have a talented and experienced team that offers a wide range of innovative
and customized financial advisory and financing services and solutions covering debt and equity arranging, M&As,
corporate restructuring, and private placements. On the asset management side, our services include structuring and
marketing a range of local, regional, and international investment funds.
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A Bank for all customers
As one of the largest banks in Lebanon, BankMed has naturally assumed a position as one of the major players in the
consumer business line. Our substantial growth momentum throughout 2008 was sustained by continuously developing
new products and services, a proactive sales strategy, dynamic market presence and multiple delivery channels along
with close monitoring of customer satisfaction and loyalty.
High growth in the Retail customer base was achieved through a proactive approach to attracting clients and the retention
of our existing customers across all delivery channels.
In 2008, BankMed enriched its product offering with several new retail products and aligned existing product programs to
meet the dynamics of market conditions and customer needs. The establishment of new relationships with leading
merchants and car dealers has been facilitated by a solid corporate image and wide network allowing us to break many
barriers to entry.
We firmly believe that high-quality service provision is a cornerstone of our long-term success. In parallel to the new range
of products the establishment of more than 100 standardized service indicators, which are monitored daily, has helped
BankMed Retail to significantly improve the delivery and quality of its services across all delivery channels.
• We have introduced the Mystery shopping program in the Bank's branches to enhance our service delivery standards.
• The Queuing system present at the majority of the Bank's branches was continued in 2008 to facilitate our customers’
banking experience.
• The restructuring of our consumer credit department and implementation of new review procedures has significantly
streamlined the credit approval process.
• A new credit scoring model, customized to the Bank's eligibility and approval criteria, has been applied to all products.
• The implementation of a major project to modernize the Bank's ATM controller and replace it with a state-of-the-art, more
user friendly and larger capacity ATM switch is intended to provide our customers with advanced and more convenient
service.
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To further expand our reach in customer segments and new markets beyond the geographical reach of our branch
network; the retail division has successfully deployed outdoor sales team to deliver BankMed products and services
directly to customers. The launch of MedOnline, our e-banking service, was also undertaken as part of BankMed’s
strategy to expand our customer base and to make our customers’ banking experience both more convenient and more
efficient. Further measures include:
• The significant enhancement of BankMed’s comprehensive internet banking service - MedOnline - which utilizes the latest technology in terms of security protection and offers the full range of internet banking services. The MedPhone and
MedOnline services, introduced to our customers, have shown to offer support and satisfaction particularly to our customers abroad. They will continue to be upgraded to offer a wider spectrum of services and to provide increased customer satisfaction.
BankMed is in the process of implementing a strategy in 2009 that increases our customer reach and grows our deposit
base in Lebanon, this includes the upgrade and revamp of several of our branches, to uplift the BankMed image and
create a more opportune banking experience. Today, our customers can apply for universal services at any of our
conveniently located branches.
In line with the BankMed Retail sales strategy, where proactivity is a cornerstone, an integrated sales process has been
introduced to our branch staff. It begins with identifying prospects, capturing sales activities, and records individual
initiatives/achievements. Last year’s process re-engineering successfully redirected much of the time and energy saved
into sales, and paid off handsomely in 2008. Our sales efforts are supported by the successful "Smile Campaign", which
heightens public perception and recognition of BankMed's Retail image.

A Bank for All investors

Treasury Services
In addition to the traditional Treasury services offered at BankMed, we have been one of the most active players in the
Lebanese market by offering a wide range of innovative investment products to our clientele. Again, 2008 was a
successful year where our customers benefited from our capital guaranteed structured products under very adverse
financial markets.
An integral part of Treasury has been to provide BankMed’s clients with investment products, both at the retail level and
in a customized manner. In 2008 Treasury launched a commodities certificate, offering clients the opportunity to invest in
commodities while enjoying the comfort of having their capital guaranteed at maturity. Credit Linked Notes were also
introduced to clients this year, offering attractive monthly interest payments.
Along with our structured investment products, we have been active in bringing the latest economic and financial updates
to our customers. In this respect, the 2008 Annual Treasury seminar gave clients an overview of a wide range of financial
products and featured a guest speaker from a prime international bank who shed some light on the outlook for the
currency markets in the year ahead. The seminar was attended by over 500 of the BankMed’s corporate and Retail clients
and top executives, who later described it as a great success.
The Treasury Division plays its traditional role by implementing BankMed’s funding strategy in line with the guidance
offered by the Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO). Under the prevailing crisis Treasury has prudently managed the
Bank’s liquidity position to ensure a high level of liquidity. Treasury also supervises the foreign exchange position and
securities portfolio and contributes to the overall profitability of the Bank.
Investments and other asset exposures are continuously monitored and reviewed, and asset allocation has been dynamic
in safeguarding the interests of BankMed’s depositors and stakeholders.
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Brokerage Services
Brokerage is handled by MedSecurities Investment SAL, the brokerage subsidiary arm of BankMed, which is involved in
securities trading as well as in the distribution of both tailor-made and off-the-shelf investment products. These products
are structured with a view to capitalizing on potential changes in global financial trends in ways that benefit the clients
and investors in stocks, currencies or commodities markets.
2008 can well be described as a transformational year for the MedSecurities’ team. It was the year MedSecurities
Investment SAL was established after its successful move from a Division within BankMed to a wholly owned subsidiary.
We have developed an active brokerage business on the local, regional and international markets and the past year has
been one of multiple business, operational and strategic achievements. Despite a very difficult global financial
environment, MedSecurities managed to fully execute its strategy by growing total assets more than four fold and
significantly increasing its customer base by 60%. The internal controls and risk management structure, installed a while
ago, has been particularly instrumental in MedSecurities’ success particularly during the global crisis period and the
extreme volatility in the markets.
The basic strategy has been to leverage the reach of the Bank in providing clients with a product line that is unique and
competitive. Under the prevailing global financial conditions, a prudent policy of controlled leveraging of our customer
portfolios has cushioned the severe market downturn. However, MedSecurities did not shy away from taking some
creative, bold and ultimately lucrative steps. Below is a list of milestones achieved in 2008:
• Following the launch of MedSecurities the new Omega operational system was implemented along with the
configuration of the IT set up; which has significantly improved the way we serve our customers.
• Executing a wide range of cross-trades on local and international fixed income instruments with leading regional and
global institutions.
• Launching several structured notes; which have been positive performers despite the economic downturn.
• MedSecurities played an active role in underwriting a major regional IPO, and was able to raise US$145 million in
subscriptions.
• MedSecurities was also successful in launching and closing two Real Estate private placements and raising significant
funds which exceeded US$150 million for both transactions.
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The success of BankMed’s business lines would not be possible without the backing
of a strong, professional and dedicated team delivering a variety of support functions
ranging from operations to IT, human resources and legal.

Financial Control, Information Technology and Operations
The Financial Control, IT and Operations divisions remain committed to the highest financial and reporting standards,
service excellence, cost efficiency and sound risk management practices which are closely integrated with business
objectives and BankMed’s growth strategy. Our planning process considers both current and future needs and matches
them with best practices and new technology.
Financial Control works closely with other divisions to establish appropriate accounting policies and procedures to ensure
that all the banking activities are properly and timely captured on the Bank’s financial records. This year, continuous
improvement in the data analysis and reporting processes was achieved with the objective of further enhancing prompt
information dissemination to the stakeholders; including investors, management, internal business segments and
regulators. With the objective of streamlining the budget cycle, which translates the overall goals and strategies of the
Bank into concrete and measurable targets, we upgraded the performance measurement system used to gauge and
communicate the achievement of various operating units against the set budgets.
The robust, automated operations environment, staff dedication, capability and responsiveness contributed to major
business initiatives and the launch of new products and services. Building on the Bank’s technological edge, several
programs featuring Straight-Through-Processing (STP) were implemented resulting in distinct improvements in speed,
accuracy, flexibility and, more importantly, capacity. Further, a major initiative has been launched to transform Operations
into a robust, consistent and empowered servicing culture, with a goal towards service excellence and ultimate customer
satisfaction. The initiative is designed to enhance the customer service chain encompassing process, people, technology
and infrastructure. Flexibility, innovation and service creativity are the intended trademarks for our service capabilities.
The year 2008 marked the successful completion of several ground-breaking initiatives, which will have a profound impact
on the way BankMed conducts business. A significant project with the potential to transform operational processes is the
Document Imaging and Management system. This will provide an impetus for defining and managing an optimized process
flow where geographic location no longer matters. As the system continues to be implemented across the Bank's operations,
it will provide the bank with a quantum leap in its contingency preparedness and provide a platform for eliminating obsolete
archiving methods.
Technology continued to build on its proven track record in terms of business solutions, support and infrastructure
oversight. A record number of system development initiatives geared towards business growth, regulatory compliance
and service support were completed on schedule. Some successful projects included the establishment of a completely
new infrastructure for the newly formed securities trading subsidiary MedSecurities to meet the Bank’s decision to
separate banking and investment activities. These projects also include the creation of multi-country technology platform
to support domestic organic growth and international expansion. Rapid progress was made towards enhancing and upgrading the production environment capabilities to manage capacity, scalability, high systems availability, efficient
disaster recovery and contingency management procedures, advanced intrusion detection and monitoring tools. At the
same time, migrating the Cyprus branch into the core banking system and centralizing its operations in Beirut constituted
a major milestone in our goal of achieving enhanced efficiency and improving controls.
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BankMed believes that a harmonious, collegial, team-oriented work environment is
ideal milieu for generating value added customer-oriented banking services.

During the year, we continued to raise the bar on all aspects of customer service and successfully completed numerous
automation projects for the Consumer, Corporate, Treasury and Investment Banking segments to improve productivity and
service delivery. The Bank took a quantum leap in customer service by way of significantly boosting “MedOnline”, a highly scalable, modular and “state-of-the art” 24/7 internet banking service on the back of the newly deployed interactive corporate website. The Bank also successfully implemented a modern ATM and debit card management system “Open/2”
replacing the old system. The new switch utilizes advanced technologies and provides enhanced services to customers.
It also supports customer segmentation and multiple card products.
BankMed continues to invest in and deploy technology to serve customers better and increase productivity. Significant
upgrades of the Bank's main computers to state-of-the-art systems are in progress. Stringent risk management and
information security compliance processes have been put in place to protect the Bank and its customers from cyber
crimes such as information theft, computer hacking and viruses.
Through our technology strategy, we continue to make significant progress in a number of areas with many activities
focused on ensuring adequate processing capacity, high systems availability and a robust and reliable infrastructure.
During the year the Disaster Recovery Center has been relocated to the new, modern and fully equipped hub designed
to serve as the business continuity center. The well-planned and executed move went smoothly, causing no disruptions
in service or internal operations. The Disaster Recovery Center is tested on a regular basis to ensure that it will be readily
available for use, in case of any contingency.
We are constantly working to identify and mitigate potential risks in the Bank’s operating environment. In line with this, a
comprehensive review of all operational policies and procedures has been completed. Emergency plans including
Business Contingency and Disaster Recovery Planning have also been put in place, ready to be activated if necessary.
Our support divisions continue to focus on creating a work environment that delivers superior customer service by leveraging on BankMed’s optimized processes, motivated staff and cutting-edge banking technology. We invest in our staff and
carefully plan their training and development needs, including appropriate reward and recognition programs.
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Human Resources
In 2008 we concluded the "Building an Integrated HR System" project which was launched with HAY consultants. The project
has significantly improved and developed our work definition. We have implemented a pioneering methodology for performance grading and salaries based on staff initiative and merit. In addition, we have implemented a new system for promotion
and career development and succession planning. The system ensures a performance oriented culture of work, and encourages professional development and promotion of all our employees.
Another area of focus in 2008 was training and development. In 2008 we launched a training program to qualify our staff
for the Banque du Liban (BDL) requirements. We have also invested in a range of in-house and external trainings sessions for the staff covering a comprehensive range of issues such as Risk management, Basel II, UCP 600, Anti money
laundering and Customer service. During 2008 over 12,000 hours of both in-house and external training were completed
by close to 500 BankMed employees.
In addition, this year we started a Talent Management program catering to staff with the potential to develop quickly along
their career paths. The program invests in and retains staff with a promising future; with the objective of developing this
pool into managers through intensive on the job, technical and soft-training programs.
After firmly establishing our HR system and structure in 2008, we expect that 2009 will be the year of Training and
Development. Our training plan for the year 2009 will be aggressive; with a major focus on Risk Management. It will also
include intensive workshops for our Retail Managers to improve their management skills and help them expand their
business. In addition we will proceed in preparing for the BDL 103 certifications, which focuses this year on Lebanese
Financial Regulations.
In 2009 we will be launching our Retail Banking Development Program with our first group of Retail Management
Development Programs (RMDPs). The programs will train and qualify the team on the different available banking
functions, and will be implemented through on-the-job training in the existing dummy branch. RMDPs will give trainees a
sound understanding of BankMed’s banking practices in order to develop a thorough knowledge of all our products and
services offered; and ultimately prepare them to assume key positions in the Retail Division.
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Legal
The Legal division is committed to providing expert legal assistance to the Bank and its various affiliates and subsidiaries
at the levels of both legal support and legal risk prevention.
The Legal division at BankMed is entrusted with a key role in supporting all levels of the Bank by providing timely and
continuous legal guidance, necessary for the successful achievement of their objectives and goals.
During the year 2008, the Legal division was involved in:
• Major transactions with local and international counterparties necessitating high legal expertise, negotiating skills and
legal engineering. These included, but were not limited to: private placements, project and aircraft financing, corporate
financing and loan syndication transactions, all of which were successfully handled.
• The legal engineering and launching of various retail and products and structured financial products; in addition to its
continuous review and standardization of the Bank's legal documentation.
• The legal review of BankMed’s e-banking services on MedOnline; taking into consideration the practical needs and legal
requirements of such services.
• The establishment and launching of MedSecurities Investment SAL, the brokerage arm of the Bank. Legal’s participation encompassed and covered the entire process of setting up the company. Most notably, our involvement in the
preparation of its policies and procedures and drafting its full set of legal documentation.
The Legal Division constantly strives to fully cover the legal advisory needs of all the Bank’s units, and has provided them
with a complete range of adapted legal services and expertise in 2008. In line with this, we undertook a restructuring of
our organization through an intensive recruitment process and the implementation of two new Departments dedicated to
International and Capital Market businesses on the one hand and Project Structuring on the other.
The Legal Division aims to be highly responsive to meet the high expectations of the Bank and to contribute directly to its
expansion and ongoing growth.

45

11

Risk, Audit
& Corporate Governance

11

Risk Management
Risk Governance
BankMed considers that the foundation for successful risk management is the pragmatic and consistent implementation
of strong risk governance. BankMed's risk governance platform is based on "three lines of defense" consisting of the
business lines, risk management and internal audit. The risk management framework includes a strong emphasis on
accountability, responsibility, independence, reporting, communications and transparency both internally and with all our
key external stakeholders as indicated in our various existing policies and procedures.
BankMed's risk management framework has a number of essential elements:
• Clearly defined management responsibilities and accountability.
• Clear separation of responsibilities and reporting lines between risk management functions, business lines and support
functions in order to avoid or manage conflicts of interest.
• A system of approvals, limits and authorizations, delegated by the Board to senior management and then cascaded
through the Bank.
• Detailed risk controls for each business line.
• A comprehensive and independent internal audit or compliance process for reviewing and testing internal controls and
risk management systems.

Risk Culture and Vision
There is more to effective risk management than formal structures and policies. The risk "culture" of the Bank is crucial. In that
respect, the Bank aims to ensure that the risk management framework permeates the organizational culture and that staff at all
levels understand their responsibilities with respect to risk management. Moreover, an ethos of respect of risk is developed starting from the top, as set by the Board and encompasses the buy-in of business line managers who "own the risk".
The vision and key set objectives of the Risk Management Division are summarized as follows:
• To manage risks with a holistic approach at an enterprise-wide level (credit; market; operations; compliance; etc).
• To play an integral role in supporting management's strategy and growth agenda.
• To ensure that understanding, measuring and managing risk are central to everything we do.
• To be a partner to growth and value creation as opposed to a controller of downside risks as banking is about
controlling risk rather than avoiding it.
• To enable the business lines to achieve their targeted growth by delivering risk solutions within a well coordinated risk
management framework.
• To facilitate a decentralized business model based on delegation of risk-based decisions to the respective business
units (with clear accountability) while maintaining a strong, independent group risk function and enterprise-wide risk
culture.
• To achieve world-class best practice risk management methodologies.
• To employ and retain high-caliber risk management professionals.
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Risk Measurement and Reporting
Risk Management calculates and reports regulatory capital requirements under Basel I and Basel II (according to
regulatory projected Quantitative impact studies). Under Basel II, credit risk is reported according to the Comprehensive
Standard methodology; market risk as per the standard methodology and operations risk along the basic Indicator
method.
Moreover, the Bank plans to shift to the Standard calculation method for operations risk in 2009. Finally, the Bank has
enhanced its disclosure policy as required under Pillar III for market discipline and began implementing it in 2008.
There are other types of risks that BankMed assumes but that are not quantifiable and managed via the capital allocation
model. These are mitigated through periodic management controls, formal risk management and governance.
Reputation risk, which is difficult to quantify, is managed through various controls and processes, while liquidity risk is
managed by a rigorous control process and the Asset & Liabilities Committee (ALCO).
Stress and scenario testing constitutes a critical component of the proactive risk management framework. Rapid portfolio
reviews are conducted on the credit portfolio as circumstances arise and stress testing is a core component of assets and
liabilities management (ALM). The robustness of these processes was tested throughout 2008, given the extreme volatility
in the markets. The portfolios of Treasury and MedSecurities were reviewed a number of times during the year in order to
ensure that there were no undue existing risks. Moreover, as part of BankMed’s proactive risk management framework, the
portfolio of the Corporate Bank Large, Medium and Small enterprises was revisited in light of the global credit crisis, recession and the potential impact of these on the Lebanese economy and its various industry sectors. Where necessary, action
plans are being undertaken to successfully weather any potentially adverse impact.

Risk Appetite
Risk appetite is established at BankMed in light of the Bank's strategy, stakeholders' requirements and risk-reward tradeoffs. BankMed's risk appetite is defined across four categories within our risk appetite framework:
•
•
•
•

Group level risk appetite metrics
Specific risk-type limit setting
Stakeholders targets (e.g. target debt rating; dividend policy etc)
Policies, procedures and controls
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Operations Risk
The Operational Risk Management unit (ORMU) provides oversight and control of operational risk throughout the Bank
in order to ensure that it remains within acceptable levels. The prime responsibility for the management of operational risk
is embedded within the management of the Bank’s business lines; so as to manage risks efficiently and in good time as
they arise. This is supported by the oversight of the independent ORMU. In addition, an operational risk management
framework is established to ensure that an integrated and effective risk management approach is applied consistently
across BankMed. The process includes the following three steps: identify and assess key operational risks; establish key
risk indicators and produce a comprehensive operational risk report.
In that respect, Operations Risk Management undertook a project, under the auspices of Risk Management Division, for
the standardization of all policies and procedures of BankMed. This was conducted in coordination with representatives
from all the Business and Support Divisions of the Bank. These policies and procedures are now available for easy
reference to all relevant staff under one manual published on the Intranet of the Bank. Moreover, this exercise led to a
comprehensive assessment of key operational risks.

Market Risk
BankMed’s Market Risk Management (MRM) unit supports ALCO and supervises MedSecurities, the brokerage business.
The ALCO is responsible for setting and supervising the implementation of asset/liability management policy which the
Treasury is mandated to execute. The objective of the MRM is to oversee interest rate, liquidity, foreign exchange and
price risks. This is done through the monitoring of periodic reports (interest rate gap; market access reporting; liquidity;
etc), daily internal limits and trigger reports to ensure that actual exposure remains within applicable limits and managed
against ALCO imposed triggers.
The MRM also oversees the brokerage business, MedSecurities, by ensuring compliance with these policies and
procedures and providing adequate preventive and detective controls of the day-to-day activities of the business. For
that purpose policies, procedures and IT systems were established to facilitate the orderly and efficient conduct of
MedSecurities' business.

Internal Audit
The BankMed Internal Audit Division (IA) uses a risk-based audit approach that relies heavily on efficient and effective use
of technology in the conduct of its business. The Division has extensive experience and know-how concerning auditing
tools and techniques and is composed of dynamic, flexible, and experienced audit staff.
The Internal Audit function operates in accordance with an approved Internal Audit Charter which clearly specifies the
reporting level, mission & scope of work of the Internal Audit.
IA is independent of the Management of the Bank, supervised by the Chief Audit Executive who, in turn, reports both
functionally and administratively to the Chairman-General Manager and the Audit Committee.
IA helps the Bank to accomplish its objectives by bringing a systematic, disciplined approach to evaluate and improve
the effectiveness of risk management, control and governance processes.
Staff of the IA, under the supervision of the Chief Audit Executive, are authorized to have unrestricted access to all
functions, records, property, and personnel; in order to allocate resources, set frequencies, select subjects, determine
scopes of work, and apply the techniques required to accomplish audit objectives.
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While the Internal Audit function at the Bank is guided mainly by Central Bank Regulations; IA coverage at BankMed exceeds
these requirements and rigorously complies with International Auditing Standards, the Internal Audit Charter as well standards of other related professional organizations.
The Internal Audit unit’s methodology is both effective and professional. It plays the vital role of providing an internal
checking mechanism to ensure adherence to sound policies and procedures. The IA also assures the accuracy of
information and makes a major contribution to the overall control, compliance and corporate governance of the Bank.
Internal Audit also, as required by the Lebanese regulatory oversight bodies and professional standards, reviews the
Bank's affiliated branches, other Group banks and financial institutions' operations, and reports on their status and
conditions to Senior Management and to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit also reviews the quality of its functions
at BankMed’s affiliated Branches and units.
Internal Audit implements an audit methodology known as "continuous auditing", which includes an intelligent and efficient
testing of controls and risks. The use of this methodology leads to timely notification of gaps and weaknesses, which in
turn allows immediate follow-up and remediation. The Internal Audit uses one of the most widely used computer aided
audit techniques (CAATs) called ACL (Audit Command Language).
Staff and Management of the Internal Audit stay abreast of the constant changes in the Banking Inspection and
Supervision fields and regularly innovate new techniques and tackle new areas in which to introduce improvements to the
existing controls at the Bank and to the audit methodology. The IA has set high standards in qualifying for the Certified
Internal Auditor certification (CIA) and the Certified Information Systems Auditor certification (CISA), which creates a
knowledgeable and well-trained team of internal auditors.

Corporate Governance
BankMed is committed to practice and promote a responsible and sound corporate governance policy. The Board of
Directors is actively involved in setting the highest standards of corporate governance and in exercising strong oversight
of an independent management team. These standards are founded on the core principles of transparency and
accountability at all levels of the organization and are ultimately safeguarded by a long-standing commitment to a high
moral standard of honesty and integrity.
Sound corporate governance at the Bank emphasizes a set of fundamental principles that include respecting, protecting
and treating the interests of all stakeholders equitably, clearly defined responsibilities of the Board of Directors and
Executive Management, pursuing a policy of full disclosure; transparency and sound practice, and enforcing the functions
of internal and external auditors, as well as those of other Banking inspectors and supervisors.
The Board also ensures that any issues with potential to prevent management from running the Bank according to the
best interests of shareholders and other stakeholders are identified, and that processes are in place to address those
issues in a timely manner.
The Board and management are committed to complying with established best practices in corporate governance
including those set by the Central Bank of Lebanon (BDL) and Basel II recommendations.
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To that effect, the Board has approved an organizational structure that reflects best practices in corporate governance.
The Bank has an organizational structure in place, that separates functions and responsibilities, reflecting a division of
roles and duties between the Board, Executive Management and Operating Management.
Members of the Board (each in his area of specialty) are sufficiently qualified for their positions, have a clear
understanding of their role in corporate governance and are able to exercise sound judgment about the business affairs
of the Bank. The Board includes independent members who are committed to comply with best practices in corporate
governance, including those set by BDL and Basel II recommendations. The Board also observes the regulatory
requirements of other countries in which the Bank operates.
• When needed, new qualified members are elected to the Board to address the changes in the size and complexity of
the Bank's operations and its strategic plans. Further, several committees are established to review and study special
operations, among these committees are the "ALCO – Assets & Liabilities Committee", "International Committee" and
an "Investment Committee" to review the Bank's cash and liquid assets, real estate holdings, capital investments and
foreign subsidiaries. The committees’ mandates, composition (including members who are considered to be
independent) and working procedures are well-defined and properly disclosed.
• The shareholders' assembly elects the External Auditors based on their reputation and experience, while the Board
exercises due diligence and oversight on the work of External Auditors.
• The Board reviews and approves the Bank's overall business strategy, especially those related to investment strategies,
buying or financing subsidiaries and sources of borrowing and financing of the Bank's operations. The Board exercises
oversight over senior management of the Bank through its ability and authority to question and obtain straightforward
explanations from management, and receive, on timely basis, sufficient information to judge the performance of the
Bank and its management.
• The Board reviews internal audit reports regularly in order to assess policies, establish communication lines and monitor
progress towards achieving corporate objectives.
• The Board selects, monitors and, where necessary, replaces key executives, ensuring at the same time that the Bank
has an appropriate plan for executives’ successions.
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"Code of Ethics and Professional Conduct" (The Code) issued by the Chairman of the Board and was circulated to the
Bank's entire staff for use as a guideline while conducting the Bank's business.

The Code:
• Requires all employees to avoid activities that may result in conflict of interest between customers, employees and the
Bank,
• Requires employees to exercise honesty, objectivity and due diligence in the performance of their duties and
responsibilities,
• Encourages "whistle-blowing" by employees when witnessing any form of wrongdoing or unethical behavior, even when
a senior manager or colleague is involved,
• Requires the employees to be alert and exercise due diligence in monitoring anti-money laundering activities,
• Defines employees' responsibilities towards current and prospective customers, which include fiduciary duties and fair
dealing, respect customer confidentiality and data privacy, ensure product suitability for customers, advertise products
fairly and resolve customers' complaints in a timely fashion,
• Defines the framework that governs the professional relationship between the employees, customers and suppliers,
especially those related to gifts or other monetary benefits,
• Requires the employees to inform the Bank's management about any external activity or management positions held
by them which are considered outside the Bank's scope of operations.
Control functions at the Bank, including the Internal Audit, verify that the Bank's employees are significantly adhering to
the Code. Any significant deviation is properly reported to executive management, who in return takes corrective and
disciplinary measures against the non-compliant employees.
The Board has set and enforced, through its Chairman, clear lines of responsibility and accountability at all levels
throughout the Bank.
The Bank's By-Laws clearly defined the Board's rights, duties and responsibility in managing the Bank and monitoring the
work of its top management. The By-laws also defined the powers of the Chairman of the Board, and required that any
amendment to these powers must be subject to the approval of the Shareholders Assembly.
The Board and Executive Management, acting in the discharge of their own corporate governance responsibilities, have
established the general strategy and policies of the corporate governance structure at affiliated foreign Banks that
corresponds with the Bank's own policies and local laws in the hosting countries. In this respect, the Bank has established
several policies in the Turkish and Swiss affiliated Banks (T-Bank & BankMed Suisse) and the Bank's investment arm in
Saudi Arabia (SaudiMed Investment Company) to include a Corporate Governance Policy, Audit Committee and Internal
Policies for the Internal Audit and Internal Control functions and a Code of Ethics & Professional Conduct.
As per the Central Bank's regulations, which require Banks to perform an effective and adequate control over the Bank's
affiliated foreign Banks (units), the Bank has established an "International Committee" to follow up on the status of these
"units". The Committee consists of members who are specialists in their own relevant fields. Further, the Internal Audit
regularly visits these "units" to review their operations and assess the adequacy of their internal controls and financial
conditions.
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The Board is not involved in day-to-day operations of the Bank but works to ensure that Senior Management exercises
effective supervision over the Bank's operations, consistent with the Board's policy and guidelines.
The Board acknowledges the importance of senior managers in contributing to the Bank’s sound corporate governance
by overseeing line managers in specific business areas and activities, consistent with policies and procedures set by the
Bank’s Board. In this respect, the Board ensures that individuals appointed to senior positions have the necessary skills
to manage the business under their supervision as well as have the appropriate control over the key individuals in those
areas.
The senior management, in return, established, enforced and maintained Systems of Internal Control that require
appropriate segregation of duties and duality in completing and reviewing operations, in order to significantly ensure that
all banking operations are completed as per related policies and procedures.
The Board, executive and senior management utilize effectively the results of work conducted by the Internal Auditors,
External Auditors and other control functions at the Bank.
The Board undertakes all necessary measures to ensure the independence and adequate qualifications of the Internal
Audit and other control functions at the Bank. In this respect, the Chairman of the Board approved and issued an Internal
Audit Charter. This would require the Chief Audit Executive to report directly to the Audit committee of the Board of
Directors, which is currently being established. Also, the Charter authorizes the staff of the Internal Audit, under the
supervision of the Chief Audit Executive, to have unrestricted access to all functions, records, property and personnel.
Further, BDL regulation requires the Board to determine the remunerations for the Chief Audit Executive.
The Internal Audit, based on its Charter and the BDL Circular, semi-annually prepares and sends activity reports about
the results of their audit work to the Board, they also include items that still need follow up and rectification by the
concerned Management. Also, the Internal Audit is required to opine on the adequacy, efficiency and effectiveness of the
Systems of Internal Control and other control functions at the Bank. All reports sent, are thoroughly reviewed by the Board,
and the related divisions are requested to comply with the Internal Audit recommendations.
To emphasize independence and objectivity of the External Audit function, the shareholders’ assembly elects the External
Auditors based on their reputation and experience.
The Board is also responsible for exercising due diligence and oversight of the External Auditors' work. To strengthen the
external Audit function of the Bank, starting in the fiscal year of 2008, the Board appoints a second Audit firm to serve as
co-auditors of the Bank.
In addition to their responsibilities in opining on the Bank's financial statements, the External Auditors, are also required
to review and to prepare reports to the Board concerning the Internal Audit's review methodologies and anti-money
laundering activities.
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The other control functions at the Bank (Risk Management, Financial Control, and Branch Network Quality Control and the
IT Security) and as deemed necessary, review certain day-to- day operations of the Bank to verify that such operations
comply significantly with the related policies and procedures.
The Banking Control Commission (BCC – oversight body in BDL), is required to prepare periodic reports about the Bank's
operations and the degree of compliance with the Banking Laws and BDL circulars. These reports are forwarded to the
Board, who in return, reviews these reports and takes necessary measures based on the recommendations of the Banking
Control Commission.
The Board, through its Chairman, is effectively involved in setting and implementing the frameworks of compensation and
remuneration policies and practices that are consistent with the Bank's corporate culture, long-term business objectives
& strategy and control environment.
The Bank's By-Laws required that the Shareholders' Assembly determine the remunerations of the Board members, and
in return, the Board determines the compensation polices for its members who have management positions in the Bank.
During 2008, the Bank engaged an international consulting company specialized in human resources (Hay Group), to
prepare new policies & procedures for employees' compensations based on the Bank's long-term and strategic business
objectives. These new policies and procedures were implemented at the start of this year.
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BankMed’s community contributions and social activities
underscore our commitment to the betterment of society
and our belief in giving back to the community within which
we operate. BankMed provides direct, ongoing contributions to charitable organizations as part of our commitment
to help improve the well-being of all Lebanese citizens.
Again in 2008, we made donations to different Lebanese
hospitals and will continue with our other charitable efforts;
supporting orphanages, scholarship programs and health
care projects in the years to come.

By sponsoring the local Al Riyadhi basketball and Nijmeh
football teams, BankMed seeks to help develop the talents
and skills of young aspiring athletes and to play an active
role in Lebanon’s vibrant sports scene. Another aspect of
BankMed’s social contribution is our support of Lebanon’s
rich cultural heritage by sponsoring cultural events and
festivals throughout the year, particularly the Beiteddine
summer festival and the year-end festivities in Beirut’s
downtown district. The increasing importance of
environmental policy has lead BankMed to develop an
environment-awareness and advocacy campaign; that will
begin in 2009 with the implementation of energy-andresource saving measures by BankMed staff at our
branches and head offices, in addition to other activities
that will be announced through the year. Being “A Bank for
All” is not only our approach to doing business: it is our
commitment to adding value to the society we are proud to
be a part of.
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Community Contribution
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Social and cultural responsibilities continue to be at the core of BankMed’s view of its
role in and contribution to the community in which it exists and operates. The Bank
constantly acts as a direct sponsor of various events that attempt to reflect the true
face of Lebanon and the breadth and wealth of its cultural heritage.

Sponsoring the Riyadi basketball team

Ambulance offered for red cross jdeideh

58

COMMUNITY CONTRIBUTION

Direct support through donations is another avenue for BankMed to carry its moral
obligations to the society it serves. In this context donations were given, among
others, to associations or projects that are related to the disabled, orphans, students’
scholarships and health care.

Sponsoring the Nejmeh football club

Ambulance offered for red cross tyre

Sponsoring the Dar Al Aytam Ramadan camapign
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BANKMED S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Notes

ASSETS

Cash and central banks

5

December 31, 2008
LBP’000

December 31, 2007
LBP’000

1,719,509,619

1,440,295,836

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

6

1,523,837,125

2,905,698,206

Loans to banks

8

187,986,213

15,714,107

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers

7

9

77,204,891

3,346,023,084

2,709,908,881

3,961,470,532

3,622,741,068

118,431,252

62,304,148

Loans and advances to related parties

10

1,361,769,875

Held-to-maturity investment securities

11

1,381,632,196

Available-for-sale investment securities
Customers' acceptance liability

Investments in associates and other investments
Investment properties

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Goodwill

Property and equipment
Other assets

Total Assets
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH
OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

Guarantees and standby letters of credit

11
12
13

14

15
16
17
18

39

Documentary and commercial letters of credit
FIDUCIARY DEPOSITS AND ASSETS
UNDER MANAGEMENT

77,738,742
-

71,508,666

173,404,350
187,941,756
202,547,221

40

393,664,515

1,701,039,678
72,263,795

6,034,649

81,565,839

166,868,380
181,582,521
238,396,386

14,391,005,522

13,769,430,978

1,014,767,764

328,883,212

773,631,118

354,517,309

458,407,657

Forward exchange contracts

171,352,969

1,423,761,272

640,429,345

1,958,509,804

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES 1 TO 48 FORM AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BANKMED S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

Notes

LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and financial institutions
Customers’ deposits at fair value
through profit or loss

Customers' deposits at amortized cost

Related parties' deposits at fair value through
profit or loss

19
20

December 31, 2008
LBP’000

December 31, 2007
LBP’000

715,986,668

728,889,109

239,998,608

155,797,027

21

8,748,449,931

7,669,874,068

22

2,877,581

3,207,682

Related parties' deposits at amortized cost

23

2,217,568,605

2,709,500,463

Borrowings from banks and financial institutions

24

330,554,014

417,352,068

177,007,583

179,434,847

Acceptances payable

Certificates of deposit
Other liabilities
Provisions

Total liabilities

12

25

26

27

118,431,252

716,356,004

36,074,957

62,304,148

715,609,642

21,546,043

13,303,305,203

12,663,515,097

28

530,000,000

530,000,000

Reserve for general banking risks

29

59,332,492

Cumulative change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities

30

EQUITY

Share capital

Legal reserves

Property revaluation reserve
Retained earnings

Currency translation adjustment

29

Profit for the year

Equity attributable to the Group
Minority interest
Total equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

30,824,497

3,213,000

3,213,000

41,168,527

142,002,298

109,862,157

110,153,867

251,366,987

(15,936,133)
104,709,679

31

25,212,282

7,976,435

55,154,633

964,299,700

1,023,954,021

1,087,700,319

1,105,915,881

14,391,005,522

13,769,430,978

123,400,619

81,961,860
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BANKMED S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

Notes
Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest income

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net fee and commission income
Net results on trading portfolio

Net results on financial instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss upon initial recognition

Other operating income

Net operating revenues

Allowance for impairment of loans and advances
less write-back

Provision for collective impairment less write-back

Other provisions

Loss from write-off of loans

32

Provision for impairment of assets acquired in
satisfaction of loans

34

66,435,115

45,477,281

35
36
37

38

Minority interest

(7,805,821)

(4,664,338)

404,732,743

293,525,699

80,175,885

24,620,341

85,972,896
900,815

(786,508)

(36,554,792)

(247,418)

(659,864)

378,722,625

257,211,858

(118,163,054)

(87,777,450)

(118,260,153)

15

(5,035,748)

40,441,533

9,544,767

(22,612,500)

17 & 18

147,155,267

58,878,759

18

26

Equity holders of the Group

(7,556,356)

(2,363,692)

Income tax provision

Attributable to:

263,939,153

9

9

27

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

795,671,563

(648,516,296)

Provision for contingencies

Profit before taxes

935,953,180

2007
LBP’000

(672,014,027)

Staff costs

Depreciation and amortization

2008
LBP’000

33

Net operating revenues after impairment
charge for credit losses
Administrative expenses

Year Ended December 31,

(17,559,964)

(272,870)

(7,443,020)

-

(82,023,999)

(14,116,596)
(1,434,937)

(1,700,123)

117,023,564

70,158,753

105,750,626

60,646,010

104,709,679

61,184,633

105,750,626

60,646,010

(11,272,938)

1,040,947

(9,512,743)

(538,623)
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-

-

-

Profit for the year 2008

-

-

Allocation of 2007 profit

Balance at December 31, 2008

Minority interest in subsidiary bank

Difference of exchange
30,824,497

-

5,588,010
3,213,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,213,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,213,000

Property
Revaluation
Reserve
LBP’000

59,332,492

-

9,536,841

-

8,627,124

-

-

-

-

41,168,527

-

896,994

-

-

-

-

-

40,271,533

Reserve for
General
Banking Risk
LBP’000
-

-

142,002,298

-

40,029,782

737,483

(8,627,124)

110,153,867

-

-

-

-

- (141,213,120)

-

-

251,366,987

-

-

104,532,621

-

104,532,621

-

-

146,834,366

-

(15,936,133)

-

-

-

-

(23,912,568)

-

(23,912,568)

-

7,976,435

-

-

7,976,435

-

7,976,435

-

-

Cumulative
Change in Fair Currency
Translation
Value of
Available-for- Adjustment
LBP’000
sale Securities
LBP’000

- (141,213,120)

-

109,862,157

-

2,127,507

-

-

-

-

107,734,650

Retained
Earnings
LBP’000

-

-

167,663,689

7,976,435

104,532,621

(6,030,000)

61,184,633

856,290,332

Total
LBP’000

104,709,679

-

(55,154,633)

-

-

104,709,679

-

964,299,700

-

-

-

761,688

(60,416,009)

(23,912,568)

104,709,679

- (141,213,120)

104,709,679

55,154,633 1,023,954,021

-

(4,778,703)

55,154,633

-

-

(6,030,000)

4,778,703

61,184,633

Profit for
the Year
LBP’000
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530,000,000

-

24,205

-

Transfer to reserve for general
banking risk

-

-

Total result for the year

-

-

-

-

-

-

25,212,282

-

1,754,202

-

Currency translation adjustment

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities

530,000,000

-

Balance at December 31, 2007

Minority interest in subsidiary bank

-

Allocation of 2006 profit

-

-

-

-

Total result for the year

-

23,458,080

-

530,000,000

Currency translation adjustment

Change in fair value of
available-for-sale securities

Deferred tax on undistributed
income from subsidiaries

Profit for the year 2007

Balance at December 31, 2006

Capital
LBP’000

Legal
Reserves
LBP’000

Equity Attributable to the Group

BANKMED S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

19,593,611
69,854,495

-

178,742,242

104,532,621

(6,030,000)

60,646,010

857,319,144

Total
Equity
LBP’000

59,002,717

-

-

761,688

(77,979,967)

123,400,619 1,087,700,319

59,002,717

-

-

-

(17,563,958)

(42,517,473)

105,750,626

- (141,213,120)
(18,604,905)

1,040,947

81,961,860 1,105,915,881

69,854,495

-

11,078,553

-

11,617,176

-

(538,623)

1,028,812

Minority
Interest
LBP’000
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BANKMED S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities:
Profit for the year

Provision for impairment of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

272,870

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for credit losses/(write-back) (net)

Effect of exchange rate fluctuation on goodwill

18

Amortization of commissions and discount on certificates of deposit
Unrealized gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition
Equity income from investments in associates
Loss on sale on investment property

Currency translation adjustment

Increase in deposits with banks and financial institutions and
compulsory deposits and deposits with central banks

43

Decrease/(increase) in other assets

43

Increase in other liabilities

43

Increase/(decrease) in deposits and borrowings from banks
Increase in customers’ accounts at fair value through profit or loss
(Decrease)/increase in related parties’ accounts
at fair value through profit or loss

Increase in customers’ accounts at amortized cost

(Decrease)/increase in related parties’ accounts at amortized cost
Increase in provisions for contingencies
Increase in minority interest

Exchange difference on retained earnings and legal reserves
Net cash (used in)/provided by operating activities

68

659,864
-

(2,527,534)

962,997

(418,506)

(5,958,748)

(259,938)

(10,639,208)

15,442,437

26,010,725

(3,493,520)
-

78,436

(634,202)

(655,762)

(11,314,653)

99,126,940

(61,209,748)

(647,179,842)

(733,826,776)

(719,969,457)

(410,312,921)

43,485,972

(9,561,357)

(23,912,568)

Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(900,815)

(16,979,999)

(3,095,613)

Gain from sale of investment in an associate/other investments

(Increase)/decrease in loans and advances to related parties

(2,527,276)

(644,366)

Gain on sale of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

Increase in loans and advances to customers

247,418

22,612,500

1,343,978

(Gain)/loss from sale of property and equipment

Loans to banks

36,554,792

(6,521,048)

Accretion of securities premium/(discounts)

1,434,937

786,508

(4,718,924)

Realized gain on sale of available-for-sale securities

60,646,010
14,116,596

963,485

Realized gain on sale of trading securities

2007
LBP’000

17,559,964

2,363,692

Provision for collective impairment

Impairment of investment in a fund

2008
LBP’000

105,750,626

Adjustments for:

Loss from write-off of loans

Year Ended December 31,

(172,272,106)
(968,105,360)
15,863,186
16,208,754
84,201,581
(330,101)

7,976,435
-

58,477,085

(53,244,888)

39,151,971

125,865,388
3,207,682

1,078,575,863

1,411,526,144

14,528,914

659,218

(491,931,858)

1,504,868,347

40,397,812

36,206,335

(1,498,610,030)

2,024,360,086

761,688

-
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BANKMED S.A.L. CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Notes
Cash flows from investing activities:

Acquisition of subsidiary bank, net of cash acquired

Increase in available-for-sale and held to maturity
investment securities

(Increase)/decrease in investment in associates and
other investments
Increase in investment properties

Increase in assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Increase in property and equipment

(86,656,822)

43

(178,211,786)

(326,598,294)

43

(2,543,909)

14,605,275

43

-

(3,268,755)
4,690,671

-

20,249,587

Proceeds from sale of property and equipment

3,418,505

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
Decrease in certificates of deposit

(Decrease)/increase in other borrowings

43

43

(616,569)

25,014,598
20,588,454
10,666,459

(180,603,135)

(363,591,783)

(217,123)

(231,895,710)

(87,015,177)

177,762,324

(1,766,228,342)

1,838,530,627

1,494,823,890

3,261,052,232

(86,798,054)

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

(803,099)

(18,932,511)

4,824,000

Proceeds from sale of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

(859,274)

(25,752,754)
(4,008,694)

Proceeds from sale of investment in an associate

Cash and cash equivalents – End of year

2007
LBP’000

-

Proceeds from sale of investment property

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year

2008
LBP’000

42

Increase in goodwill

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Year Ended December 31,

3,261,052,232

409,658,034

1,422,521,605
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BANKMED S.A.L.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
BankMed S.A.L. (the “Bank”) is a Lebanese joint stock company, registered under Number 5261 in the Lebanese
Commercial Register on August 13, 1950 and under Number 22 in the list of banks published by the Central Bank of
Lebanon. The principal activities of the Bank and its subsidiaries (the Group) consist of conventional commercial and private
banking through a network of 47 branches in Lebanon in addition to a branch in Cyprus, a subsidiary in Switzerland and a
subsidiary in Turkey acquired during 2007.
BankMed S.A.L. is wholly owned by GroupMed (Holding) S.A.L. and its headquarters are located in Clemenceau, Beirut,
Lebanon.

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
Three Interpretations issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee are effective for the current
period. These are: IFRIC 11 (IFRS 2) Group and Treasury Share Transactions; IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements
and; IFRIC 14 IAS 19 The limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction. The
adoption of these Interpretations has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting policies.
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements the following amendments to Standards and new Interpretations
were in issue but not yet effective:
IFRS 2 (Amendment) Share based payment (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009);
IFRS 3 (Revision) Business Combinations (effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009);
IFRS 5 (Amendment) Non-Current Assets held for sale and discontinued operations (effective for annual periods beginning
on or after July 1, 2009;
IFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009);
IFRS 8 Operating Segments (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009);
IAS 1 (Amendment and Revision) Presentation of Financial Statements (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2009)
IAS 16 (Amendment) Property, Plant and Equipment (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009)
IAS 19 (Amendment) Employee Benefits (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009)
IAS 23 (Amendment and Revision) Borrowing Costs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009 and
for Borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after January 1,
2009)
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IAS 27 (Amendment) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (amendments resulting from May 2008 Annual
Improvements to IFRSs - effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009) and (consequential amendments
arising from amendments to IFRS 3 - effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009).
IAS 28 (Amendment) Investments in Associates (amendments resulting from May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs - for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009) and (consequential amendments arising from amendments to IFRS 3 effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009)
IAS 29 (Amendment) Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2009)
IAS 31 (Amendment) Interests in Joint Ventures (amendments resulting from May 2008 Annual Improvements to IFRSs effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009) and (consequential amendments arising from
amendments to IFRS 3 - effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009)
IAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Presentation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009)
IAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of Assets (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009)
IAS 38 (Amendment) Intangible Assets (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009)
IAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement (amendments resulting from May 2008 Annual
Improvements to IFRSs - effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009) and (Amendments for embedded
derivatives when reclassifying financial instruments - effective for annual periods beginning on or after June 30, 2009) and
(Amendments for eligible hedged items - effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009)
IAS 40 (Amendment) Investment Property (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009)
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2008)
IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate (effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2009)
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation (effective for annual periods beginning on or after October 1,
2008)
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2009)
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (for transfers received on or after July 1, 2009)
The directors anticipate that the adoption of the above Standards and Interpretations will have no material impact on the
financial statements of the Group in the period of initial application.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
A. Statement of Compliance:
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standard Board (IASB).
B. Basis of Preparation and Measurement:
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:
• Land and buildings acquired prior to 1993 are measured at their revalued amounts based on market prices prevailing during
1996, to compensate for the effect of the hyper-inflationary economy prevailing in the earlier years.
• Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are measured at fair value.
• Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value.
• Derivative financial instruments are measured at fair value.
Assets and liabilities are grouped according to their nature and are presented in an approximate order that reflects their
relative liquidity.
The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below:
C. Basis of Consolidation:
The consolidated financial statements of BankMed S.A.L. include the financial statements of the Bank as at December 31,
2008 and companies in which the Bank has a controlling financial interest (subsidiaries and associates, as applicable). The
Bank and its subsidiaries have the same financial reporting year and use consistent accounting policies. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. Control is achieved where the Bank has the
power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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The consolidated subsidiaries as at December 31, 2008 comprise:
Country of
Incorporation
Banks and Financial Institutions
Saudi Lebanese Bank S.A.L.

Méditerranée Investment Bank S.A.L.

Percentage of
Ownership

Date of Acquisition
or Incorporation

Lebanon

100

January 1, 1995

Commercial Banking

Switzerland

100

August 31, 2001

Private Banking

100

January 24, 1996

Lebanon

66

November 30, 2001

Financial and Fund
Management

Turkey

41

January 28, 2007

Commercial Banking

Saudi Arabia

100

May 21, 2007

Corporate Finance
Advisory & Asset
Management

Lebanon

100

November 19, 2007

Financial institution

Al Hana S.A.L.

Lebanon

100

December 1, 1995

Owns Bank’s Premises

Al Shams S.A.L.

Lebanon

100

December 1, 1995

Owns Bank’s Premises

BankMed Suisse - S.A.

Allied Business Investment
Corporation S.A.L.
Turkland Bank A.S.
(formerly MNG Bank A.S.)

Saudi Med Investment Company

MedSecurities Investment
Company S.A.L.
Real Estate

Al Jinan S.A.L.

Centre Méditerranée S.A.L.

Al Hosn Real Estate II S.A.L.

Lebanon

Business Activity

Lebanon
Lebanon

100

December 1, 1995
January 16, 1996

Owns Bank’s Premises
Owns Bank’s Premises

100

February 27, 2004
February 27, 2004

Owns Bank’s Premises

Lebanon

100

May 20, 2003

Insurance brokerage

BVI

100

January 1, 2003

Any activity outside of BVI

Méditerranée Investment Bank Holding

Lebanon

100

December 24, 1996

Investment in shares and
management of companies

Med Properties S.A.L. Holding

Lebanon

100

April 23, 2008

Investment in shares and
management of companies

Cynvest Holding S.A.L.

Lebanon

100

December 23, 2008

Al Hosn Real Estate III S.A.L.
Insurance

Med Bancassurance S.A.L.
Other

Medfinance Holding Ltd.

Med Properties Management

Lebanon

100

Investment Banking

Lebanon

Cayman

100

100

May 2, 2008

Owns Bank’s Premises

Management of properties

Investment in shares and
management of companies

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of the subsidiaries and associates to bring their
accounting policies into line with those used by other entities of the Group.
All intra-group transactions balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Minority interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries and associates are identified separately
from the Group’s equity therein. Minority interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business
combination and the minority’s share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. Losses applicable to the
minority in excess of the minority’s interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the Group except
to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover the losses.
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D. Business Combinations:
The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the business combination.
The acquiree's identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3
Business Combinations are recognized at their fair values at the acquisition date, except for non-current assets (or business
units to be disposed of) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations, which are recognized and measured at fair value less costs to sell.
Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognized as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost of the
business combination over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognized. If, after reassessment, the Group's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business combination, the excess is recognized immediately in the
income statement.
When subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus cumulative translation differences
and goodwill is recognized in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units),
to which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognized. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed
in future periods.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units or
groups of units.
The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is initially measured at the minority's proportion of the net fair value of
the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized.
E. Foreign Currencies:
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Lebanese Pound which is the Group’s reporting currency. However,
the primary currency of the economic environment in which the Group operates (functional currency) is the U.S. Dollar.
In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on
transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks, and exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part
of the net investment in a foreign operation, and which are recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve and
recognised in profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.
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For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations
are expressed in Currency Units using exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and
recognized in the Group’s foreign currency translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in
the period in which the foreign operation is disposed of.
F. Financial Assets and Liabilities:
Recognition and Derecognition:
The Group initially recognizes loans and advances, deposits debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date
that they are originated. All other financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date at which the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
A financial asset (or a part of a financial asset, or a part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognized, when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expires.
In instances where the Group is assessed to have transferred a financial asset, the asset is derecognized if the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. Where the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership, the financial asset is derecognized only if the Group has not retained
control of the financial asset. The Group recognizes separately as assets or liabilities any rights and obligations created or
retained in the process.
A financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) can only be derecognized when it is extinguished, that is when the obligation
specified in the contract is either discharged, cancelled or expires.
Offsetting:
Financial assets and liabilities are set off and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the
Group has a legal right to set off the amounts or intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
Fair Value Measurement:
The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:
• the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices;
• the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities and those traded in inactive markets (excluding derivative
instruments) are determined either based on quoted prices adjusted downward for factors related to illiquidity or in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using prices from observable
current market transactions, as applicable; and
• the fair value of derivative instruments, are calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not available, use is
made of discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield curve for the duration of the instruments for non-optional
derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives.
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Impairment of Financial Assets:
Financial assets, other than those at “fair value through profit and loss”, are assessed for indicators of impairment at each
balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that as a result of one or more
observable loss events, including significant or prolonged decline in fair value beyond one business cycle that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset or group of financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have
been impacted.
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss or specific provision for credit losses on
non-performing loans and advances to customers, is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate, taking into consideration, for nonperforming loans and advances to customers, the liquidating value of any security on hand.
In addition to specific provision for credit losses on non-performing loans and advances to customers, provision for collective
impairment is made on a portfolio basis for credit losses where there is objective evidence that unidentified losses exist at
the reporting date. This provision is estimated based on various factors including credit ratings allocated to a borrower or
group of borrowers, the current economic conditions, the experience the Group has had in dealing with a borrower or group
of borrowers and available historical default information.
With the exception of available-for-sale equity instruments, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognized.
In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized
directly in equity.
Designation at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss:
The Group has designated financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss when either:
• the assets or liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis;
• the designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch which would otherwise arise; or
• the asset or liability contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be
required under the contract.
Financial assets and liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognized and subsequently
measured at fair value.
G. Investment Securities:
Investment securities are initially measured at fair value plus incremental direct transaction costs, and subsequently accounted for depending on their classification as either held-to-maturity or available-for-sale.
Held-to-Maturity Investment Securities:
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group
has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity, and which are not designated at fair value through profit or loss or
available-for-sale.
Held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortized cost.
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Available-for-Sale Investment Securities:
Available-for-sale (AFS) investments are non derivative investments that are not designated as another category of financial assets.
Available-for-sale securities are stated at fair value, except for unquoted equity securities whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are carried at cost. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note 3(F). Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
are recognized directly in equity in the “change in fair value of available-for-sale securities” with the exception of impairment losses,
interest and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets, which are recognized directly in profit or loss. Where the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in the “change in fair value
of available-for-sale securities” is included in profit or loss for the period.
The change in fair value on available-for-sale debt securities reclassified to held-to-maturity is segregated from the change
in fair value of available-for-sale debt securities under equity and is amortized over the remaining term to maturity of the debt
security as a yield adjustment.
Exchange of Debt Securities:
Debt securities exchanged against securities with longer maturities, with similar risks, and issued by the same issuer, are not
derecognized from financial assets because they do not meet the conditions for derecognition. Premiums and discounts
derived from the exchange of said securities are deferred to be amortized as a yield enhancement on time proportionate basis,
over the period of the extended maturities.
Cost of Put Option:
Cost of exercise of the put option related to the redemption right of debt securities is netted from the underlying cost of the
related securities.
Repurchase and Reverse Repurchase Agreements:
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future date (“repos”) are not derecognized from the balance
sheet. The corresponding cash received, including accrued interest, is recognized on the balance sheet reflecting its
economic substances as a loan to the Group. The difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as interest
expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement using the effective interest rate method.

H. Trading Assets:
A financial asset is classified as held-for-trading if:
• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or
• it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or
• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.
Financial assets held-for-trading are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in profit or loss. Fair value
is determined in the manner described in note 3(F).
Subsequent to their initial recognition, trading securities are not reclassified except when they meet the qualifying conditions
of IAS 39 amendments on fair value.
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I. Loans and Advances:
Loans and advances are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate.
Non-performing loans and advances to customers are stated net of unrealized interest and provision for credit losses
because of doubts and the probability of non-collection of principal and/or interest.
J. Financial Liabilities and Equity Instruments Issued by the Group:
Classification as debt or equity:
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.
Equity instruments:
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
Financial guarantee contract liabilities:
Financial guarantees contracts are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument. These contracts can have various judicial forms (guarantees, letters of credit, credit-insurance contracts).
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at their fair values and are subsequently measured at the higher of:
• the amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and
• the amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cumulative amortization recognized in accordance with the revenue
recognition policies set out above.
Other financial liabilities:
Other financial liabilities, including customers’ deposits, money market and borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,
net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield
basis.

K. Derivative Financial Instruments:
Derivative financial instruments including foreign exchange contracts, currency and interest rate swaps, (both written and
purchased) are initially measured at fair value at the date the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet date. All derivatives are carried at their fair value as assets where the fair
value is positive and as liabilities where the fair value is negative. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in the income
statement immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedge instrument in which event the timing of
the recognition in the income statement depends on the hedge relationship.
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The Group designates certain derivatives as either hedges of the fair value recognized assets or liabilities or firm
commitments (fair value hedges), hedges of highly probable forecast transactions or hedges of foreign currency risk of
firm commitments (cash flow hedges), or hedges of net investments in foreign operations.
Fair values are generally obtained by reference to quoted market prices, discounted cash flow models or pricing models as
appropriate as indicated under Note 3 (F).
Embedded derivatives:
Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other host contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their
risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Hedge accounting:
The Group designates certain hedging instruments, which include derivatives, embedded derivatives and non-derivatives in
respect of foreign currency risk, as either fair value hedges, cash flow hedges, or hedges of net investments in foreign
operations. Hedges of foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging instrument
that is used in a hedging relationship is highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of the hedged item.
Fair value hedge:
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in profit or loss
immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk. The
change in the fair value of the hedging instrument and the change in the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk are
recognised in the line of the income statement relating to the hedged item.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. The adjustment to the carrying amount of the
hedged item arising from the hedged risk is amortised to profit or loss from that date.
Cash flow hedge:
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are
deferred in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
Amounts deferred in equity are recycled in profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss,
in the same line of the income statement as the recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that is
hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses previously deferred
in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of the cost of the asset or liability.
Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or is
sold, terminated, or exercised, or no longer qualifies for hedge accounting. Any cumulative gain or loss deferred in equity at
that time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was deferred in equity is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Hedges of net investments in foreign operations:
Hedges of net investments in foreign operations are accounted for similarly to cash flow hedges. Any gain or loss on the
hedging instrument relating to the effective portion of the hedge is recognized in equity in the foreign currency translation
reserve. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss.
Gains and losses deferred in the foreign currency translation reserve are recognized in profit or loss on disposal of the foreign
operation.
L. Investments in Associates:
An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
The results and assets and liabilities of associates, except where the Group has control over the associates’ financial and
operating policies, are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting, except when
the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for under IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at
cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Group's share of the net assets of the associate, less any impairment in the
value of individual investments. Losses of an associate in excess of the Group's interest in that associate (which includes any longterm interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net investment in the associate) are not recognized.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included
within the carrying amount of the investment and is assessed for impairment as part of the investment. Any excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognized immediately in the income statement.
Temporary investments in non-consolidated subsidiaries, which the management intends to dispose of within one year from the
consolidated balance sheet date, are reflected in the consolidated balance sheet at fair value that is equivalent to its net realizable value as determined on the date of the consolidated financial statements.
M. Property and Equipment:
Property and equipment except for buildings acquired prior to 1993 are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment loss. Buildings acquired prior to 1993 are stated at their revalued amounts, based on market prices prevailing
during 1996 less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any. Resulting revaluation surplus is reflected under “Equity”.
Depreciation of property and equipment, other than land and advance payments on capital expenditures, is calculated
systematically using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets using the following annual rates:
Buildings . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2%
Office improvements and installations . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .12.5 % - 20%
Furniture . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .8% - 20%
Equipment and machines . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .7% - 25%
Computer equipment . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .20% - 33.33%
Vehicles . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .10% - 20%
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An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is recognized under “Other operating income” in the consolidated
income statement in the year the asset is derecognized.
N. Intangible Assets other than Goodwill:
Intangible assets consisting of computer software are amortized over a period of three years and are subject to impairment
testing. Subsequent expenditure on software assets is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.
O. Goodwill:
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition
over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the subsidiary or
jointly controlled entity recognized at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is initially recognized as an asset at cost and is
subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
On disposal of a subsidiary or a jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit or loss on disposal.
The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under “Investments in Associates”.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
P. Investment Properties:
Investment properties, which consist of properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation, are stated at cost which
approximates their fair value at the balance sheet date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.
Q. Assets Acquired in Satisfaction of Loans:
Real estate property has been acquired through the enforcement of security over loans and advances. These assets are
measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. The acquisition of such assets is regulated by the local banking
authorities who require the liquidation of these assets within 2 years from acquisition. In case of default of liquidation the
Group’s lead regulator requires an appropriation of a special reserve from the yearly net income that is reflected under equity.
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R. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets:
At each balance sheet date, the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets are reviewed to determine whether there
is any indication that these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment provision required, if any.
Recoverable amount is defined as the higher of:
• Fair value that reflects market conditions at the balance sheet date, less cost to sell, if any. To determine fair value the Group
adopts the market comparability approach using as indicators the current prices for similar assets in the same location and
condition.
• Value in use: the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the continuing use of the asset and
from its disposal at the end of its useful life, only applicable to assets with cash generation units.
In this connection, the recoverable amount of the Group’s owned properties and of properties acquired in satisfaction of
debts, is the estimated market value, as determined by real estate appraisers on the basis of market compatibility by
comparing with similar transactions in the same geographical area and on the basis of the expected value of a current sale
between a willing buyer and a willing seller, that is, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The impairment loss is charged to income.
S. Employees' Benefits:
Obligations for contributions to defined employees’ benefits are recognized as an expense on a current basis.
Employees' End-of-Service Indemnities: (Under the Lebanese Jurisdiction)
The provision for staff termination indemnities is based on the liability that would arise if the employment of all the staff were
terminated at the balance sheet date. This provision is calculated in accordance with the directives of the Lebanese Social
Security Fund and Labor laws based on the number of years of service multiplied by the monthly average of the last 12 months
remunerations and less contributions paid to the Lebanese Social Security National Fund.
Defined benefit plans: (Under other jurisdictions)
Obligations in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted
to determine its present value, and any unrecognized past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.
T. Provisions:
Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle that obligation. Provision is measured at the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the obligation at the balance sheet date.
Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the
receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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U. Revenue and Expense Recognition:
Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis, taking account of the principal outstanding and the rate
applicable, except for non-performing loans and advances for which interest income is only recognized upon realization.
Interest income and expense include the amortization discount or premium.
Interest income and expense presented in the income statement include:
• Interest on financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost.
• Interest on available-for-sale investment securities.
• Fair value changes in qualifying derivatives and related hedged items when interest rate risk is the hedged risk.
Net trading income presented in the income statement includes:
• Interest income and expense on the trading portfolio.
• Dividend income on the trading equities.
• Realized and unrealized gains and losses on the trading portfolio.
Interest income and expense on financial portfolio designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition is
recognized under net income from other financial instruments carried at fair value.
Fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the effective interest rate on a financial asset or liability
(i.e. commissions and fees earned on the loan book) are included under interest income and expense.
Other fees and commission income are recognized as the related services are performed.
Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.
V. Income Tax:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using rates enacted at the balance sheet date. Income tax
payable is reflected in the consolidated balance sheet net of taxes previously settled in the form of withholding tax.
Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and are accounted for using the balance sheet
liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilized.
W. Fiduciary Deposits:
All fiduciary deposits are held on a non-discretionary basis and related risks and rewards belong to the account holders.
Accordingly, they are reflected as off-balance sheet accounts.
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X. Operating Lease Agreements:
Lease agreements which do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased items
are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments are recorded in the consolidated income statement on a
straight line basis over the lease term.
Y. Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with maturities of a period of three months including: cash and balances with
the Central Banks, deposits with Banks and financial institutions, and deposits due to banks and financial institutions.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
A. Critical Accounting Judgments in Applying the Group’s Accounting Policies:
Classification of Financial Assets:
The Group’s accounting policies provide scope for investment securities to be designated on inception into different
categories in certain circumstances based on specific conditions. In classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity, the
Group has determined that it has both the positive intent and ability to hold these assets until their maturity as required by in
accounting policy under Note 3G.
In designating financial assets or liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, the Group has determined that it has met one
of the criteria for this designation set out in accounting policy 3(F).
Qualifying Hedge Relationships:
In designating financial instruments as qualifying hedge relationships, the Group has determined that it expects the hedge
to be highly effective over the life of the hedging instrument.
In accounting for derivatives as cash flow hedges, the Group has determined that the hedged cash flow exposure relates to
highly probable future cash flows.
B. Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty:
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
Allowances for Credit Losses:
Specific impairment for credit losses is determined by assessing each case individually. This method applies to classified
loans and advances and the factors taken into consideration when estimating the allowance for credit losses include the
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counterparty’s credit limit, the counterparty’s ability to generate cash flows sufficient to settle his advances and the value of
collateral and potential repossession. Loans collectively assessed for impairment are determined based on losses incurred
by loans portfolios with similar characteristics.
Determining Fair Values:
The determination of fair value for financial assets for which there is no observable market price requires the use of valuation
techniques as described in Note 3F. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price transparency, fair
value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgment depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainly of market
factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.
Where available, management has used market indicators in its mark to model approach for the valuation of the Lebanese
government debt securities and Central Bank certificates of deposit at fair value. The IFRS fair value hierarchy allocates the
highest priority to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities, and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs. The fair value hierarchy used in the determination of fair value consists of three levels of input data for
determining the fair value of an asset or liability.
Level 1 - quoted prices for identical items in active, liquid and visible markets such as stock exchanges,
Level 2 - observable information for similar items in active or inactive markets,
Level 3 - unobservable inputs used in situations where markets either do not exist or are illiquid.
Unobservable inputs are used to measure fair value to the extent that observable inputs are not available, thereby allowing
for situations in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability at the measurement date. However, the fair
value measurement objective should remain the same; that is, an exit price from the perspective of a market participant that
holds the asset or owes the liability. Unobservable inputs are developed based on the best information available in the
circumstances, which may include the reporting entity's own data. Where practical, the discount rate used in the mark to
model approach included observable data collected from market participants, including risk free interest rates and credit
default swap rates for pricing of credit risk (both own and counter party), and a liquidity risk factor which is added to the
applied discount rate. Changes in assumptions about any of these factors could affect the reported fair value of the Lebanese
Government debt securities and Central Bank certificates of deposit.
Impairment of Goodwill:
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.
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Impairment of Available-for-Sale Equity Investments:
The Group determines that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost. This determination requires judgment. In making this judgment the Group evaluates
among other factors, the normal volatility in share price. In addition, the Group considers impairment to be appropriate when
there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector performance, changes in
technology, and operational and financing cash flows.

5. CASH AND CENTRAL BANKS

2008

Cash on hand

Compulsory reserves with the Central Bank of Lebanon

Current accounts with the Central Bank of Lebanon
Current accounts with other central banks

Term placements with the Central Bank of Lebanon
Term placements with other central banks
Accrued interest receivable

December 31,

LBP'000

71,824,803

250,742,471
12,083,155
10,011,025

1,169,367,750
201,514,792

3,965,623

1,719,509,619

2007

LBP'000

51,320,789

156,909,350
9,386,868
1,505,136

1,126,705,500
88,645,861

5,822,332

1,440,295,836

Compulsory deposits with central banks are not available for use in the Group’s day-to-day operations and are reflected at
amortized cost.
Compulsory reserves with the Central Bank of Lebanon represent non-interest earning deposits in Lebanese Pounds
computed on the basis of 25% and 15% of the average weekly sight and term customers’ deposits in Lebanese Pounds in
accordance with the local banking regulations.
Term placements with Central Bank of Lebanon include the equivalent in foreign currencies of LBP 1,136.9 billion as at
December 31, 2008 (LBP 1,126.7 billion as at December 31, 2007) deposited in accordance with local banking regulations
which require banks to maintain interest earning placements in foreign currency to the extent of 15% of customers’ deposits
in foreign currencies, certificates of deposits and loans acquired from non-resident financial institutions.
Term placements with other central banks include the equivalent in Turkish Lira and foreign currencies of LBP 60.5 billion as
at December 31, 2008 (LBP 49.3 billion as at December 31, 2007) deposited in accordance with banking laws and
regulations in Turkey which require banks to maintain at the Central Bank of Turkey mandatory interest earning deposits to
the extent of 6% of their liabilities in Turkish Lira and 11% of their liabilities in foreign currencies.
Term placements with other central banks also include the equivalent in Euro of LBP 17.8 billion as at December 31, 2008
(LBP 39.3 billion as at December 31, 2007) deposited in accordance with banking laws and regulations in Cyprus which
require banks to maintain at the Central Bank of Cyprus mandatory interest earning deposits in Euro to the extent of 2% of
banks’ and customers’ deposits maturing in less than two years, after deducting a fixed amount of Euro 100,000.
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Term placements with the Central Bank of Lebanon bear the following maturities and earn fixed or floating interest rates:
December 31, 2008

Maturity

Up to 1 year

F/Cy Base Accounts
Amount LBP’000

Year 2010-2012

734,152,500

Year 2013

75,375,000

December 31, 2007

Maturity

Up to 1 year

359,840,250

F/Cy Base Accounts
Amount LBP’000

Year 2009-2012

1,169,367,750

489,033,000
637,672,500

1,126,705,500

Term placements with other central banks amounting to LBP 201.5 billion as at December 31, 2008 (LBP 88.6 billion as at
December 31, 2007) mature during the first quarter of 2009 (first quarter of 2008 for December 31, 2007).

6. DEPOSITS WITH BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

2008

Checks in course of collection

December 31,

LBP'000

38,001,158

Current accounts

237,142,535

Call placements

38,894,811

Current accounts - related parties

152,846

2007

LBP'000

33,988,702

208,547,415
1,011,757
6,783,750

Overnight placements

119,092,500

630,127,500

Term placements

736,227,005

1,546,623,735

Pledged deposits

5,914,383

Overnight placements - related parties

Term placements - related parties
Accrued interest receivable

Accrued interest receivable – related parties

-

343,557,070

19,691,784

457,635,711
-

3,457,683

1,280,932

1,523,837,125

2,905,698,206

1,397,134

6,920
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Term, overnight and call placements and pledged deposits bear the following maturities:
December 31, 2008

Maturity

F/Cy Base Accounts
Amount LBP’000

1st quarter of 2009

1,205,108,169

2nd quarter of 2009

38,577,600

December 31, 2007

Maturity

1st quarter of 2008

Accounts in LBP

Amount LBP’000

1,243,685,769
Accounts in F/Cy
Amount LBP’000

1,500,000

2,659,362,480

1,500,000

2,659,362,480

Deposits with banks and financial institutions include term placements in the amount of LBP 15.38 billion, current accounts in the
amount of LBP 306 million and purchased checks in the amount of LBP 75 million as at December 31, 2008 (LBP 9.8 billion and
LBP 739 million and nil as at December 31, 2007, respectively) with right of set-off against current deposits of banks and financial
institutions amounting to LBP 2.92 billion, long term borrowing amounting LBP 30.15 billion, acceptances payable amounting to
LBP 13.37 billion, letters of guarantees amounting to LBP 16.92 billion, letters of credit amounting to LBP 29.32 billion and forward
contracts amounting to LBP 8.02 billion (LBP 3.77 billion, nil, LBP 2.05 billion, LBP 16.16 billion, LBP 9.96 billion and LBP 23.96
billion as at December 31, 2007 respectively).

7. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
This caption consists of the following:

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition (a)
Trading assets (b)

2008
LBP'000

December 31,

75,283,043
1,921,848

77,204,891

2007
LBP'000
-

171,352,969

171,352,969

a) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition consist of the following:
December 31, 2008

Credit linked notes issued by bank
Accrued interest receivable
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F/Cy Base Accounts
LBP'000

75,106,665
176,378

75,283,043
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Credit linked notes issued by banks consist of the following:
December 31, 2008

Nominal Value
LBP’000

Maturity
July 20, 2009
October 15, 2010

30,150,000
45,225,000
75,375,000

F/Cy Base Accounts
Amortized Cost
LBP’000

30,002,986
44,194,557
74,197,543

Fair Value
LBP’000

30,107,790
44,998,875
75,106,665

The above credit linked notes have Lebanese government bonds and certificates of deposit as underlying assets and were purchased
against specific customers’ deposits classified as deposits at fair value through profit or loss (Note 20).
(b) Trading assets consist of the following:
December 31, 2008

Lebanese Government bonds
Foreign Government bonds
Quoted equity securities
Accrued interest receivable

C/V of F/Cy
LBP’000
392,213
924,420
587,547
17,668
1,921,848

Total
LBP’000
392,213
924,420
587,547
17,668
1,921,848

LBP
LBP’000

December 31, 2007
C/V of F/Cy
LBP’000
1,480,895
163,601,163
5,483,075
67,735
170,632,868

720,101
720,101

Total
LBP’000
1,480,895
163,601,163
6,203,176
67,735
171,352,969

Foreign government bonds as at December 31, 2008 and 2007 represent bonds issued by the Turkish Government.
Fixed income trading debt securities are segregated by remaining periods to maturity as follows:

Lebanese Government bonds:
Up to 1 year
1 year to 3 years
Foreign Government Bonds:
Up to 1 year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
Beyond 10 years

2008
LBP'000

December 31,

2007
LBP'000

392,213
392,213

1,480,895
1,480,895

634,172
290,248
924,420
1,316,633

65,380,694
84,305,593
1,738,060
7,316,127
4,860,689
163,601,163
165,082,058
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8. LOANS TO BANKS
Loans to banks are reflected at amortized cost and consist of the following:
2008
LBP'000

Regular accounts

December 31,

186,371,958

Accrued interest receivable

2007
LBP'000

15,528,000

1,614,255

186,107

187,986,213

15,714,107

Loans to banks bear the following maturities:
December 31, 2008

Maturity

Up to 1 year
1 to 3 years
3 to 5 years
Beyond 5 years

Accounts in LBP
Amount
LBP’000

14,778,000
14,778,000

Accounts in F/Cy
Amount
LBP’000

89,290,929
6,928,029
75,375,000
171,593,958

2007

Accounts in LBP
Amount
LBP’000

15,528,000
15,528,000

Loans to banks in foreign currencies as at December 31, 2008 include LBP 53.67 billion representing loans purchased from a
foreign bank, net of related discount in the amount of LBP 945 million. Purchased loans in the amount of LBP 6.9 billion are
covered by pledged shares.
The Group has entered into an interest rate swap contract for a notional amount of USD 10,500,000 with the said bank, to fully
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk, specifically the variability in the interest amounts received on the purchased loans,
whereby the Group receives fixed interest rate and pays floating interest rate.
Loans to banks also include LBP 75.38 billion representing notes maturing in 2013 and earning an interest rate of 3 months
Libor plus a margin and pledged against long term borrowings in the same amount included under “Borrowings from banks
and financial institutions” (Note 24).
Loans to banks also include interest bearing discounted acceptances in the nominal amount of LBP 27.57 billion, stated net
of discount in the amount of LBP 95.02 million.
The loans in LBP are granted to a resident housing bank and are detailed as follows:

Issuance Date

October 15, 2004
August 4, 2005
December 26, 2005
October 23, 2007

Original Loan Amount
LBP’000
3,000,000
3,000,000
1,500,000
8,328,000
15,828,000

Outstanding Balance

2008
LBP’000

2,400,000
2,700,000
1,350,000
8,328,000
14,778,000

2007
LBP’000

2,700,000
3,000,000
1,500,000
8,328,000
15,528,000

As a guarantee of the above loans, the borrower has pledged in favor of the Group bills related to the housing loans granted
to its customers.
All the above loans are for a period of 12 years with a grace period on payments of 2 years and interest is reset every three
years.
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9. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS
Loans and advances to customers are reflected at amortized cost and consist of the following:

Gross Amount
LBP’000
Regular Retail customers
• Rescheduled
• Mortgage loans
• Personal loans
• Credit cards
• Overdrafts
• Other
Classified Retail Customers
• Substandard
• Bad and doubtful
Regular Corporate customers
• Rescheduled
• Corporate
• Small and medium enterprises
Classified Corporate Customers
• Rescheduled substandard
• Substandard
• Rescheduled bad and doubtful
• Bad and doubtful
Collective provision
• Corporate
• Retail
Deferred penalties charged on excess over limit
Accrued interest receivable

Regular Retail customers
• Rescheduled
• Mortgage loans
• Personal loans
• Credit cards
• Overdrafts
• Other
Classified Retail Customers
• Substandard
• Bad and doubtful
Regular Corporate customers
• Rescheduled
• Corporate
• Small and medium enterprises
Classified Corporate Customers
• Rescheduled substandard
• Substandard
• Rescheduled bad and doubtful
• Bad and doubtful
Collective provision
• Corporate
• Retail
Deferred penalties charged on excess over limit
Accrued interest receivable

December 31, 2008

Unrealized
Interest
LBP’000

Impairment
Allowance
LBP’000

Carrying
Amount
LBP’000

232,149
31,818,800
255,125,538
7,820,514
35,961,013
99,360,058

-

-

232,149
31,818,800
255,125,538
7,820,514
35,961,013
99,360,058

2,951,392
12,313,218

(878,646)
(2,964,934)

(130,214)
(9,268,422)

1,942,532
79,862

32,491,383
2,386,921,315
451,234,536

-

-

32,491,383
2,386,921,315
451,234,536

11,880,388
34,653,711
116,022,978
170,253,830

(6,299,177)
(6,270,538)
(79,769,593)
(93,372,966)

(2,336,894)
(24,790,950)
(69,735,433)

5,581,211
26,046,279
11,462,435
7,145,431

(13,146,987)
57,091,397
3,692,985,233

(189,555,854)

(49,576,990)
(1,567,392)
(157,406,295)

(49,576,990)
(1,567,392)
(13,146,987)
57,091,397
3,346,023,084

Gross Amount
LBP’000

Unrealized
Interest
LBP’000

Impairment
Allowance
LBP’000

Carrying
Amount
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

19,520,877
150,437,579
6,195,744
31,869,498
113,897,943

-

-

19,520,877
150,437,579
6,195,744
31,869,498
113,897,943

2,118,730
25,899,353

(176,514)
(14,418,012)

(10,037,772)

1,942,216
1,443,569

36,252,570
2,048,281,826
269,656,823

-

-

36,252,570
2,048,281,826
269,656,823

16,093,335
30,391,662
173,973,011
218,811,026

(4,051,543)
(6,517,097)
(124,719,396)
(114,288,355)

(34,896,544)
(81,891,876)

12,041,792
23,874,565
14,357,071
22,630,795

(11,440,043)
20,139,876
3,152,099,810

(264,170,917)

(50,739,836)
(453,984)
(178,020,012)

(50,739,836)
(453,984)
(11,440,043)
20,139,876
2,709,908,881
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Loans and advances to customers as at December 31, 2008 and 2007 are stated net of third parties’ participation to the
extent of LBP 4.61 billion and LBP 4.32 billion, respectively.
Loans and advances to customers as at December 31, 2008 include LBP 5.55 billion representing loans purchased from a
foreign bank, net of related discount in the amount of LBP 481 million.
The Group has entered into an interest rate swap contract for a notional amount of USD 4,000,000 with the said bank, to fully
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk, specifically the variability in the interest amounts received on the purchased loans,
whereby the Group receives fixed interest rate and pays floating interest rate.
The movement of unrealized interest on substandard loans during 2008 and 2007 is summarized as follows:
2008

Balance January 1
Additions
Write-back to income statement
Write-off
Transfer to off-balance sheet
Transfer (to)/from doubtful and bad loans
Effect of exchange rate changes
Other
Balance December 31
Contractual write-off on rescheduled debts
Net balance, end of year

2007

LBP'000

10,745,154
4,011,307
(477,488)
(759,157)
(65,022)
(6,433)
13,448,361
(1,781,806)
11,666,555

LBP'000

8,695,430
3,746,417
(603,085)
(1,010,217)
(231,362)
159,523
(11,552)
10,745,154
(1,358,897)
9,386,257

The movement of allowance for impairment on substandard loans during 2008 and 2007 is summarized as follows:
2008

Balance January 1
Additions
Write-back to income statement
Transfer to doubtful and bad loans
Effect of exchange rate changes
Balance December 31

2007

LBP'000

3,860,604
(29,247)
(790,230)
(574,019)
2,467,108

LBP'000

3,233,852
(2,340)
(3,551,596)
320,084
-

The movement of unrealized interest on doubtful and bad loans during 2008 and 2007 is summarized as follows:
2008

Balance January 1

Additions
Write-off

Write-back to income statement

Transfer from/(to) substandard loans

Transfer (to)/from off-balance sheet (net)

Transfer to impairment of non-consolidated subsidiary
Effect of exchange rate changes
Other

2007

LBP'000

253,425,763
32,274,462

LBP'000

321,113,336
45,698,503

(62,592,053)

(34,303,951)

65,022

(159,523)

(8,555,432)

(2,624,658)

(38,554,889)

(75,220,843)

321,558

(76,681)

(276,938)
-

(1,111,972)
111,552

Balance December 31

176,107,493

253,425,763

Net balance, end of year

132,862,028

179,945,752

Contractual write-off on rescheduled debts
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(43,245,465)

(73,480,011)
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The movement of allowance for impairment on doubtful and bad loans during 2008 and 2007 is summarized
as follows:
2008

Balance January 1
Additions from acquisition of a new subsidiary
Additions
Write-off
Write-back to income statement
Transfer from allowance for collective impairment
Transfer from allowance for substandard loans
Transfer to off-balance sheet
Transfer to/from impairment of non-consolidated subsidiary
Transfer from escrow funds
Effect of exchange rate changes
Balance December 31
Contractual write-off on rescheduled debts
(including regular rescheduled loans)
Net balance, end of year
Escrow funds
Balance end of year, (net)

2007

LBP'000

LBP'000

117,376,293
6,282,679
(8,123,131)
(7,349,120)
183,861
790,230
(13,000,635)
2,023,007
2,398,827
(2,857,989)
97,724,022

154,348,513
5,660,435
3,696,387
(23,744,004)
(7,828,714)
3,551,596
(19,386,870)
(222,300)
1,301,250
117,376,293

(24,725,359)
72,998,663
6,070,783
79,069,446

(34,399,620)
82,976,673
9,449,899
92,426,572

The movement of the escrow funds is summarized as follows:
December 31,

2008

Balance, beginning of year

Write-back to income statement

Write-off

Transfer to allowance for impairment on doubtful and bad loans

Transfer to off-balance sheet

Balance, end of year

LBP'000

2007

LBP'000

9,449,899

9,950,435

(401,224)

-

(579,065)

-

(2,398,827)

-

-

(500,536)

6,070,783

9,449,899

Escrow funds in the amount of USD 4,027,053 as at December 31, 2008 (USD 6,268,590 as at December 31, 2007), are
partially funded by the Group to the extent of USD 2 million and the balance is funded by the previous shareholders of Allied
Bank S.A.L., a merged subsidiary, for the purpose of covering any shortfall in the provision for doubtful accounts.
The movement of the allowance for collective impairment during 2008 and 2007 is as follows:
2008

Balance January 1
Additions

Additions due to acquisition of subsidiary
Write-back to income statement

Transfer to allowance for impairment on doubtful and bad loans
Effect of exchange rate changes
Balance December 31

2007

LBP'000

51,193,820

4,439,866

-

(3,653,358)

(183,861)
(652,085)

51,144,382

LBP'000

12,373,560

36,788,790

1,787,785
(233,998)
-

477,683

51,193,820
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10. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO RELATED PARTIES
2008

December 31,

LBP'000

Regular Retail Accounts

519,151,583

Regular Corporate Accounts

842,615,284

Accrued interest receivable

3,008

1,361,769,875

2007

LBP'000

157,380,627

236,279,199

4,689

393,664,515

Loans and advances to related parties are partially secured (Note 41).

11. INVESTMENT SECURITIES

Available-for-sale (A)

Accrued interest receivable on
available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity (B)

Accrued interest receivable on
held-to-maturity

LBP
LBP’000

1,530,496,575
33,723,620

1,564,220,195

134,124,218
3,561,856

137,686,074

1,701,906,269

Available-for-sale (A)

Accrued interest receivable on
available-for-sale
Held-to-maturity (B)

Accrued interest receivable on
held-to-maturity

LBP
LBP’000

873,602,541
24,798,407

898,400,948

361,793,834
7,084,492

368,878,326

1,267,279,274

94

December 31, 2008
C/V of F/Cy
LBP’000

2,364,142,440
33,107,897

2,397,250,337

1,221,682,738
22,263,384

1,243,946,122
3,641,196,459

December 31, 2007
C/V of F/Cy
LBP’000

2,678,974,603
45,365,517

2,724,340,120

1,305,561,968
26,599,384

1,332,161,352

4,056,501,472

Total
LBP’000

3,894,639,015
66,831,517

3,961,470,532

1,355,806,956
25,825,240

1,381,632,196
5,343,102,728

Total
LBP’000

3,552,577,144
70,163,924

3,622,741,068
1,667,355,802

33,683,876

1,701,039,678

5,323,780,746
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A. Available-for-sale investment securities
December 31, 2008

Equity securities:
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities at cost
Cumulative Preferred shares issued by a Lebanese Bank
Convertible preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank
Non-cumulative preferred shares issued by
a Lebanese bank
Debt securities:
Lebanese Government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by the
Central Bank of Lebanon
Corporate Debt Securities
Other government bonds
Less: Deferred tax

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

LBP Base Accounts

Fair Value
LBP’000

Cumulative
Change in
Fair Value
LBP’000

Accrued
Interest
Receivable
LBP’000

10,304,162
-

11,388,902
-

1,084,740
-

-

10,304,162

11,388,902

1,084,740

-

1,453,983,724

1,470,187,192

16,203,468

32,379,091

47,605,163
1,501,588,887
1,511,893,049

48,920,481
1,519,107,673
1,530,496,575

1,315,318
17,518,786
18,603,526
(2,790,529)
15,812,997

1,344,529
33,723,620
33,723,620

F/Cy Base Accounts

Equity securities:
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities at cost
Cumulative Preferred shares issued by a Lebanese Bank
Convertible preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank
Non-cumulative preferred shares issued by
a Lebanese bank
Debt securities:
Lebanese Government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by the
Central Bank of Lebanon
Corporate Debt Securities
Other government bonds
Less: Deferred tax

Accrued
Cumulative
Fair Value investment
Interest
Amortized
Cost
Change securities
in
A. Available-for-sale
Receivable
Fair Value
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000
292,675,773
8,538,086
6,030,000
4,543,228

489,909,770
8,198,401
6,030,000
4,543,228

197,233,997
(339,685)
-

-

31,783,678
343,570,765

31,783,678
540,465,077

196,894,312

-

1,205,992,116

1,127,999,222

(77,992,894)

520,254,364
114,032,672
69,902,056
1,910,181,208
2,253,751,973

515,430,277
109,590,368
70,657,496
1,823,677,363
2,364,142,440

(4,824,087)
(4,442,304)
755,440
(86,503,845)
110,390,467
(22,139,882)
88,250,585

25,790,534
5,650,488
1,666,875
33,107,897
33,107,897
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December 31, 2007

Equity securities:
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities at cost
Cumulative Preferred shares issued by a Lebanese Bank
Convertible preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank
Non-cumulative preferred shares issued by
a Lebanese bank
Debt securities:
Lebanese Government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by the
Central Bank of Lebanon
Corporate Debt Securities
Less: Deferred tax

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

LBP Base Accounts

Fair Value
LBP’000

Cumulative
Change in
Fair Value
LBP’000

22,652
10,095,407
-

62,890
11,180,147
-

40,238
1,084,740
-

-

10,118,059

11,243,037

1,124,978

-

793,766,984

803,658,621

9,891,637

17,319,428

57,219,266
850,986,250
861,104,309

58,700,883
862,359,504
873,602,541

1,481,617
11,373,254
12,498,232
(1,874,735)
10,623,497

7,478,979
24,798,407
24,798,407

F/Cy Base Accounts

Debt securities:
Lebanese Government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by the
Central Bank of Lebanon
Corporate Debt Securities
Less: Deferred tax
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Accrued
Interest
Receivable
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

Cumulative
Change in
Fair Value
LBP’000

199,468,416
4,926,227
6,030,000
4,543,228

601,771,773
4,926,227
6,030,000
4,543,228

402,303,357
-

-

31,783,678
246,751,549

31,783,678
649,054,906

402,303,357

-

1,472,222,457

1,366,484,034

(105,738,423)

35,196,079

527,934,453
153,569,025
2,153,725,935
2,400,477,484

508,604,710
154,830,953
2,029,919,697
2,678,974,603

(19,329,743)
1,261,928
(123,806,238)
278,497,119
(42,265,167)
236,231,952

5,858,397
4,311,041
45,365,517
45,365,517

Amortized Cost
LBP’000
Equity securities:
Quoted equity securities
Unquoted equity securities at cost
Cumulative Preferred shares issued by a Lebanese Bank
Convertible preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank
Non-cumulative preferred shares issued by
a Lebanese bank

Accrued
Interest
Receivable
LBP’000
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Available-for-sale debt securities are segregated over their remaining periods to maturity as follows:
Lebanese Pounds Base Accounts
Contractual Maturity
Lebanese Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
Total Lebanese Pounds Base Accounts 2008

Contractual Maturity
Lebanese Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
Total Lebanese Pounds Base Accounts 2007

Nominal
Value
LBP’000

December 31, 2008
Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

332,270,000
1,121,234,450
1,453,504,450

332,251,064
1,121,732,660
1,453,983,724

336,334,456
1,133,852,736
1,470,187,192

47,000,000
47,000,000
1,500,504,450

47,605,163
47,605,163
1,501,588,887

48,920,481
48,920,481
1,519,107,673

Nominal
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

146,634,480
641,144,450
5,100,000
792,878,930

146,660,926
642,010,975
5,095,083
793,766,984

148,124,054
650,751,787
4,782,780
803,658,621

9,000,000
47,000,000
56,000,000
848,878,930

9,119,985
48,099,281
57,219,266
850,986,250

9,287,661
49,413,222
58,700,883
862,359,504

December 31, 2007
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Foreign Currency Base Accounts
Contractual Maturity

Lebanese Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
Beyond 10 years

Contractual Maturity

Lebanese Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
Beyond 10 years

Nominal Value
LBP’000
79,648,988
232,983,940
155,513,515
328,814,393
390,413,104
1,187,373,940
Nominal Value
LBP’000
253,502,708
309,883,994
111,245,555
380,830,680
390,113,111
1,445,576,048

December 31, 2008
Amortized Cost
LBP’000
81,035,940
233,443,763
156,518,938
344,830,085
390,163,390
1,205,992,116

December 31, 2007

Fair Value
LBP’000
79,831,230
225,337,242
145,478,239
317,026,699
360,325,812
1,127,999,222

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

256,852,249
314,036,295
111,301,024
400,182,694
389,850,195
1,472,222,457

251,712,860
298,893,176
103,078,317
361,385,790
351,413,891
1,366,484,034

Foreign Currency Base Accounts
Contractual Maturity

Foreign Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
5 years to 10 years

Contractual Maturity

Foreign Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
5 years to 10 years
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Nominal Value
LBP’000
42,514,374
26,687,906
5,069,400
74,271,680
Nominal Value
LBP’000
-

December 31, 2008
Amortized Cost
LBP’000
40,325,586
24,043,866
5,532,604
69,902,056

December 31, 2007
Amortized Cost
LBP’000
-

Fair Value
LBP’000
40,455,800
24,605,476
5,596,220
70,657,496
Fair Value
LBP’000
-
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Foreign Currency Base Accounts
Contractual Maturity

Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon:
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years

Available-for-sale debt securities are segregated over their
remaining
periods
to maturity as follows:
Contractual
Maturity
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon:
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years

Nominal Value
LBP’000
32,411,250
261,177,390
218,135,250
511,723,890
Nominal Value
LBP’000
32,411,250
261,177,390
218,195,550
511,784,190

December 31, 2008
Amortized Cost
LBP’000
32,411,250
261,177,390
226,665,724
520,254,364

December 31, 2007
Amortized Cost
LBP’000
32,411,250
261,177,390
234,345,813
527,934,453

Fair Value
LBP’000
31,816,350
258,491,521
225,122,406
515,430,277
Fair Value
LBP’000
31,097,523
257,020,584
220,486,603
508,604,710

Foreign Currency Base Accounts
Contractual Maturity

Corporate debt securities:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years

Contractual Maturity
Corporate debt securities:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years

Nominal Value
LBP’000
90,930,798
8,849,025
15,064,682
114,844,505

Nominal Value
LBP’000
128,137,500
15,075,000
10,356,525
153,569,025

December 31, 2008
Amortized Cost
LBP’000
90,930,798
8,849,025
14,252,849
114,032,672

December 31, 2007
Amortized Cost
LBP’000
128,137,500
15,075,000
10,356,525
153,569,025

Fair Value
LBP’000
90,868,991
6,443,507
12,277,870
109,590,368

Fair Value
LBP’000
129,776,906
14,547,375
10,506,672
154,830,953
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Available-for-sale equity securities are segregated over their remaining periods to maturity as follows:
Foreign Currency Base Accounts
Contractual Maturity
Cumulative preferred shares issued by a Lebanese Bank:
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years

Contractual Maturity
Cumulative preferred shares issued by a Lebanese Bank:
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years

December 31, 2008

Nominal Value
LBP’000
6,030,000
6,030,000
Nominal Value
LBP’000

Amortized Cost
LBP’000
6,030,000
6,030,000

December 31, 2007
Amortized Cost
LBP’000

6,030,000
6,030,000

6,030,000
6,030,000

Fair Value
LBP’000
6,030,000
6,030,000
Fair Value
LBP’000
6,030,000
6,030,000

Foreign Currency Base Accounts
Contractual Maturity
Convertible preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank:
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years

Contractual Maturity
Convertible preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank:
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years

December 31, 2008

Nominal Value
LBP’000
1,516,922
3,026,306
4,543,228
Nominal Value
LBP’000

Amortized Cost
LBP’000
1,516,922
3,026,306
4,543,228

December 31, 2007
Amortized Cost
LBP’000

1,516,922
3,026,306
4,543,228

1,516,922
3,026,306
4,543,228

Fair Value
LBP’000
1,516,922
3,026,306
4,543,228
Fair Value
LBP’000
1,516,922
3,026,306
4,543,228

Foreign Currency Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Nominal Value
LBP’000

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

Total Foreign Currency Base Accounts 2008

6,156,178
25,627,500
31,783,678
1,930,570,921

6,156,178
25,627,500
31,783,678
1,952,538,114

6,156,178
25,627,500
31,783,678
1,866,034,269

Contractual Maturity

Nominal Value
LBP’000

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

6,156,178
25,627,500
31,783,678
2,196,082,841

6,156,178
25,627,500
31,783,678
2,072,276,603

Contractual Maturity
Non-cumulative preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank:
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years

Non-cumulative preferred shares issued by a Lebanese bank:
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
Total Foreign Currency Base Accounts 2007
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6,156,178
25,627,500
31,783,678
2,153,286,169

December 31, 2007
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The fair value of Lebanese government bonds and certificates of deposits was calculated using a valuation model which
takes into account observable market data using a discounted cash flow model based on current interest yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity and credit spreads.
The available-for-sale certificates of deposit issued by the Central bank of Lebanon include certificates of deposit
maturing on April 25, 2015 which are puttable at a price of 91.63 in year 2012. The Group is providing over time for the
difference between the par value and the redemption value in year 2012 by recognizing the effective yield applicable for
the period until 2012. This cost which is expected to increase year by year, is reflected as an adjustment to the carrying
book value.
As of December 31, the Group has the following credit linked notes classified under corporate debt securities:

Maturity
April 20, 2009

Nominal Amount
LBP’000

April 30, 2009

August 30, 2009

Maturity
February 9, 2008

February 20, 2008
August 20, 2008

August 30, 2009

November 20, 2008

December 31, 2008
45,225,000
30,150,000
15,075,000

90,450,000
Nominal Amount
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

37,687,500

37,687,500

37,687,500

15,075,000

15,075,000

143,212,500

Fair Value
LBP’000

45,193,343
30,336,930
14,857,920

90,388,193
Fair Value
LBP’000

38,629,688

36,764,156

38,629,688

14,857,920

14,547,375

143,428,827

The above credit linked notes earn interest at Libor plus a margin. Furthermore, the underlying assets of the credit linked
notes consist of Lebanese Government bonds and certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon.
The Group entered into a total return swap transaction with a non-resident related financial institution established under
the Suisse law and operating out of Geneva.
Coupled with a promissory note that pays a pre-agreed fixed interest rate, the transaction is composed of a spot and a
forward contract to sell and buy back the economic benefits of a portfolio of Lebanese traded equity securities classified
as available-for-sale. The transaction originated and matured in 2008.
Interest income in the amount of LBP 33.97 billion (LBP 24.69 billion as at December 31, 2007) on the promissory note
was recorded under “Interest Income on note receivable” net of transaction cost in the amount of LBP 361.8 million (LBP
361.8 million as at December 31, 2007) in the consolidated income statement.
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Dividends received during the years 2008 and 2007 on available-for-sale securities in the amount of LBP 33.37 billion and
LBP 27.61 billion respectively, are reflected under “Other operating income” in the consolidated income statement (Note 38).

B. Held-to-maturity investment securities
Lebanese Pounds Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

Lebanese Government bonds
Foreign government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon

123,991,559
10,132,659
134,124,218

Fair Value
LBP’000

124,806,586
10,408,613
135,215,199

Accrued Interest
Receivable
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

Lebanese Government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon
Certificates of deposit issued by banks
Corporate debt securities

351,553,038
10,240,796
361,793,834

Fair Value
LBP’000

356,767,032
10,513,737
367,280,769

3,275,786
286,070
3,561,856

Accrued Interest
Receivable
LBP’000

6,804,320
280,172
7,084,492

F/Cy Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Lebanese Government bonds
Foreign government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank of Lebanon

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

1,102,554,576
29,586,410
89,541,752
1,221,682,738

1,040,237,881
29,559,572
92,185,425
1,161,982,878

Amortized Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

1,209,434,796
90,850,922
1,507,500
3,768,750
1,305,561,968

1,127,159,727
90,201,522
1,470,114
3,771,675
1,222,603,038

Accrued Interest
Receivable
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

Lebanese Government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon
Certificates of deposit issued by banks
Corporate debt securities

20,245,142
2,018,242
22,263,384

Accrued Interest
Receivable
LBP’000

24,181,729
2,075,076
31,021
311,558
26,599,384

Held-to-maturity Lebanese government bonds include securities in foreign currencies amounting to LBP 451 billion (USD
299,360,000) (LBP 291 billion as at December 31, 2007) pledged against a long term borrowing in the amount of LBP
218.59 billion (USD 145,000,000) (LBP 143.2 billion as at December 31, 2007) granted to the Group and reflected under
“Borrowings from banks and financial institutions” in the consolidated balance sheet (Note 24).
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Held-to-maturity investments denominated in LBP are segregated over remaining period to maturity as follows:
Lebanese Pounds Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Contractual Maturity
Lebanese Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon:
1 year to 3 years
Total Lebanese Pounds Base Accounts 2008

Contractual Maturity
Lebanese Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon:
1 year to 3 years
Total Lebanese Pounds Base Accounts 2007

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

118,000,000
6,000,000
124,000,000

117,994,251
5,997,308
123,991,559

118,826,386
5,980,200
124,806,586

10,000,000
10,000,000
134,000,000

10,132,659
10,132,659
134,124,218

10,408,613
10,408,613
135,215,199

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

227,500,000
118,000,000
6,000,000
351,500,000

227,575,083
117,981,850
5,996,105
351,553,038

230,848,932
120,291,300
5,626,800
356,767,032

10,000,000
10,000,000
361,500,000

10,240,796
10,240,796
361,793,834

10,513,737
10,513,737
367,280,769

December 31, 2007

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Held-to-maturity investments denominated in foreign currencies are segregated over remaining period to maturity as
follows:
F/Cy Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Contractual Maturity
Lebanese Government bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
Beyond 10 years

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

82,101,909
281,980,380
112,346,400
302,573,340
304,579,069
1,083,581,098

82,502,164
283,298,393
114,074,145
318,134,815
304,545,059
1,102,554,576

82,332,073
271,424,302
104,426,191
300,948,872
281,106,443
1,040,237,881

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

107,447,063
270,246,766
177,178,050
325,185,840
304,579,069
1,184,636,788

108,870,042
272,872,434
178,722,161
344,427,874
304,542,285
1,209,434,796

106,604,939
261,488,731
167,021,453
317,679,779
274,364,825
1,127,159,727

December 31, 2007

Contractual Maturity
Lebanese Government Bonds:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
3 years to 5 years
5 years to 10 years
Beyond 10 years
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F/Cy Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Contractual Maturity
Foreign Government Bonds:
Up to 1 year

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

31,808,000
31,808,000

29,586,410
29,586,410

December 31, 2007

Contractual Maturity
Foreign Government Bonds:
Up to 1 year

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

-

Fair Value
LBP’000
29,559,572
29,559,572
Fair Value
LBP’000

-

-

F/Cy Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Contractual Maturity
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon:
Up to 1 year
1 year to 3 years
5 years to 10 years

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

27,888,750
62,561,250
90,450,000

27,888,750
61,653,002
89,541,752

December 31, 2007

Contractual Maturity
Certificates of deposit issued by the Central Bank of Lebanon:
Up to 1 year
1 year to 3 years
5 years to 10 years

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

27,888,750
62,561,250
90,450,000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

27,888,750
62,962,172
90,850,922

Fair Value
LBP’000
27,620,281
64,565,144
92,185,425
Fair Value
LBP’000
26,983,379
63,218,143
90,201,522

F/Cy Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Contractual Maturity
Certificates of deposit issued by banks:
Up to one year

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

-

-

December 31, 2007

Contractual Maturity
Certificates of deposit issued by banks:
Up to one year
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Redemption
Value
LBP’000

1,507,500
1,507,500

Fair Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

1,507,500
1,507,500

Fair Value
LBP’000
1,470,114
1,470,114
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F/Cy Base Accounts
December 31, 2008

Contractual Maturity
Corporate debt securities:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years
Total Foreign Currency Base Accounts 2008

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

1,205,839,098

1,221,682,738

1,161,982,878

Redemption
Value
LBP’000

Amortized
Cost
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

Contractual Maturity
Corporate debt securities:
Up to one year
1 year to 3 years

753,750
3,015,000
3,768,750
1,280,363,038

Total Foreign Currency Base Accounts 2007

753,750
753,750
3,015,000
3,017,925
3,768,750
3,771,675
1,305,561,968 1,222,603,038

The option on the held-to-maturity certificates of deposit maturing on April 25, 2015 to redeem in year 2012, is treated in
the same manner as described under available-for-sale certificates of deposit above.

12. CUSTOMERS’ ACCEPTANCE LIABILITY
Acceptances represent documentary credits which the Group has committed to settle on behalf of its customers against
commitments by those customers (acceptances). The commitments resulting from these acceptances are stated as a
liability in the balance sheet for the same amount.

13. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND OTHER INVESTMENTS
This caption consists of the following:
December 31,

Investments in Associates
CreditCard Services Company S.A.L.
Other Investments
Ciment de Sibline S.A.L.
Light Metal Products S.A.L.
Long-term loan to Light Metal Products S.A.L.
Al Fanadeq S.A.L.
Beverly Hotel S.A.L.
Société Hotelière “Le Gabriel” S.A.L.
Sidem S.A.L.

Country of
Incorporation

Interest Held
%

2008

2007

Carrying Value Carrying Value
LBP’000
LBP’000

Lebanon

40.00

21,060,027
21,060,027

13,236,191
13,236,191

Lebanon
Lebanon

19.36
60.83

Lebanon
Lebanon
Lebanon
Lebanon

48.00
99.00
32.00
20.00

27,096,403
6,633,000
4,032,452
1,153,539
3,111,023
14,652,298
56,678,715
77,738,742

27,096,403
6,633,000
3,869,719
1,153,539
2,810,652
4,168,238
13,296,053
59,027,604
72,263,795
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The investment in CreditCard Services Company S.A.L. is reflected as at December 31, 2008 and 2007 using the equity
method whereby the Group accounts for its share in the net income of the associate net of deferred dividend tax, and its
share of the change in fair value of the associate's portfolio of available-for-sale securities, and net of dividends received. In
this connection, the Group recorded its share in the net income of the associate in the amount of LBP 7.24 billion for the
year 2008 (LBP 3.88 billion for the year 2007) net of deferred tax liability in the amount of LBP 724.56 million as at December
31, 2008 (LBP 388 million as at December 31, 2007), under “Other operating income” (Note 38).
During the first half of 2007, the Group sold shares of Ciment de Sibline S.A.L. which resulted in a gain in the amount of
LBP 11.3 billion recorded under “Other operating income” in the consolidated income statement (Note 38). This sale
brought down the equity stake of the Group to 19.36%.
Other investments are stated at cost which is not materially different from their fair values.

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
During the first half of 2008, the Group sold its investment property at a loss of LBP 1.34 billion which was recorded under
“Other operating income” in the consolidated income statement.

15. ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF LOANS
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans have been acquired through enforcement of security over loans and advances.
The movement of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans during 2008 and 2007 was as follows:

Gross amount
Balance January 1, 2007
Effect of subsidiary acquisition
Additions due to settlement of loans
Additional fees/charges paid
Disposals
Effect of exchange rate
Balance December 31, 2007
Additions due to settlement of loans
Additional fees/charges paid
Disposal
Effect of exchange rate
Balance December 31, 2008

Impairment allowance
Balance January 1, 2007
Additions
Write-back
Effect of exchange rate changes
Balance December 31, 2007
Additions
Write-back
Effect of exchange rate changes
Balance December 31, 2008
Carrying amount
December 31, 2008
December 31, 2007

LBP’000
101,202,110
377,716
15,042,195
613,286
(19,954,252)
191,565
97,472,620
7,668,021
26,012
(17,153,974)
(333,678)
87,679,001

LBP’000
(14,470,092)
(3,739,387)
2,304,450
(1,752)
(15,906,781)
(3,119,425)
2,846,555
9,316
(16,170,335)
71,508,666
81,565,839
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During the year 2008, the Group sold assets acquired in satisfaction of loans of aggregate net book value LBP 14.31 billion
(LBP 17.65 billion in 2007) for a total consideration of LBP 20.53 billion (LBP 20.58 billion in 2007), thus resulting in net gain
on sale in the amount of LBP 3.37 billion recorded under “Other operating income” and write-back of impairment provision
in the amount of LBP 2.85 billion recorded under “provision for impairment of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans” in
the accompanying consolidated income statement (LBP 634 million and LBP 2.3 billion, respectively in 2007). The Group
collected LBP 16.96 billion (LBP 18.27 billion in 2007) during 2008 and LBP 3.57 billion remains outstanding as at
December 31, 2008 and is recorded under “Other assets” (LBP 2.35 billion in 2007).
Included in the disposals of the year 2008, are disposals in the aggregate net book value of USD 1.32 million to a related
party for a total consideration of USD 2.2 million. The Group collected USD 0.5 million (LBP 750 million) during 2008 and
the remaining balance of USD 1.7 million (LBP 2.56 billion) was recorded under “Other assets” to be collected over 10
equal annual installments starting April 17, 2009. This receivable earns interest at an annual rate of three-months LIBOR
+ one basis point.
Provision for impairment in the amount of LBP 273 million for the year 2008 is reflected under “provision for impairment of
assets acquired in satisfaction of debts” in the consolidated income statement (LBP 1.43 billion for year 2007).
The acquisition of assets in settlement of loans requires the approval of the banking regulatory authorities and these should be
liquidated within 2 years. In case of default of liquidation, a regulatory reserve should be appropriated from the yearly net profits
over a period of time.

16. GOODWILL
The goodwill balance outstanding as of the balance sheet date consists of the following:

Goodwill from Subsidiaries:
BankMed (Suisse) S.A.
Saudi Lebanese Bank S.A.L.
Turkland Bank A.S.
Med Finance Holding Ltd.
Cumulative effect of exchange rate changes up to balance sheet date
Less: Accumulated amortization up to December 31, 2003
Goodwill from Business Combination:
Allied Bank S.A.L.
Goodwill (net)

Percentage of
Acquired
Ownership %
100
25
41
100

December 31,

2008

2007

LBP’000

LBP’000

30,412,799
31,765,458
80,871,312
616,568
143,666,137
17,955,195
(11,285,880)
150,335,452

30,412,799
31,765,458
76,862,623
616,568
139,657,448
14,658,742
(10,516,708)
143,799,482

23,068,898
173,404,350

23,068,898
166,868,380

On January 28, 2007, the Group acquired an equity stake of 41% in Turkland Bank A.S. (formerly MNG Bank A.S.) in
accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated June 26, 2006 for a total consideration of USD 71,852,867
(LBP 108.32 billion). The excess of the purchase price over the net asset value of the acquired interest in the amount of
LBP 76.86 billion was recognized as goodwill.
During the first half of 2008, an amount of LBP 4 billion was settled to the previous shareholder of Turkland Bank A.S.
representing non recurring income received by the subsidiary bank to be refunded by the Group as a price adjustment
thus increasing goodwill.
The change in accumulated amortization is due to exchange rate fluctuation.
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be
impaired. Goodwill is considered to be impaired when the carrying value exceeds the recoverable amounts of the merged
business which are determined from value in use calculations. The value in use is determined as a multiple of the
contribution generated by the business units and customers’ accounts acquired by the parent bank.

December 31, 2007

December 31, 2008

Net book value

Balance December 31, 2008

Effect of exchange rate changes

Write-off on disposal

Additions

Balance December 31, 2007

Effect of exchange rate changes

Write-off on disposal

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary

Balance January 1, 2007

Accumulated depreciation

Balance December 31, 2008

Effect of exchange rate changes

Transfers

Disposals / retirements

76,611

140,047,907

139,767,470

(16,175,800)

-

78,916

(1,368,144)

(14,886,572)

(130,542)

21,623,074

24,996,067

(74,083,171)

1,384,810

1,670,603

(9,022,882)

(68,115,702)

(909,887)

126,628

(7,457,400)

(1,505,574)

1,376,955

(55,816,718)
(4,058,325)

99,079,238

(1,582,580)

963,231

(2,284,492)

12,244,303

89,738,776

932,367

(14,033,251)

(594,160)

155,943,270

-

-

(337,556)

154,934,479

1,346,347

Balance December 31, 2007

Additions

1,352,411

1,175,793

(416,604)

6,223,728

(9,792,423)

150,680

4,221,719

78,700,955

5,524,627

14,795,660

18,713,056

(38,489,259)

1,581,060

694,925

(5,705,294)

(35,059,950)

(1,094,797)

1,872,731

(4,409,364)

(4,779,805)

(26,648,715)

57,202,315

(2,138,007)

901,528

(658,416)

9,241,600

49,855,610

1,309,696

368,580

(1,954,082)

5,449,875

5,992,528

38,689,013

Improvements
Furniture and
and
Equipment
Installations
LBP’000
LBP’000

156,523,391

Effect of exchange rate changes

Transfers

Disposals / retirements

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary

Balance January 1, 2007

Cost

Real Estate
Properties
LBP’000

17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

705,776

976,617

(824,523)

20,292

226,892

(166,247)

(905,460)

(104,378)

530,490

(174,591)

(674,226)

(482,755)

1,801,140

(51,535)

-

(344,934)

586,373

1,611,236

108,389

-

(536,500)

193,536

509,280

1,336,531

Vehicles
LBP’000

-

-

(206,402)

-

-

-

(206,402)

-

19,111

-

-

(225,513)

206,402

-

-

-

-

206,402

-

-

(19,111)

-

-

225,513

Establishment
Costs
LBP’000

-

-

(202,199)

-

-

-

(202,199)

-

-

-

-

(202,199)

202,199

-

-

-

-

202,199

-

-

-

-

-

202,199

Key Money
LBP’000

5,162,848

2,745,480

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,745,480

-

(1,864,759)

(1,811,131)

1,258,522

5,162,848

-

(1,797,602)

-

3,056,389

-

3,904,061

Advance
payments on
capital
expenditure
LBP’000
-

647,256

2,143,066

(3,138,237)

888,558

-

(356,813)

(3,669,982)

(649,286)

168,572

(260,908)

-

(2,928,360)

5,281,303

(981,193)

-

(8,946)

1,954,204

4,317,238

2,592,160

-

(2,120,662)

626,666

3,219,074

Other
LBP’000

(2,888,890)

4,094,487

(13,807,837)

(97,600,622)
(12,843,405)

321,061,347

(4,753,315)

-

(5,445,475)

26,631,349

304,628,788

6,118,405

-

(14,839,382)

15,700,874

19,467,228

278,181,663

Total
LBP’000

3,874,720

2,671,336

(16,619,380)

(1,400,000)
(1,400,000)

187,941,756
181,582,521

- (133,119,591)

-

-

-

- (123,046,267)

-

-

-

-

(1,400,000)

-

-

-

-

(1,400,000)

-

-

-

-

-

(1,400,000)

Allowance for
impairment
loss on property & equipment
LBP’000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18. OTHER ASSET
2008

Receivables on properties sold with deferred payment (Note 15)

Change in fair value of derivatives

December 31,

LBP'000

127,355,152
975,392

2007

LBP'000

157,281,987

515,755

Deferred tax asset

2,085,412

2,053,749

Accrued income

1,024,194

790,477

Deferred charges
Prepayments

Due from personnel

Regulatory blocked deposit

255,630

16,513,083

10,203,466

1,507,500

1,507,500

2,604,629

Sundry accounts receivable

4,819,257

Intangible asset

2,537,682

Positive fair value of derivatives

Receivable from sale of investment
Other

18,631

132,406

1,813,667

2,607,722

6,264,944

1,055,184

11,232,544

12,590,640

202,547,221

238,396,386

31,504,340

41,692,664

Receivable from sale of investment is due from the sale, during the first half of the year 2006, of the Group’s investment
in “Idarat Investment S.A.L. (Holding)” of net book value of LBP 13.82 billion as at December 31, 2005 for a consideration
of USD 8,700,000, payable over a ten year period. An amount of USD 1,248,893 was collected up to December 31, 2008
(an amount of USD 348,000 up to December 31, 2007).
During the year 2006, assets acquired in satisfaction of loans in the aggregate amount of USD 124.95 million were sold
to affiliated companies for a total consideration of USD 125.03 million. The Group collected 25% of the selling price at
the date of the contract and the remaining balance of USD 93.77 million (LBP 141.4 billion) was recorded under
“Receivables on properties sold with deferred payment” to be collected over three equal annual installments starting
December 30, 2007. This receivable earns interest at an annual rate of three-months LIBOR plus a margin. During 2008,
the Group collected an amount of LBP 32.4 billion related to the above sales.
Additions to intangible assets amounted to LBP 2.5 billion in 2008 (LBP 486 million in 2007). The amortization of the
intangible assets amounted to LBP 941 million (LBP 309 million in 2007) and is recorded under “Depreciation and
amortization” in the consolidated income statement.
The regulatory blocked deposit represents a non-interest earning compulsory deposit placed with the Lebanese Treasury
upon the inception of banks according to Article 132 of the Lebanese Code of Money and Credit, and is refundable in
case of cease of operations.
“Other” includes an investment in a fund acquired in 2008 in the amount of USD 15,000,000 (LBP 22.6 billion) which was
fully provided for as at December 31, 2008. Impairment provision was recorded in the consolidated income statement
under “Other provisions”.
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19. DEPOSITS FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Deposits from banks and financial institutions are reflected at amortized cost and consist of the following:

LBP
LBP’000

Current deposits of banks and financial institutions

December 31, 2008

464,060

Current deposits – related parties

-

Overnight deposits

18,500,000

Money market deposits

192,801,210

192,801,210

2,218

11,470,691

11,472,909

18,966,278
LBP
LBP’000

953,841

Money market deposits – related parties
Accrued interest payable

90,450,000
3,224,536

697,020,390

December 31, 2007
C/V of F/Cy
LBP’000

16,523,266

90,450,000
3,224,536

715,986,668
Total
LBP’000

17,477,107

88,500,000

562,846,791

651,346,791

-

30,943,090

30,943,090

94,007,592

634,881,517

728,889,109

4,500,000

Borrowings under sale and repurchase agreements (Repos)

5,556,097

18,500,000

-

Money market deposits

-

311,333,064

Other short term borrowings

Current deposits of banks and financial institutions

5,556,097

82,648,852

311,333,064

-

Accrued interest payable

82,184,792

Total
LBP’000

-

Money market deposits – related parties
Other short term borrowings – related parties

C/V of F/Cy
LBP’000

53,751

15,075,000
9,493,370

19,575,000
9,547,121

The maturities of money market and overnight deposits are as follows:
December 31, 2008

1st quarter of year 2009
2nd quarter of year 2009
2nd half of year 2009
Year 2010

LBP Base Accounts Amount
LBP’000

18,500,000
18,500,000

F/Cy Base Accounts Amount
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

1st quarter of year 2008
2nd Half of year 2008
Year 2009
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LBP Base Accounts Amount
LBP’000

93,000,000
93,000,000

21,570,116
18,411,520
60,301,428
301,500,000
401,783,064

F/Cy Base Accounts Amount
LBP’000

201,046,791
15,075,000
361,800,000
577,921,791
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Short term borrowings as at December 31, 2008, mature during the first quarter of 2009 and carry an average interest
rate of 4.98%.
Borrowings under sale and repurchase agreements (Repos) arose from the following:

Gross Amount
LBP’000
Held for trading foreign government bonds
Held-to-maturity corporate bonds

31,090,616
3,015,000
34,105,616

December 31, 2007

Balance Subject to
Repurchase Agreement
LBP’000

Balance of Associated Liability
LBP’000

31,090,616
3,015,000
34,105,616

28,338,130
2,604,960
30,943,090

The maturities of borrowings under sale and repurchase agreements (Repos) are as follows:
December 31, 2007

1st quarter of year 2008
Year 2009

F/Cy Base Accounts Amount LBP'000

28,338,130
2,604,960
30,943,090

During the first half of 2008, the borrowing under sale and repurchase agreements (Repos) amounting to LBP 2.6 billion
and outstanding as at December 31, 2007 was settled prior to its maturity due to the early call of the held-to-maturity
security subject to the repurchase agreement (Note 11).
Accrued interest payable is segregated between the different categories as follows:

Current deposits
Overnight Deposits
Money market deposits
Borrowings under sale & repurchase agreements
Other short term borrowings

Current deposits
Overnight Deposits
Money market deposits
Borrowings under sale & repurchase agreements
Other short term borrowings

Non-Related
LBP’000

December 31, 2008

1,901
6,358,609
78,526
6,439,036

Non-Related
LBP’000

Related Parties
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

1,583
9,450,132
26,498
9,478,213

1,242,558
3,791,315
5,033,873

Related Parties
LBP’000

68,908
68,908

111

13

20. CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
This section consists of the following:
December 31, 2007

December 31, 2008

C/V of F/Cy
Customers' deposits designated at FVTPL
Accrued interest payable

LBP'000

237,421,333
2,577,275

239,998,608

C/V of F/Cy

Total

Total

LBP'000

LBP'000

237,421,333
2,577,275

153,200,828

153,200,828

155,797,027

155,797,027

2,596,199

239,998,608

LBP'000

2,596,199

Deposits from customers which are matched with an embedded derivative have been designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the underlying assets vary from product to product. An accounting mismatch
would arise if customers’ deposits were accounted for at amortized cost, because the related derivative is
measured at fair value with movements in the fair value taken through the income statement. By designating
those deposits from customers at fair value, the movements in the fair value of these deposits are recorded
in the income statement.
Customers’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss includes deposits where the underlying monetary
value is invested in products yielding variable returns depending on the performance of baskets of
currencies, commodities, global indices or Lebanese Government bonds all hedged through an effective
over-the-counter call option.
The changes in the fair value recognized on these deposits and the related derivative acquired for hedging
are broken down as follows:

Customers’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss
Related derivative contracts (held for hedging)

Customers’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss
Related derivative contracts (held for hedging)

112

Initial Value
LBP’000

December 31, 2008

240,188,373
6,599,889

Initial Value
LBP’000

Fair Value
LBP’000

237,421,333

December 31, 2007

151,810,043
(5,517,273)

928,051

Fair Value
LBP’000

153,200,828
(5,842,844)
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21. CUSTOMERS’ ACCOUNTS AT AMORTIZED COST
December 31, 2008

LBP Base Accounts

Current/demand
deposits
Term deposits

Collateral against
loans & advances

Margins for irrevocable
import letters of credit
Margins on letters
of guarantee

Other margins

Accrued interest
payable

Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Non-Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

F/Cy Base Accounts

Total
LBP’000

Term deposits

Collateral against
loans & advances

Margins for irrevocable
import letters of credit
Margins on letters
of guarantee

Other margins

Accrued interest
payable

Non-Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

Total
Cutomers’
Accounts
LBP’000

83,091,563

47,398,529

130,490,092

158,951,353

716,260,343

4,281,297

-

4,281,297

763,306,208

-

763,306,208

767,587,505

-

-

-

4,944,190

1,250,724

6,194,914

6,194,914

1,855,934

582,277

2,438,211

9,991,823

4,916,464

14,908,287

17,346,498

1,523,066,420

37,660

10,169,924
1,622,502,798

- 1,523,066,420 5,353,069,932

135,507

173,167

Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Non-Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

875,211,696 1,005,701,788

- 5,353,069,932 6,876,136,352

5,178,208

10,169,924
56,417,130
48,116,313 1,670,619,111 6,351,858,844

3,544,445

8,722,653

8,895,820

56,417,130
66,587,054
725,971,976 7,077,830,820 8,748,449,931

December 31, 2007

LBP Base Accounts

Current/demand
deposits

Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

F/Cy Base Accounts
Non-Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Total
Cutomers’
Accounts
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

99,374,214

50,792,241

454,495,884

505,288,125

604,662,339

Total
LBP’000

37,563,356

61,810,858

10,966,135

-

10,966,135

593,702,013

-

593,702,013

604,668,148

-

-

-

5,152,220

1,781,540

6,933,760

6,933,760

2,068,346

485,527

2,553,873

125,108

3,632,207

-

8,143,544

79,693,465

959,266,705

26,386

8,143,544

1,018,034,472

-

98,722

959,266,705 5,365,951,816

5,427,545

62,395,107 1,080,429,579 6,104,351,507

- 5,365,951,816 6,325,218,521

26,589,096

2,226,462

30,221,303

7,654,007

10,207,880

-

79,693,465

87,837,009

30,346,411

485,092,982 6,589,444,489 7,669,874,068

Deposits from customers at amortized cost include at December 31, 2008 coded deposit accounts in the aggregate of LBP
25.14 billion (LBP 26.09 billion in 2007). These accounts are subject to the provisions of Article 3 of the Banking Secrecy Law
dated September 3, 1956 which provides that the Bank’s management, in the normal course of business, cannot reveal the
identities of these depositors to third parties.
Deposits from customers at amortized cost at December 31, 2008 include deposits received from non-resident banks and financial
institutions relating to their fiduciary clients for a total amount of LBP 390.58 billion (LBP 245.38 billion in 2007) out of which LBP
204.87 billion are from a related company, a related bank and a subsidiary bank (LBP 70.47 billion in 2007).
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22. RELATED PARTIES’ DEPOSITS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
This section consists of the following:
December 31,

2008

2007

C/V of F/Cy

C/V of F/Cy

LBP'000

Related parties' deposits at fair value through profit or loss

LBP'000

2,723,124

Accrued interest payable

3,009,435

154,457

198,247

2,877,581

3,207,682

The changes in the fair value recognized on these deposits and the related derivative acquired for hedging is broken
down as follows:
Initial Value
LBP’000

Related parties’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, 2008

Fair Value
LBP’000

3,005,829

Related derivative contracts (held for hedging)

431,145

Initial Value
LBP’000

Related parties’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss

105,525

December 31, 2007

Fair Value
LBP’000

3,005,829

Related derivative contracts (held for hedging)

2,723,124

431,145

3,009,435
422,100

23. RELATED PARTIES’ DEPOSITS AT AMORTIZED COST
December 31, 2008

LBP Base Accounts

Current & demand
deposits

Term deposits

Collateral against
loans & advances
Margins for
letters of credit

Margins on letters
of guarantee
Other margins

Accrued interest
payable
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Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Non-Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

F/Cy Base Accounts

Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

952,884

420,013

15,418,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

217,558

9,972

65,725

10,119,512

3,388,113

217,558

-

65,725

20,042,280

-

150
-

420,163

1,372,897

Non-Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

3,388,113

66,280,377

831,587,966

15,418,000 1,283,489,080

150

302

20,462,443 2,191,487,209

5,501,079
-

Total Related
Parties’
Accounts
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000
71,781,456

831,587,966

73,154,353

834,976,079

- 1,283,489,080 1,298,907,080
-

-

-

117,874

118,176

9,972

227,530

-

10,119,512

10,185,237

118,326

5,618,953 2,197,106,162 2,217,568,605
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December 31, 2007

LBP Base Accounts

Current & demand
deposits

Term deposits

Collateral against
loans & advances

Margins on letters
of guarantee
Other margins

Accrued interest
payable

Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Non-Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

3,681,496

754,393

11,165,231
220,025

2,105,775

54,725

17,227,252

Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

Non-Interest
Bearing
LBP’000

Total Related
Parties’
Accounts
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

4,435,889

34,289,521

4,002,654

38,292,175

42,728,064

-

11,165,231

665,121,900

-

665,121,900

676,287,131

-

220,025

2,346

7,538

9,884

229,909

54,725

6,932,066

-

6,932,066

6,986,791

-

-

F/Cy Base Accounts

-

-

754,393

2,105,775 1,981,157,570

-

- 1,981,157,570 1,983,263,345

-

5,223

17,981,645 2,687,503,403

5,223

5,223

4,015,415 2,691,518,818 2,709,500,463

24. BORROWINGS FROM BANKS AND FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
Long term borrowings are reflected at amortized cost and consist of the following:
December 31,

2008

C/V of F/Cy

C/V of F/Cy

LBP'000

Borrowings from a non-resident investment bank

5,484,228

Short term borrowings

2007

LBP'000

6,777,893

-

Long term borrowings

184,012,543

321,061,607

Accrued interest payable

218,587,500

4,008,179

7,974,132

330,554,014

417,352,068

“Long term borrowings” includes as at December 31, 2008 LBP 218.59 billion (LBP 143.2 billion as at December 31, 2007)
granted to the Group against the pledge of held-to-maturity foreign currency Lebanese Government bonds in the amount
of LBP 451 billion (LBP 291.2 billion as at December 31, 2007) and loans to banks in the amount of LBP 75.38 billion
(none in 2007) (Note 8 and 11).
The remaining contractual maturities of the above borrowings are as follows:
December 31, 2008

LBP Base Accounts Amount
Less than 1 year
1 to 3 years
3 to 5 years
5 to 10 years
Beyond 10 years

LBP'000

37,520,492
14,942,094
119,205,570
101,738,304
53,139,375
326,545,835

December 31, 2007

F/CY Base Accounts Amount
LBP'000

187,063,436
12,203,571
49,131,464
102,994,554
57,984,911
409,377,936

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to its borrowings during 2008
and 2007.
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25. CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT
Certificates of deposit consist of the following as at December 31, 2008 and 2007:
2008

C/V of F/Cy
LBP'000

Global certificates of deposit

708,525,000

Discount on issuance of global certificates of deposit

(2,514,258)

Accrued interest payable

10,345,262

716,356,004

2007

C/V of F/Cy
LBP'000

708,525,000
(3,477,742)
10,562,384

715,609,642

Certificates of deposit are reflected at amortized cost.
During 1996, the Group set up a USD 500 million Euro Deposit Program to be issued in series through international
financial institutions. Eleven series had been issued under this program up to December 2005, of which the first eight
series were redeemed. During 2006, the Group redeemed series Nº. 9 in the amount of USD 100 million at its maturity
on October 6, 2006. During 2007, the Group redeemed series Nº. 10 in the amount of USD 100 million at its maturity on
August 6, 2007.
During 2005, the Group augmented the above mentioned program by USD 500,000,000 to become USD 1 billion to be
issued in series through international financial institutions. In this respect, the Group issued series No.12 in the amount
of USD 300 million representing the first series of the above mentioned program after its increase.
The outstanding series are summarized as follows:

Nominal amount of certificates

Issue price
Issue date

Maturity

Fixed rate of interest

Interest payment date

Outstanding amount (in LBP’000)

Series 11

USD 170,000,000

USD 168,218,400
July 19, 2005

Series 12

USD 300,000,000
USD 298,005,000

December 15, 2005

July 19, 2010

December 14, 2012

July & January 19

December & June 15

7.625%

256,275,000

7.625%

452,250,000

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to its certificates of deposit during
2008 and 2007.
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26. OTHER LIABILITIES

2008

Accrued income tax and other taxes

Withheld taxes on staff benefits and payments to non-residents
Withheld tax on interest

December 31,

LBP'000

2007

LBP'000

9,328,918

6,127,240

4,754,183

2,280,804

2,793,502

2,770,069

Deferred tax liability

32,443,729

51,079,747

Checks and incoming payment orders in course of settlement

14,365,433

22,576,395

Accrued expenses

25,591,119

19,443,712

4,252,873

1,190,180

Due to the Social Security National Fund

Blocked capital subscriptions for companies under incorporation
Derivative liabilities held for risk management
Financial guarantee contracts issued
Negative fair value of derivatives

Payable to personnel and directors
Unearned revenues

Sundry accounts payable

1,692,546

1,663,460

6,325,857

15,512,218

-

513,437

9,885,096

3,294,963

559,815

694,662

6,107,039

5,699,076

58,907,473

46,588,884

177,007,583

179,434,847

During 2007, the tax authorities reviewed the tax returns for the years 2003, 2004 and 2005 of BankMed S.A.L. and one
of its subsidiary banks which resulted in additional taxes in the aggregate amount of LBP 1.5 billion reflected in the
consolidated income statement.
During 2008, the tax authorities reviewed the tax returns for the years 2004, 2005 and 2006 of another subsidiary bank
and other subsidiaries which resulted in additional taxes in the aggregate amount of LBP 1.5 billion reflected in the
consolidated income statement.
The tax returns for the years 2006, 2007 and 2008 of BankMed S.A.L. and its remaining subsidiaries remain subject to
examination and final tax assessment by the tax authorities. Management does not expect any material additional tax
liability as a result of the expected tax review.
2008

Income before income tax

Income from subsidiaries and associates
Add: non-deductible expenses

LBP'000

117,023,564

(46,562,900)
70,460,664

5,117,547

2007

LBP'000

70,158,753

(35,560,923)
34,597,830

4,706,028

Less: non-taxable revenues or revenues subject to tax in previous periods

(29,349,175)

(30,519,433)

Less: loss brought forward

(13,246,590)

(22,492,525)

Income tax expense (15%)

4,947,367

-

Taxable income

Over provision of income tax expense
Non-refundable withheld tax

Add: income tax on subsidiaries’ income
Income tax expense

46,229,036
32,982,446

100,000

1,815,719

6,863,086

4,409,852
11,272,938

8,784,425

-

5,818,580

5,818,580

3,694,163
9,512,743
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Deferred tax liability consists of the following:
December 31,

2008

Deferred tax liability on available-for-sale securities

LBP'000

24,779,323

Deferred tax liability on undistributed income of subsidiaries

6,030,000

Deferred tax liability on income from associates (Note 13)

1,634,406

32,443,729

2007

LBP'000

44,139,902
6,030,000
909,845

51,079,747

27. PROVISIONS
Provisions consist of the following:
2008

Provision for staff end-of-service indemnity

December 31,

LBP'000

Provision for contingencies

Provision for loss on foreign currency position
Other

20,993,733

14,380,591
340,805
359,828

36,074,957

2007

LBP'000

13,394,324
7,273,668
412,227
465,824

21,546,043

The movement of provision for staff end-of-service indemnity is as follows:
2008

Balance January 1
Acquisition of subsidiary
Additions
Settlements
Write-back
Transfer from a related company
Effect of exchange rate charges
Balance December 31
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LBP'000

December 31,

13,394,324
9,028,303
(944,733)
45,090
(529,251)
20,993,733

2007

LBP'000

12,346,192
1,106,623
640,630
(930,797)
(42,628
274,304
13,394,324

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The movement of the provision for contingencies was as follows:
December 31,

2008

Balance January 1

Acquisition of subsidiary

Additions

Settlements

LBP'000

7,273,668

LBP'000

5,948,305

-

1,112,989

(8,569)

(1,743,432)

9,067,381

Write-back

(1,624,361)

Balance December 31

14,380,591

Effect of exchange rate changes

2007

(327,528)

1,716,503
(16,380)
255,683

7,273,668

28. SHARE CAPITAL
The capital of the Group as at December 31, 2008 and December 31, 2007 consists of 53,000,000 shares of LBP 10,000
par value each, issued and fully paid.
The Group has set up a special foreign currency position to the extent of USD 71.5 million as of December 31, 2008 and
December 31, 2007 as a hedge of capital within the limits authorized by local banking regulations.

29. RESERVES
Reserves consist of the following as at December 31, 2008 and 2007:
2008

Legal reserve

Reserve for general banking risks
Total

December 31,

LBP'000

30,824,497
59,332,492

90,156,989

2007

LBP'000

25,212,282
41,168,527

66,380,809

Legal reserve is constituted in conformity with the requirements of the Lebanese Money and Credit Law on the basis of
10% of net profit. This reserve is not available for distribution.
The reserve for general banking risks is constituted according to local banking regulations, from net profit, on the basis of a
minimum of 2 per mil and a maximum of 3 per mil of the total risk weighted assets, off-balance sheet risk and global
exchange position as defined for the computation of the solvency ratio at year-end. This reserve should reach 1.25% of total
risk weighted assets, off-balance sheet risk and global exchange position at year 10 and 2% of that amount at year 20. This
reserve is constituted in Lebanese Pounds and in foreign currencies in proportion to the composition of the Group’s total
risk weighted assets and off-balance sheet items. This reserve is not available for distribution.
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30. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES
This caption consists of the following:
December 31, 2008

Unrealized gain/(loss) on
Lebanese Government Bonds

Unrealized gain/(loss) on certificates
of deposit issued by BDL
Unrealized gain/(loss)
on corporate bonds
Unrealized gain/(loss)
on equity securities

Unrealized gain/(loss
on foreign government bonds

Unrealized gain/(loss) from associates

Cumulative
Change in Deferred Tax
Fair Value
LBP’000
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

Net
LBP’000

Cumulative
Change in
Fair Value
LBP’000

Deferred Tax
LBP’000

Net
LBP’000

(62,206,477)

3,970,919

(58,235,558)

(96,263,836)

13,303,232

(82,960,604)

(4,026,422)

603,963

(3,422,459)

(18,365,779)

2,754,867

(15,610,912)

(4,442,304)

360,828

(4,081,476)

1,261,928

56,622

1,318,550

197,734,797

(29,538,129)

168,196,668

403,183,679

(60,077,719)

343,105,960

309,730

(61,946)

-

-

134,818,232

(24,664,365)

295,329,985

(43,962,998)

7,448,908

-

247,784

7,448,908

110,153,867

5,513,993

-

-

5,513,993

251,366,987

The unrealized gain on foreign government bonds is disclosed after deducting the minority share amounting to LBP 445.7
million.
As a result of the acquisition in 2006 of the 25% minority equity stake in Saudi Lebanese Bank S.A.L., a consolidated
subsidiary, cumulative change in fair value equivalent to the minority’s share as at the purchase date, and amounting to
LBP 1.18 billion, is eliminated from the consolidated cumulative change in fair value of available-for-sale securities.

31. MINORITY INTEREST
2008

Capital

December 31,

LBP'000

197,803,361

2007

LBP'000

139,927,990

Reserves and retained earnings

(68,812,528)

(69,044,683)

Currency translation adjustment

(6,987,729)

11,617,176

123,400,619

81,961,860

Cumulative change in fair value of available-for-sale securities

Profit/(loss) for the year
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356,568

1,040,947

-

(538,623)
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32. INTEREST INCOME

2008

Deposits with the central banks

Deposits with banks and financial institutions

Deposits with related party banks and financial institutions

Notes receivable - Note 11

Available-for-sale investment securities
Held to maturity investment securities
Loans to banks

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to related parties

Receivable from properties sold with deferred payment – Note 18

Interest recognized on impaired loans and advances to customers

Year ended
December 31,

LBP'000

53,553,585

2007

LBP'000

67,487,020

38,412,064

61,137,415

33,607,403

24,324,946

14,461,574

9,272,360

259,873,563

225,198,412

125,655,830

141,040,387

6,518,370

-

306,123,326

209,765,031

7,891,461

10,229,027

935,953,180

795,671,563

80,823,084
9,032,920

43,989,222
3,227,743

Interest income realized on impaired loans and advances to customers represent recoveries of interest. Accrued interest on
impaired loans and advances is not recognized until recovery or a rescheduling agreement is signed with customers.
Interest income on trading portfolio is included under “Net result on trading portfolio” (Note 36).
Interest income on assets designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition is included under “Net
result on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition” (Note 37).

33. INTEREST EXPENSE
Year ended December 31,

2008

Deposits from banks and financial institutions
Deposits from related party banks and financial institutions
Securities lent and repurchase agreements
Customers’ deposits at amortized cost
Related parties’ deposits at amortized cost
Borrowings from banks and financial institutions
Certificates of deposit

LBP'000

31,831,167
6,552,631
3,740,328
441,768,338
106,969,211
25,749,808
55,402,544
672,014,027

2007

LBP'000

34,443,610
2,909,841
12,082,385
427,190,391
89,721,959
18,434,040
63,734,070
648,516,296

Interest expense on customers’ and related parties’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss is included under “Net result
on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition” (Note 37).
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34. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME
This caption consists of the following:
Year ended December 31,

2008

Commission on documentary credits
Commission on acceptances
Commission on letters of guarantee
Service fees on customers’ transactions
Brokerage fees
Commission on transactions with banks
Asset management, placement and underwriting fees
Commissions on fiduciary activities
Other

2007

LBP'000

LBP'000

5,196,152
1,457,234
9,681,137
23,172,125
3,333,185
95,228
15,659,789
4,785,080
3,055,185
66,435,115

3,256,340
902,293
6,773,723
18,529,009
4,063,662
712,590
6,329,454
3,336,854
1,573,356
45,477,281

35. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE
This caption consists of the following:

2008

Commission on transactions with banks & financial institutions

Safe custody charges
Other

Year ended
December 31,

LBP'000

2007

LBP'000

1,694,468

1,548,454

598,400

411,540

5,263,488

3,075,754

7,556,356

5,035,748

36. NET RESULTS ON TRADING PORTFOLIO
This caption consists of the following:
Year ended
December 31,

2008

Interest income on Lebanese and other Government bonds held for trading
Dividends received on trading securities

Change in fair value of trading portfolio (net)
Gain on sale of trading assets

Loss on sale of trading assets
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LBP'000

4,437,537
128,368
259,938

18,006,004

(13,287,080)
9,544,767

2007

LBP'000

13,434,219
128,408

10,639,208

520,445

(101,939)

24,620,341
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37. NET RESULTS ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS UPON INITIAL RECOGNITION
This caption consists of the following:
December 31,

2008

Interest income on assets held at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
Change in fair value of assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition

2007

LBP'000

2,021,558
909,023

Interest expense on customers’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss

(9,898,311)

Fee income on customers’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss

299,203

Change in fair value of customers’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss

(909,023)

Interest expense on related parties' deposits at fair value through profit or loss
Fee expense on related parties’ deposits at fair value through profit or loss

LBP'000

-

(5,254,181)
788,338
-

(228,271)

(198,247)

(7,805,821)

(4,664,338)

-

(248)

38. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
This caption consists of the following:
2008

Gain on sale of available-for-sale securities:
Equities
Lebanese and Turkish Government bonds
Certificates of deposit issued by Central Bank
Corporate bonds
Gain on sale of an associate – Note 13
Loss on sale of investment property – Note 14
Gain on sale of other investments
Dividends from equity investment securities – Note 11
Income from associates at equity method – Note 13
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property and equipment
Foreign exchange gain
Income earned on derivatives
Gain on sale of assets acquired in satisfaction of loans – Note 15
Other

December 31,

LBP'000
16,117,888
103,838
758,273
(1,343,978)
655,762
33,366,584
6,521,048
644,366
7,915,063
975,392
3,367,181
11,094,468
80,175,885

2007

LBP'000
4,980,384
922,044
56,320
11,314,651
27,613,882
3,493,520
(78,436)
31,052,850
474,484
634,202
5,508,995
85,972,896
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISKS
The guarantees and standby letters of credit and the documentary and commercial letters of credit represent financial
instruments with contractual amounts representing credit risk. The guarantees and standby letters of credit represent
irrevocable assurances that the Group will make payments in the event that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third
parties and are not different from loans and advances on the balance sheet. However, documentary and commercial letters of
credit, which represent written undertakings by the Group on behalf of a customer authorizing a third party to draw drafts on
the Group up to a stipulated amount under specific terms and conditions, are collateralized by the underlying shipments
documents of goods to which they relate and, therefore, have significantly less risks.
Forward exchange contracts outstanding as of December 31, 2008 and 2007 represent positions held for customers'
accounts and at their risk. The Group entered into such instruments to serve the needs of customers, and these contracts
are fully hedged by the Group. The forward exchange contracts outstanding as at December 31, 2008 include a forward
transaction for the purchase of USD 78.01 million versus CHF 87.10 million (USD 75.61 million versus CHF 87.10 million as
at December 31, 2007). This transaction was effected to hedge an investment referred to in Note 16.

40. FIDUCIARY ACCOUNTS AND ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT
This caption consists of the following:
December 31, 2008

Fiduciary deposits invested in
deposits with non-resident banks
Fiduciary deposits invested in
portfolio securities

Fiduciary deposits invested in
back-to-back lending
Assets under managements
invested in portfolio securities

Resident
LBP’000

Non-Resident
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

Customers’ Base Accounts
Total
LBP’000

Resident
LBP’000

Non-Resident
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

-

656,887,454

656,887,454

-

843,377,005

843,377,005

-

105,631,022

105,631,022

-

-

-

24,981,676

427,100,755

688,032,044

688,032,044

120,702,348

11,042,383

120,702,348

773,560,859

-

529,498,065

120,702,348 1,303,058,924

131,744,731

894,263,207
529,498,065

1,423,761,272

402,119,079

402,119,079
-

868,358,681 1,270,477,760

402,119,079 1,556,390,725 1,958,509,804

Fiduciary accounts and assets under management are segregated as follows:
December 31, 2008

Fiduciary deposits:
Non-discretionary

Assets under management:
Discretionary

Non-Discretionary

Resident
LBP’000

Non-Resident
LBP’000

Resident
LBP’000

Non-Resident
LBP’000

120,702,348

773,560,859

402,119,079

868,358,681

11,453,072

-

-

-

-

518,044,993

529,498,065

120,702,348 1,303,058,924
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December 31, 2007

-

-

20,186,204

667,845,840

688,032,044

402,119,079 1,556,390,725
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41. BALANCES / TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
In the ordinary course of its activities, the Group conducts transactions with related parties including shareholders,
directors, subsidiaries and associates. Balances with related parties consist of the following:
2008

Shareholders, directors and other key management
personnel and close family members:
Secured loans and advances

Deposits

Associated companies:

Secured loans and advances

Unsecured loans and advances

Deposits

Year End Balance

LBP'000
519,149,917

1,250,790,520

171,758,838

670,858,112

956,592,848

2007

LBP'000
157,358,472

2,295,596,877

92,800,802

143,500,552

409,926,229

Interest rates charged on balances outstanding are the same rates that would be charged in an arm’s length transaction.
The financial statements include balances with banks and related parties that are reflected under deposits with banks and
financial institutions, loans and advances to related parties, deposits from related parties, other assets, other liabilities
and off balance sheet accounts. Refer to the balance sheet and notes thereto.
Related party transactions not disclosed elsewhere in the notes to the consolidated financial statements are as follows:
• General operating expenses include approximately LBP 38.55 billion for the year ended December 31, 2008 (LBP 32.59
billion for the year ended December 31, 2007) representing charges transacted with affiliated companies for services
rendered to the Group.
• Other liabilities includes an amount of LBP 1 billion due to related parties (LBP 6 billion as at December 31, 2007)
representing accrued charges for services received.
• Acceptances payable include acceptances payable to a related bank in the amount of LBP 1.5 billion as at December
31, 2008 (LBP 162.16 million as at December 31, 2007).
• Acceptances receivable include acceptances receivable from related parties in the amount of LBP 26.85 billion as at
December 31, 2008 (LBP 20.76 billion as at December 31, 2007).
• Guarantees, and standby letters of credit include guarantees issued on behalf of related parties in favor of third parties
in the amount of LBP 34.73 billion as at December 31, 2008 (LBP 90.07 billion as at December 31, 2007).
• Guarantees, and standby letters of credit include guarantees issued to the benefit of related parties on behalf of third
parties in the amount of LBP 49.6 billion as at December 31, 2008 (LBP 7.67 billion as at December 31, 2007).
• Documentary and commercial letters of credit include letters of credit issued on behalf of related parties in favor of third
parties in the amount of LBP 136.86 billion as at December 31, 2008 (LBP 62.86 billion as at December 31, 2007).
• Documentary and commercial letters of credit include letters of credit issued to the benefit of related parties on behalf of
third parties in the amount of LBP 11.21 billion as at December 31, 2008 (LBP 1.1 billion as at December 31, 2007).
• Forward contracts include currencies to be received from a related financial institution in the amount of LBP 14.12 billion
as at December 31, 2008 and currencies to be delivered to the same related financial institution in the amount of LBP
15.03 billion as at December 31, 2008 (currencies to be received in the amount of LBP 332.5 million and currencies to
be delivered in the amount of LBP 331.9 million with a related party as at December 31, 2007).
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42. ACQUISITIONS AND SUBSIDIARIES
On January 28, 2007, the Group acquired 41% of the share capital of Turkland Bank A.S. (formerly MNG Bank A.S.) in
Turkey. The Group, with the consent of the other major shareholder, has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of the bank and therefore the bank is considered as a consolidated entity. At acquisition date the details of the
fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired and goodwill arising are as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Securities
Loans and advances to customers
Investments
Other assets
Property and equipment
Customer’s deposits
Other liabilities
Provision for losses and contingencies
Fair value of net assets of subsidiary bank
Less: Minority interest in net assets
Fair value of the Group’s equity stake
Goodwill
Total purchase price
Less: Net cash of subsidiary bank at acquisition
Net cash flow on acquisition of investment in subsidiary bank

LBP’000

21,661,375
94,119,188
312,193,945
14,286,365
3,597,851
7,749,544
(367,589,816)
(6,838,145)
(2,459,398)
76,720,909
(45,265,336)
31,455,573
76,862,624
108,318,197
(21,661,375)
86,656,822

During the first half of 2007, the Group incorporated Saudi Med Investment Company, a wholly owned financial institution
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia with total capital of SAR 100 million.
During November 2007, the Group incorporated Med Securities Investment Company S.A.L., a wholly owned financial
institution incorporated in Lebanon with total capital of LBP 5 billion.
During 2007, the Group sold its investment in 333 Achrafieh S.A.L. which owned the investment properties of the Group.
During 2008, the Group incorporated Med Properties S.A.L. Holding, a wholly owned financial institution in Lebanon with
total capital of USD 100,000.
Also during 2008, the Group incorporated Med Properties Management, a wholly owned financial institution in the
Cayman Islands.
The Group also incorporated during 2008, Cynvest S.A.L. Holding, a wholly owned financial institution in Lebanon with
total capital of USD 24,000.
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43. NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement consist of the following:

Cash

Checks for collection

Current accounts with central banks

2008
LBP'000

December 31,

71,824,803

38,001,158

22,094,180

2007
LBP'000

51,320,789

33,988,702

10,892,004

Time deposits with central banks

505,275,738

569,839,861

Time deposits with banks and financial institutions

733,458,743

2,554,966,230

(24,921,164)

(152,037,420)

Current accounts with banks and financial institutions
Demand deposits from banks
Time deposits from banks

237,295,381

(88,204,949)

1,494,823,890

209,559,172

(17,477,106)

3,261,052,232

Time deposits with and from Central Banks and banks and financial institutions represent inter-bank placements and
borrowings with an original term of 90 day or less.
The following operating, investing and financing activities, which represent non-cash items were excluded from the
consolidated cash flow statement as follows:
(a) Net decrease in change in fair value of available-for-sale securities and deferred liability in the amounts of LBP 160.43
billion and LBP 19.36 billion, respectively, against investment securities for the year ended December 31, 2008 (Net
increase of LBP 124.9 billion and LBP 19.73 billion, respectively, against investment securities for the year ended
December 31, 2007).
(b) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debts in the amount of LBP 7.67 billion against loans and advances to customers for
the year ended December 31, 2008 (LBP 15.04 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007).
(c) Increase in deferred liability on income from associates and increase in change in fair value on available-for-sale securities
in the amount of LBP 725 million and LBP 578 million, respectively, against investments in associates and investments
held for sale for the year ended December 31, 2008 (Increase of LBP 258.98 million and decrease of LBP 388.17 million,
respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2007).
(d) Increase in other assets in the amount of LBP 3.57 billion against a decrease in assets acquired in satisfaction of debts
for the year ended December 31, 2008.
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44. COLLATERAL GIVEN
The carrying values of financial assets given as collateral are as follows as at December 31, 2008:

Held to maturity government bonds
Loans to banks
Pledged deposits with banks & financial institutions

Pledged Amount
LBP’000

451,285,200
75,375,000
5,914,383
301,500

Corresponding Facilities

Amount of Outstanding Facility
LBP’000

Nature of Facility

Long term
Borrowing
Letters of credit
Letter of guarantee

218,587,500
5,549,543
904,500

The carrying values of financial assets given as collateral are as follows as at December 31, 2007:
Pledged
Amount
LBP’000

Held to maturity corporate bonds
Held for trading foreign
government bonds

Held to maturity
Lebanese government bonds

Pledged deposits with banks and
financial institutions

3,015,000
88,605,876

291,188,700
301,500

Corresponding Facilities
Nature of Facility

Borrowing under
Sale and repurchase
agreements

Borrowing under
sale and repurchase
agreements

Long term
borrowing

Letter of guarantee

Amount of
Outstanding
Facility LBP’000

2,604,960
28,338,130

Nature of Facility

Transaction
guarantee

Amount of
Outstanding
Facility LBP’000

57,515,260

143,212,500

-

-

904,500

-

-

Over and above, the Group had contractual right of setoff arrangements with correspondent banks, details of which are
disclosed under Note 6.

45. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to comply with the capital requirements set by Central Bank of
Lebanon, the Group’s main regulator, to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain a
strong capital base.
Risk weighted assets and capital are monitored periodically to assess the quantum of capital available to support growth
and optimally deploy capital to achieve targeted returns.
The Central Bank of Lebanon requires each bank or banking group to hold a minimum level of regulatory capital of LBP 10
billion for the head office and LBP 250 million for each local branch and LBP 750 million for each branch abroad. In addition,
the bank is required to observe the minimum capital adequacy ratio set by the regulator is 12% (Basle Ratio).
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The Group monitors the adequacy of its capital using the methodology and ratios established by Central Bank of Lebanon.
These ratios measure capital adequacy by comparing the Group’s eligible capital with its balance sheet assets, commitments
and contingencies, and notional amount of derivatives at a weighted amount to reflect their relative risk.
The Group’s capital is split as follows:
Tier I capital: Comprises share capital after deduction of treasury shares, shareholders’ cash contribution to capital, noncumulative perpetual preferred shares, share premium, reserves from appropriation of profits and retained earnings. Goodwill
and cumulative unfavorable change in fair value of available-for-sale securities are deducted from Tier I Capital.
Tier II capital: Comprises qualifying subordinated liabilities, collective impairment allowance, cumulative favorable
change in fair value of available-for-sale securities and revaluation surplus of owned properties.
Investments in associates are deducted from Tier I and Tier II capital.
Also, various limits are applied to the elements of capital base: Qualifying Tier II capital cannot exceed Tier I capital and
qualifying short term subordinated loan capital may not exceed 50% of Tier I capital.
The Group has complied with the regulatory capital requirement throughout the period.
The Group’s consolidated risk based capital ratio as at December 31, 2008 and 2007 amounted to 14.8% and 16.6%
respectively, and is determined as follows:
December 31,

2008
Consolidated assets and off-balance sheet weighted risk

Tier I and Tier II capital (including income for the year)

5,632,819

4,820,131

14.8%

16.6%

830,445

Risk based capital ratio

Tier I and Tier II capital are composed of the following:

LBP millions

Minority Interest
Less: Goodwill
Total Tier I capital
TIER II:
Attributable to Equity holders of the Group:
Property revaluation surplus
Cumulative translation adjustment
Cumulative change in fair value of available-for-sale securities
Profit for the year
Minority interest
Total Tier II capital
Less: Ineligible investments and intangible assets
Total Tier I and Tier II capital

800,888

Balances December 31,

2008

TIER I:
Attributable to Equity holders of the Group:
Share capital
Legal reserves
Reserve for general banking risks
Retained earnings

2007

LBP'000

2007

LBP'000

530,000,000
30,824,497
59,332,492
142,002,298
762,159,287
128,990,833
(173,404,350)
717,745,770

530,000,000
25,212,282
41,168,527
109,862,157
706,242,966
70,883,307
(166,868,380)
610,257,893

3,213,000
(15,936,133)
55,076,933
104,709,679
147,063,479
(5,768,498)
141,294,981
(28,596,000)
830,444,751

3,213,000
7,976,435
125,683,494
61,184,633
198,057,562
11,078,553
209,136,115
(18,506,000)
800,888,008
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments including derivatives. It accepts deposits from
customers at both fixed and floating rates and for various periods and seeks to earn interest margins by investing these funds
in high quality assets. It also seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term funds and lending for longer
periods at higher rates while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that may fall due.
The Group also seeks to raise interest margins through lending to commercial and retail borrowers with a range of credit
standing. Such exposures include guarantees and other commitments such as letters of credit and performance and other
bonds.
With the exception of specific hedging arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures associated with
derivatives are normally offset by entering into counter balancing positions, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash
amounts required to liquidate market positions.
Risk management is a systematic process of identifying and assessing the Group risks and taking actions to protect the
Group against these risks.
The use of financial instruments also brings with it associated inherent risks. The Group recognizes the relationship between
returns and risks associated with the use of financial instruments and the management of risks forms an integral part of the
Group’s strategic objectives.
The strategy of the Group is to maintain a strong risk management culture and manage the risk/reward relationship within
and across each of the Group’s major risk-based lines of business. The Group continuously reviews its risk management
policies and practices to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
• Credit risk
• Liquidity risk
• Market risk
• Operational risk
A – Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if counterparty to a financial instrument fails to discharge an obligation.
Financial assets that are mainly exposed to credit risk are deposits with banks, loans and advances to customers and other
banks and investment securities. Credit risk also arises from off-balance sheet financial instruments such as letters of credit
and letters of guarantee.
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in
the same geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations
to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Group’s performance affecting a particular industry or geographical location.
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Concentrations of credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group’s performance to developments affecting a particular
industry or geographical location. The Group limits the impact of concentration risk in exposure by setting progressively lower
limits for longer tenors and taking security, where considered appropriate, to mitigate such risks.
1. Management of credit risk
The Group attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties,
and continually assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties. The Group’s risk management policies are designed to
identify and to set appropriate risk limits and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits. Actual exposures against limits are
monitored daily. In certain cases the Group may also close out transactions or assign them to other counterparties to mitigate
credit risk. The Group’s credit risk for derivatives represents the potential cost to replace the derivative contracts if
counterparties fail to fulfill their obligation, and to control the level of credit risk taken, the Group assesses counterparties
using the same techniques as for its lending activities.
The Group seeks to manage its credit risk exposure also through diversification of lending activities to ensure that there is no
undue concentration of risks with individuals or groups of customers in specific locations or business. It also takes security
when appropriate and also seeks additional collateral from the counterparty as soon as impairment indicators are noticed for
the relevant individual loans and advances.
Management monitors the market value of collateral, requests additional collateral in accordance with the underlying
agreement and monitors the market value of collateral obtained during its review of the adequacy of the allowance for
impairment losses.
The Group regularly reviews its risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets products and emerging
best practices.
2. Measurement of credit risk
a) Loans and advances
The Group assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal rating tools. The Group’s rating scale
reflects the range of default probabilities defined for each rating class as explained below:
• Watch List: Loans and advances rated Watch List are loans that are not impaired but for which the Group determines that
they require special monitoring.
• Past due but not impaired: Loans past due but not impaired are loans where contractual interest or principal are past due
but the Group’s management believes that impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of collateral available
and the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Group.
• Substandard loans: Substandard loans are loans that are inadequately protected by current sound worth and paying
capacity of the obligor or by any collateral pledged in favor of the group. Exposures where an indication of the possibility that
the Group will sustain a loss if certain irregularities and deficiencies are not addressed exists are classified under this category.
The Group does not provide against these loans but it defers the recognition of interest income under unrealized interest.
• Doubtful loans: Doubtful loans have, in addition to the weaknesses existing in substandard loans, characteristics indicating
that current existing facts and figures make the collection in full highly improbable. The probability of loss is high but certain
reasonable and specific pending factors which if addressed could strengthen the probability of collection, result in the
deferral of the exposure as an estimated loss until a more exact status is determined. These loans are provided for and
interest income recognition is deferred.
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• Loss: Loans classified as loss are considered as uncollectible and of such minimal value that their classification as assets
is not warranted. This does not mean that the loan is absolutely unrecoverable or has no salvage value. However, the
amount of loss is difficult to measure and the Group does not wish to defer the writing of the loan even partial recovery
might occur in the future. Loans are charged off in the period in which they are deemed uncollectible and therefore
classified as loss.
The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in its loan portfolio. The
main component of its allowance are specific loss component that relate to individually significant exposures, and a minor
part of a collective loan loss allowance established for retail and Small and Medium Enterprises (SME's) where there is
objective evidence that unidentified losses exist at the reporting date. This provision is estimated based on various factors
including credit ratings allocated to a borrower or group of borrowers, the current economic conditions, the experience the
Group has had in dealing with a borrower or group of borrowers and available historical default information.
The Group writes off a loan/security balance (and any related allowances for impairment losses) when it determines that the
loans/securities are uncollectible. This determination is reached after considering information such as the occurrence of
significant changes in the borrower/issuer's financial position such as the borrower/issuer can no longer pay the obligation,
or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure.
3. Risk mitigation policies
Collateral:
The Group mainly employs collateral to mitigate credit risk. The principal collateral types for loans and advances are:
• Pledged deposits
• Mortgages over real estate properties (land, commercial and residential properties)
• Bank guarantees
• Financial instruments (equities and debt securities)
• Business other assets (such as inventories and accounts receivable)
Collateral generally is not held over loans and advances to banks, except when securities are held as part of reverse
repurchase and securities borrowing activity. Collateral usually is not held against investment securities.
Other specific risk mitigation policies include:
Netting arrangements:
The Group sometimes further restricts its exposure to credit losses by entering into netting arrangements with counterparties.
Netting arrangements reduce credit risk associated with favorable contracts to the extent that if a default occurs, all amounts
with the counterparty are terminated and settled on a net basis.
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4. Financial assets with credit risk exposure and related concentrations
a) Exposure to credit risk:

2008

Central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale investment securities
Held-to-maturity investment securities
Other assets
Total
Financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk
Fiduciary deposits
Total
Total credit risk exposure

December 31,

Gross Maximum Exposure
LBP’000

1,647,684,816
1,523,837,125
77,204,891
187,986,213
3,346,023,084
1,361,769,875
3,961,470,532
1,381,632,196
202,547,221
13,690,155,953
2,246,806,539
1,423,761,272
3,670,567,811
17,360,723,764

2007

Gross Maximum Exposure
LBP’000

1,388,975,047
2,905,698,206
171,352,969
15,714,107
2,709,908,881
393,664,515
3,622,741,068
1,701,039,678
238,396,386
13,147,490,857
1,323,829,866
1,958,509,804
3,282,339,670
16,429,830,527
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Bad and doubtful

Substandard

Regular loans and advances
-

2,899,368,936 (126,826,192) 2,772,542,744

38,431,435

37,858,572

- 2,696,252,737

165,257,627 (126,826,192)

37,858,572

2,696,252,737

Gross Exposure Allowance for
Net exposure
Net of unrealized Impairment
LBP’000
interest LBP’000
LBP’000

18,687,728

27,902,655

995,278,567

113,497,853

853,878,059

Property
LBP’000

487,148,045

23,163

141,549

486,983,333

Pledged
Funds
LBP’000

Equity
Securities
LBP’000

Debt
Securities
LBP’000

-

Equity
Securities
LBP’000

460,005,635

37,894

459,967,741

-

Debt
Securities
LBP’000

52,958,035

676,273

52,281,762

517,638,612

147,087,096

1,319,063

369,232,453

Property
LBP’000

384,307,378

1,636,124

-

382,671,254

63,974,125

-

-

63,974,125

149,065,511

1,828,640

Total
LBP’000

2,688,224,725

52,752,815 1,505,820,975

319,128

368,028

28,002,055

131,611,902

2,528,610,768

Total
LBP’000

52,065,659 1,354,926,824

Other
LBP’000

264,398,594

2,604,919

99,400

Other
LBP’000
261,694,275

Fair Value of Collateral Received

December 31, 2007

14,794,963

915,583,894

(103,794,805)

3,516,576,366 (106,261,913) 3,410,314,453

900,788,931
-

(2,467,108)

- 3,358,056,703

Pledged
Funds
LBP’000

33,570,022

36,037,130

122,482,533

Bad and doubtful

Substandard

3,358,056,703

Regular accounts

Gross Exposure Allowance for
Net exposure
Net of unrealized Impairment
LBP’000
interest LBP’000
LBP’000

Fair Value of Collateral Received

December 31, 2008

Below are the details of the Group’s exposure to credit risk with respect to loans and advances to customers (excluding deferred penalties and collective provision):
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1,352,045,786

Held-to-maturity investment Securities

-

Forward exchange contracts

-

-

letters of credit

Documentary and commercial

-

6,229,009,345

97,528

Guarantees & standby letters of credit

Off-Balance sheet Risks:

Other assets

Customers' acceptance liability

Available-for-sale investment securities 3,227,846,914

-

-

-

65,997,105

375,278,698

54,219,671

2,131,527,986

124,454

-

29,586,410

304,986,346

-

9,136,848

75,870,590

187,986,213

1,523,837,125

-

1,334,301

-

Financial
Services
LBP’000

1,647,684,816

Loans and advances to related parties

Loans and advances to customers

Loans to banks

through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value

financial institutions

Deposits with banks and

(excluding cash on hand)

Cash and central banks

Sovereign
LBP’000

Concentration of financial assets by industry:

Balance Sheet Exposure:

b)

987,036

167,599,611

427,073,835

1,628,344,733

-

27,223,805

-

399,422,288

657,885,216

543,813,424

-

-

-

-

1,374,653

78,361,337

148,643,953

441,785,623

-

16,866,213

-

14,637,825

33,013

410,248,572

-

-

-

-

8,256,599

36,000,628

80,794,930

327,419,774

-

28,581,367

-

-

-

298,838,407

-

-

-

-

Real Estate
Consumer
Manufacturing
Development
Goods Trading
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000

-

5,577,750

3,032,983

258,357,927

4,523

-

-

-

-

258,353,404

-

-

-

-

Real Estate
Trading
LBP’000

December 31, 2008

-

-

-

298,200

17,490,468

85,090,981

1,527,864,061

138,587,695

39,951,047

-

14,577,159

184,700,063

1,150,048,097

Services
LBP’000

-

-

-

26,167,753
377,436,833

60,174,050

957,721,811

-

4,417,836

-

-

519,151,583

434,152,392

Retail
LBP’000

-

-

-

141,443,594

118,431,252

1,381,632,196

3,961,470,532

1,361,769,875

3,346,023,084

77,204,891
187,986,213

1,523,837,125

1,647,684,816

Total
LBP’000

9,999,099

61,213,005

155,737,361

458,407,657
773,631,118

1,014,767,764

245,452,318 13,747,483,578

2,629,394

1,390,984

-

-

-

241,431,940

Other
LBP’000
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1,695,420,849

Held-to-maturity investment securities

Forward exchange contracts

letters of credit

Documentary and commercial

letters of credit

Guarantees and standby

Off-Balance Sheet Risk

Financial Instruments with

Other assets

Customers’ acceptance liability

-

-

-

5,724,113,733

74,172

-

Available-for-sale investment securities 2,474,493,872

-

-

-

165,149,793

-

1,388,975,047

Loans and advances to related parties

Loans and advances to customers

Loans to banks

through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value

financial institutions

Deposits with banks and

(excluding cash on hand)

Cash and Central Banks

Balance Sheet Exposure:

Sovereign
LBP’000

-

338,033,642

511,719,633

17,220,362

3,549,985,403

-

-

5,618,829

578,907,755

100,053

40,820,187

3,126,266

15,714,107

2,905,698,206

Financial
Services
LBP’000

-

-

14,243,923

1,292,418,870

-

198,820

-

554,048,758

52,583,373

682,511,009

-

3,076,910

-

-

110,628

13,174,705

18,226,671

337,317,648

-

5,784,260

-

10,365,486

854,705

320,313,197

-

-

-

-

20,695,512
10,149,749

54,118,428

387,777,615

-

14,274,396

-

-

-

373,503,219

-

-

-

-

Real Estate
Consumer
Manufacturing
Development
Goods Trading
LBP’000
LBP’000
LBP’000

-

-

-

142,470,200

-

-

-

-

-

142,470,200

-

-

-

-

Real Estate
Trading
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

-

-

-

-

2,894,711

94,109,623

873,920,874

170,251,111

4,576,170

-

1,910,197

168,783,713

528,399,683

Services
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

7,703,828
4,249,436

25,660,120

485,317,655

376,875

-

-

-

157,280,571

327,660,209

Retail
LBP’000

-

-

-

15,714,107

171,217,913

62,304,148

1,701,039,678

3,622,741,068

393,664,515

2,709,908,881

171,352,969

2,905,698,206

1,388,975,047

Total
LBP’000

1,973,854

84,240,956

105,304,085

640,429,345
354,517,309

328,883,212

349,294,534 13,142,616,532

515,755

37,470,502

-

3,015,000

14,062,100

294,231,177

Other
LBP’000
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c) Concentration of assets and liabilities by geographical area:

Middle East,
Gulf & Africa
LBP’000

Lebanon
LBP’000
ASSETS

Cash and central banks

Deposits with banks and
financial institutions

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Loans to banks

December 31, 2008

North
America
LBP’000

Europe
LBP’000

Other
LBP’000

1,495,874,033

1,205

-

223,634,381

-

1,719,509,619

57,889,713

977,837,826

159,252,307

327,693,612

1,163,667

1,523,837,125

-

-

76,207,463

-

997,428

42,428,198

22,054,415

-

123,503,600

-

Loans and advances to customers

1,966,217,110

747,353,203

761,121

630,877,496

814,154

Available for sale investment securities

3,689,156,012

108,010,253

1,120,553

163,183,714

-

82,869,835

21,348,211

-

14,213,206

77,738,742

-

-

Goodwill

173,404,350

-

-

Other assets

180,650,279

1,431,567

1,031

Loans and advances to related parties
Held-to-maturity investment securities
Customers' acceptance liability
Investments in associates
and other investments

Assets acquired insatisfaction of loans
Property and equipment
Total assets

Total
LBP’000

624,284,964

1,352,045,786

70,451,050

657,885,216
-

-

-

-

-

-

79,599,695

29,586,410

-

1,057,616
-

169,361,161

1,465,877

17,114,718

9,983,368,661

2,537,387,773

161,135,012

1,707,134,748

342,203,706

96,894,263

72,183,215

204,132,573

20,462,837

77,204,891

187,986,213

3,346,023,084

-

1,361,769,875

-

1,381,632,196

-

3,961,470,532
118,431,252

-

77,738,742

-

173,404,350

1,507

202,547,221

-

71,508,666

187,941,756

1,979,328 14,391,005,522

LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks

and financial institutions

Customers' deposits at fair value
through profit or loss

Customers' deposits at amortized cost
Related parties' deposits at

fair value through profit or loss

Related parties' deposits at amortized cost

219,151,419

6,025,206,508

2,877,581

12,374,431

1,193,371,108
-

1,946,974

65,304,830
-

3,720,760

221,775,022

-

-

1,539,096,020

351,588,751

80,754,253

5,531,682

30,560,545

-

Other liabilities

148,056,028

662,892

-

Total liabilities

7,027,059,127

2,907,089,549

521,962,642

Borrowings from banks and
financial institutions

Certificates of deposit
Provisions

14,250,634

-

23,651,988

34,106,601

-

23,689

30,938,872

-

-

2,805,024

1,242,792,463

246,129,581

Acceptances payable

572,911

715,986,668
239,998,608

8,748,449,931
2,877,581

38,096,861

-

1,038,284

2,217,568,605

294,461,787

-

330,554,014

28,277,792

10,871

177,007,583

2,620,991,773

226,202,112

13,303,305,203

716,356,004
12,399,280

-

118,431,252

716,356,004
36,074,957

137

13

Middle East,
Gulf & Africa
LBP’000

Lebanon
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

North
America
LBP’000

Europe
LBP’000

Other
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

ASSETS

Cash, Compulsory Reserves
and Central Banks

1,341,603,412

-

-

98,692,424

-

1,440,295,836

1,087,464,934

687,204,639

24,727,281

1,086,545,740

35,469,719

2,921,412,313

Loans and advances to customers

1,990,616,192

110,831,947

20,881,451

580,311,602

7,267,689

2,709,908,881

Available for sale investment
securities

3,413,935,357

60,285,575

-

148,520,136

-

3,622,741,068

Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
Trading assets

Loans and advances to related parties
Held-to-maturity investment
securities

Customers' acceptance liability
Investments in associates and
investments held for sale

Investment properties

Assets acquired in satisfaction
of loans

Goodwill

Property and equipment
Other assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and borrowings from banks
Customers deposits designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Customers' accounts at
amortized cost

Related parties' accounts at fair
value through profit or loss
Related parties' accounts at
amortized cost
Acceptances payable
Other borrowings

Certificates of deposit

7,751,806

245,162,606

1,697,723,002

-

52,683,426

95,818,483

-

171,352,969
393,664,515

18,160,115

-

-

3,316,676

-

1,701,039,678

72,263,795

-

-

-

-

72,263,795

-

1,454,095

6,034,649

80,111,744

166,868,380

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

62,304,148
6,034,649

81,565,839

-

-

166,868,380

28,998,573

-

238,396,386

173,729,057

-

-

10,536,806,780

929,165,702

45,608,732

2,215,112,356

599,571,655

77,510,148

2,331,680

49,449,309

26,317

728,889,109

139,410,962

11,251,787

2,528,400

2,260,871

345,007

155,797,027

5,706,320,825

806,075,879

208,734,217

938,926,815

9,816,332

7,669,874,068

3,207,682

-

-

-

-

3,207,682

150,704,559

2,148,428,863

331,781,038

6,187

2,709,500,463

6,837,822

-

21,054,785

388,719,545

739,916

417,352,068

-

38,311,530

203,317

179,434,847

209,397,813

8,710,217
-

-

10,821,647
-

139,007,991

1,912,009

Total liabilities

6,770,062,204

3,056,000,333

138

-

163,601,163

44,144,033

Other liabilities
Provisions

-

16,290,491

-

-

22,516,490
-

-

588,946,610

7,853,464

78,579,816

19,794,209

715,609,642

5,255,552

2,236,907,289

-

181,582,521

42,737,408 13,769,430,978

461,585
-

-

62,304,148

715,609,642
21,546,043

11,598,661 12,663,515,097
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B – Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its net funding requirements. Liquidity risk can be caused by market
disruptions or credit downgrades, which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up immediately.
1- Management of liquidity risk
To mitigate this risk, management has diversified funding sources, manages assets with liquidity in mind, maintaining an
adequate balance of cash, cash equivalents and readily marketable securities and monitors future cash flows and liquidity
on a daily basis. The Group also has committed lines of credit that it can access to meet liquidity needs.
Liquidity risk is the Group’s ability to ensure the availability of funding to meet commitments, both on-balance and off-balance
sheet commitments, at a reasonable cost on time. The management of liquidity should not lead to threats to the Group’s
solvency.
Liquidity risk arises when in case of crisis, refinancing may only be raised at higher market rates (funding risk), or assets may
only be liquidated at a discount to market rates (market liquidity risk). Liquidity risk is also caused by mismatches in the
maturities of assets and liabilities (uses and sources of funds).
In accordance with banking regulations issued by Central Bank of Lebanon, the Group maintains compulsory reserves with
Central Bank of Lebanon of 25% and 15% of the weekly average demand and term customers’ deposits in Lebanese Pounds.
The Group has the ability to raise additional funds through repurchase facilities available with Central Bank of Lebanon
against Government debt securities.
The Group sets policies and procedures to ensure that its individual entities are in compliance with liquidity ratios imposed
by the regulators in the countries in which each of these entities operates in addition to other internal limits and thresholds.
2- Exposure to liquidity risk
The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Group’s assets, liabilities and equity. The contractual maturities of
assets and liabilities have been determined on the basis of the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual
maturity date, and do not take account of the effective maturities as indicated by the Group’s deposit retention history and
the availability of liquid funds. Management monitors the maturity profile to ensure that adequate liquidity is maintained.
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140

-

40

14,047,242

Maturity Gap

Total Liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

amortized cost

Related parties' deposits at

Customers' deposits at amortized cost

financial institutions

Deposits from banks and

LIABILITIES

Other assets

470,812,464

74,545,417

20,294,131

321,386

43,595,654

28,852

10,305,394

545,357,881

Total Assets

-

-

-

-

477,957

-

-

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

-

1,583,745,967

-

155,801

17,587,709

-

1,566,002,457

438,357

-

-

300,009

-

138,348

461,330,605 1,226,427,238

-

-

-

-

-

456,297,023 1,225,949,281

-

5,033,582

-

-

3 months to
1 year
LBP’000

25,900,201 (1,122,415,362) 1,225,988,881

115,543,454

-

-

2,553,347

18,937,426

94,052,681

141,443,655

-

23,068,898

166,833,959

Property and equipment

-

8,271,065

108,348,248

-

(10,332,888)

Goodwill

-

-

-

24,824,302

Up to 3
months
LBP’000

35,712,927

11,388,902

-

30,741,312

4,059,161

269,838,368

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

other investments

Investments in associates and

maturity investment securities

Available-for-sale and held to

Loans and advances to related parties

Loans and advances to customers

Loans to banks

financial institutions

Deposits with banks and

Cash and central banks

ASSETS

Accounts with
No maturity
LBP’000

-

(139,077)

287,369

-

-

287,369

-

148,292

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

148,292

-

-

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

LBP Base Accounts

December 31, 2008

7,170,158

367,877

-

-

367,877

-

7,538,035

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

997,499

6,540,536

-

-

9,903,934

120,229

-

-

-

120,229

10,024,163

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,608,531

8,415,632

-

-

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000

108,348,248

63,831,475

14,956,168

4,059,161

269,838,368

Total
LBP’000

617,221,199

1,775,048,670

20,294,131

44,706,710

20,462,442

18,966,278
1,670,619,109

2,392,269,869

14,047,282

166,833,959

23,068,898

35,712,927
(10,332,888)

1,701,906,271

The tables below show the Bank’s assets and liabilities in Lebanese Pounds and foreign currencies base accounts segregated by maturity:

Residual contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities:
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-

13,236,191

(11,368,117)

168,734,693

359,060,787

Assets acquired in satisfaction
of loans

Property and equipment

Total Assets

Maturity Gap

Total Liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

Related parties' accounts at
amortized cost

Customers' accounts at amortized cost

Deposits and borrowings from banks

LIABILITIES

Other assets

Goodwill

Investments in associates and
investments held for sale

255,331,754

103,729,033

16,187,780

24,083,127

754,393

50,627

62,653,106

8,809,892

(944,918,670)

1,100,799,536

-

-

17,227,010

93,956,970

989,615,556

155,880,866

-

-

-

38,455,016

11,243,038

54,834,356

93,319,568

-

Available for sale and held
to maturity investment securities

Loans and advances to related
parties

23,916,668

-

189,614

5,079,381

-

-

173,199,945

Up to 3
months
LBP’000

(64,708,592)

Loans and advances to customers

through profit or loss

Finacial assets at fair value

Deposits with banks and
financial institutions

Cash, Compulsory deposits and
deposits with Central Banks

ASSETS

Accounts with
No maturity
LBP’000

340,933,677

28,114,113

-

-

244

-

28,113,869

369,047,790

-

-

-

-

-

359,563,613

-

720,101

8,762,841

1,235

-

3 months to
1 year
LBP’000

855,066,871

47,041

-

-

-

-

47,041

855,113,912

-

-

-

-

-

846,986,082

-

-

8,127,830

-

-

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

13,134,022

-

-

-

-

-

-

13,134,022

-

-

-

-

-

11,031,526

-

-

2,102,496

-

-

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

LBP Base Accounts

December 31, 2007

12,489,408

-

-

-

-

-

-

12,489,408

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,188,392

7,301,016

-

18,678,476

-

-

-

-

-

-

18,678,476

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,265,385

8,413,091

-

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000

54,834,356

550,715,538

1,232,689,723

16,187,780

24,083,127

17,981,647

94,007,597

1,080,429,572

1,783,405,261

8,809,892

168,734,693

(11,368,117)

13,236,191

1,267,279,275

93,319,568

701,101

(6,344,980)

20,984,337

173,199,945

Total
LBP’000

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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142
344,364

Maturity Gap

Total Liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

Certificates of deposit

financial institutions

Borrowings from banks and

Acceptances payable

Related parties' deposits at amortized cost

through profit or loss

Related parties' deposits at fair value

Customers' deposits at amortized cost

through profit or loss

Customers' deposits at fair value

financial institutions

Deposits from banks and

LIABILITIES

Total Assets

1,788,797,000

480,859,646

15,780,826

103,561,999

-

-

3,550,502

-

26,805,428

-

239,182,143

91,978,748

2,269,656,646

76,752,896

150,335,452

21,107,797

Other assets

Goodwill

Property and equipment

42,025,815

81,841,554

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

other investments

Investments in associates and

Customers' acceptances liability

3,550,502

532,837,419

investment securities

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity

783,487,191

193,285,226

-

-

-

-

-

1,860,852

579,973,953

-

180,176,800

6,975,765

45,289,123

-

229,937,098

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

529,471,361

-

147,344,984

-

76,622,247

-

582,254,611

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

-

887,644

15,212,395
264,177,607

1,860,852

-

650,850,244

544,015,826

151,693,435

307,799,047

(892,283,459)

6,134,513,168 1,936,497,050

-

1,040,718

-

34,947,719

21,901,325

-

1,025,028,970

88,305,173

4,701,809,621

261,479,642

751,515,562

584,177,641

-

-

121,351,548
452,178,397

-

-

-

-

10,647,696

-

2,451,999,005 1,044,213,591 1,335,693,203

100,184,835

-

-

-

-

21,901,325

358,538,550

41,304,352

1,748,504,114

46,881,351

30,888,433

39,427,789

64,368,256

3 months to
1 year
LBP’000

735,664,995 (3,682,514,163)

2,224,503,287

-

26,810,512

-

3,161,276

91,118,573

-

494,421,521

-

1,573,228,452

35,762,953

2,960,168,282

11,562,208

-

-

-

-

91,118,573

15,469,622

349,070,800

780,340,395

42,550,682

682,971

-

1,185,042,977

484,668,661

Up to 3
months
LBP’000

295,307,198

88,442,625

Loans and advances to related parties

Loans and advances to customers

Loans to banks

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through

financial institutions

Deposits with banks and

Cash and Central Banks

ASSETS

Accounts with
No maturity
LBP’000

F/Cy Base Accounts

December 31, 2008

1,124,004,370

111,363,550

-

-

-

102,416,466

-

-

-

-

8,947,084

-

1,235,367,920

-

-

-

-

-

-

953,055,166

79,559,284

202,753,470

-

-

-

-

5 to 10 years
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

81,841,554

188,499,939

21,107,797

150,335,452

42,025,815

118,431,252

3,641,196,457

1,253,421,627

3,282,191,609

77,204,891

173,030,045

1,519,777,964

1,449,671,251

Total
LBP’000

15,780,826

132,300,873

716,356,004

330,554,014

118,431,252

2,877,581

2,197,106,163

239,998,608

7,077,830,822

697,020,390

645,294,815

470,479,120

56,342,191 11,528,256,533

-

-

-

53,464,610

-

-

2,877,581

-

-

-

701,637,006 11,998,735,653

-

-

-

-

-

-

671,850,386

-

29,786,620

Over
10 years
LBP’000
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-

12,847,828
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Maturity Gap

Total Liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

Certificates of deposit

financial institutions

Borrowings from banks and

Acceptances payable

Related parties' deposits at amortized cost

through profit or loss

Related parties' deposits at fair value

Customers' deposits at amortized cost

through profit or loss

Customers' deposits at fair value

financial institutions

Deposits from banks and

LIABILITIES

Total Assets

Other assets

848,486,784

627,643,861

5,358,263

122,202,208

-

-

2,370,116

-

3,955,389

-

485,983,494

7,774,391

1,476,130,645

206,971,035

112,034,024

Property and equipment

Goodwill

92,933,956

6,034,649

59,027,604

2,370,116

606,698,002

2,958,547

(823,114,071)

6,238,521,710

-

31,699,278

-

16,368,223

48,302,195

-

1,824,389,963

13,907,877

4,064,666,317

239,187,857

5,415,407,639

22,615,459

-

-

-

-

-

763,632

48,302,195

216,295,105

1,845,400,934

4,759,717

146,601,635

2,762,087,499

519,942,815

Up to 3
months
LBP’000

132,906,210

89,987,322

Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans

Investment properties

other investments

Investments in associates and

Customers' acceptances liability

investment securities

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity

Loans and advances to related parties

Loans and advances to customers

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through

financial institutions

Deposits with banks and

Cash and central banks

ASSETS

Accounts with
No maturity
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

807,733

667,846,216

33,761,326

85,854,223

184,962,548

-

133,746,656

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

593,359,784

-

1,738,060

116,006,224

-

507,782,461

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

-

998,565

12,588,175
451,636,272

807,733

-

830,697,280

530,375,426

140,683,150

372,380,519

(811,511,569) (1,045,525,516)

1,694,222,514 2,152,504,218

-

451,669

174,659,515

263,973,370

10,824,104

-

32,476,184

1,206,000

1,459,066,297

15,538,745

676,695,416

542,191,113

-

-

-

50,579,749

-

-

-

-

39,975,092

-

882,710,945 1,106,978,702 1,218,886,529

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,824,104

507,874,024

7,888,415

66,104,052

268,949,446

5,434,267

15,636,637

3 months to
1 year
LBP’000

F/Cy Base Accounts

December 31, 2007

1,094,545,960

113,664,620

-

-

-

104,286,750

-

-

-

-

9,377,870

-

1,208,210,580

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,011,267,614

39,441,554

7,316,127

150,185,285

-

-

5 to 10 years
LBP’000

6,034,649

229,586,494

12,847,828

112,034,024

92,933,956

59,027,604

62,304,148

4,056,501,471

300,344,947

170,632,868

2,716,253,861

2,900,427,976

1,267,095,891

Total
LBP’000

5,358,263

155,351,720

417,352,068

62,304,148

3,207,682

2,691,518,816

155,797,027

6,589,444,496

634,881,512

615,623,339

555,200,343

62,077,338 11,430,825,374

-

-

58,869,656
715,609,642

-

-

3,207,682

-

-

-

677,700,677 11,986,025,717

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

668,692,199

-

4,147,789

-

-

4,860,689

Over
10 years
LBP’000
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Concentration of Liabilities by counterparty:
Information regarding the concentration of liabilities by counterparty is disclosed under the respective notes to the financial
statements.
C – Market Risks
Market Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market
variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, and equity prices.
1- Management of market risks
The Group classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or banking (non-trading) book. The market risk for the trading
book is managed and monitored using a combination of limits monitoring and Value at Risk (VAR) methodology. Market risk
for non-trading book includes Price and Liquidity risks that are managed and monitored through internal limits, gap analysis,
stress testing and sensitivity analysis.
a) Market Risk-Trading Book
Trading Book contains the Group's positions in financial instruments which are held intentionally for short-term resale and/or
with the intent of benefiting from actual or expected short-term price movements or to lock in arbitrage profits.
The Board has set limits for the acceptable level of risks in managing the trading book. The Group applies a VAR
methodology to assess the market risk positions held and to estimate the potential economic loss based upon a number of
parameters and assumptions for change in market conditions.
A VAR methodology estimates the potential negative change in market value of a portfolio at a given confidence level and
over a specified time horizon. The Group uses simulation models to assess the possible changes in the market value of the
trading book based on historical data. VAR models are usually designed to measure the market risk in a normal market
environment and therefore the use of VAR has limitations as it is based on historical correlations and market price volatilities
and assumes that the future movements will follow a statistical distribution.
The VAR that the Group measures is an estimate, using a confidence level of 95% of the potential loss that is not expected
to be exceeded if the current market positions were to be held unchanged for one day. The use of 95% confidence level
depicts that within a one-day horizon, losses exceeding VAR figure should occur, on average, not more than once every
hundred days.
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The VAR represents the risk of portfolios at the close of a business day, and it does not account for any losses that may
occur beyond the defined confidence interval. The actual trading results however, may differ from the VAR calculations
and, in particular, the calculation does not provide a meaningful indication of profits and losses in stressed market
conditions.
b) Market Risk – Non-Trading Or Banking Book
Market risk on non-trading or banking positions mainly arises from the interest rate, foreign currency exposures, equity
price changes and liquidity risk.
2- Exposure to Foreign Exchange risk
Foreign exchange risk is the risk that changes in foreign currency rates will affect the Group’s income or the value of its
holdings of financial instruments. The objective of foreign currency risk management is to manage and control foreign
currency risk exposure within acceptable parameters while optimizing the return on risk.
Foreign exchange exposure arises from normal banking activities, primarily from the receipt of deposits and the
placement of funds. Future open positions in any currency are managed by means of forward foreign exchange
contracts. It is the policy of the Group that it will, at all times, adhere to the limits laid down by the Central Bank as referred
to below. It is not the Group’s intention to take open positions on its own account (proprietary trading) but rather to
maintain square or near square positions in all currencies.
The Management sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in the aggregate for both overnight and intra-day
positions and hedging strategies, which are monitored daily and are in compliance with Central Bank of Lebanon rules
and regulations.
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Below is the carrying value of assets and liabilities segregated by major currencies to reflect the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange risk at year end:
December 31, 2008

LBP
LBP’000
ASSETS
Cash and central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investment securities
Customers' acceptance liability
Investments in associates and other investments
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Goodwill
Property and equipment
Other assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and financial institutions
Customers' deposits at fair value through profit or loss
Customers' deposits at amortized cost
Related parties' deposits at fair value through
profit or loss
Related parties' deposits at amortized cost
Acceptances payable
Borrowings from banks and financial institutions
Certificates of deposit
Other liabilities
Provisions
Total Liabilities
Currencies to be delivered
Currencies to be received
Discount/premium
Net on-balance sheet financial position
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269,838,368
4,059,161
14,956,168
63,831,475
108,348,248

USD
LBP’000

Other
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

1,254,514,577
795,583,566
75,870,590
135,058,828
2,626,761,093
1,129,899,084

195,156,674
724,194,398
1,334,301
37,971,217
655,430,516
123,522,543

1,719,509,619
1,523,837,125
77,204,891
187,986,213
3,346,023,084
1,361,769,875

1,701,906,271
35,712,927
(10,332,888)
23,068,898
166,833,959
14,047,282
2,392,269,869

3,298,522,943
342,673,514 5,343,102,728
64,431,060
54,000,192
118,431,252
42,025,815
77,738,742
80,783,938
1,057,616
71,508,666
113,253,339
37,082,113
173,404,350
2,622,175
18,485,622
187,941,756
177,849,312
9,675,235
201,571,829
9,797,176,320 2,200,583,941 14,390,030,130

18,966,278
1,670,619,109

586,339,743
239,502,279
6,289,098,050

2,877,581
20,462,442 1,758,788,600
64,431,060
328,484,911
716,356,004
44,706,710
111,301,352
20,294,131
2,932,590
1,775,048,670 10,100,112,170

110,680,647
496,329
788,732,772

715,986,668
239,998,608
8,748,449,931

2,877,581
438,317,563 2,217,568,605
54,000,192
118,431,252
2,069,103
330,554,014
716,356,004
11,114,425
167,122,487
12,848,236
36,074,957
1,418,259,267 13,293,420,107

-

(186,011,402)
535,395,452
(237,322)
349,146,728

(596,289,271)
238,235,666
(2,827)
(358,056,432)

(782,300,673)
773,631,118
(240,149)
(8,909,704)

617,221,199

46,210,878

424,268,242

1,087,700,319
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LBP
LBP’000
ASSETS
Cash and central banks
Deposits with banks and financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Loans to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale and
held-to-maturity investment securities
Customers' acceptances liability
Investments in associates and other investments
Investment properties
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Goodwill
Property and equipment
Other assets
Total Assets
LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and financial institutions
Customers’ deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
Customers' deposits at amortized cost
Related parties' deposits at fair value through profit or loss
Related parties' deposits at amortized cost
Acceptances payable
Borrowings from banks and financial institutions
Certificates of deposit
Other liabilities
Provisions
Total Liabilities
Currencies to be delivered
Currencies to be received
Discount/premium
Net on-balance sheet financial position

173,199,945
5,270,230
720,101
15,714,107
(6,344,980)
93,319,568

December 31, 2007
USD
LBP’000

Other
LBP’000

Total
LBP’000

1,196,636,705
2,709,229,497
10,343,356
2,176,856,513
202,233,814

70,459,186
191,198,479
160,289,512
539,397,348
98,111,133

1,440,295,836
2,905,698,206
171,352,969
15,714,107
2,709,908,881
393,664,515

1,267,279,275 3,849,309,080
207,192,391
5,323,780,746
39,076,302
23,227,846
62,304,148
13,236,191
55,460,626
3,566,978
72,263,795
6,034,649
6,034,649
(11,368,117)
91,479,861
1,454,095
81,565,839
54,834,356
77,479,191
34,554,833
166,868,380
168,734,693
5,039,832
7,807,996
181,582,521
8,809,892
199,014,186
30,056,553
237,880,631
1,783,405,261 10,618,193,612 1,367,316,350 13,768,915,223
94,007,597

591,200,457

155,797,027
1,080,429,572 5,980,758,950
3,207,682
17,981,647 2,661,649,975
39,076,302
389,502,319
715,609,642
32,327,923
105,252,209
16,187,780
14,761
1,240,934,519 10,642,069,324
(679,355)
8,924,151
8,244,796
550,715,538

43,681,055

155,797,027
608,685,546
7,669,874,068
3,207,682
29,868,841
2,709,500,463
23,227,846
62,304,148
27,849,749
417,352,068
715,609,642
38,559,754
176,139,886
5,343,502
21,546,043
777,216,293 12,660,220,136

(13,973,235) (340,765,037)
331,322,459
14,270,699
(1,875,647)
(3,241)
315,473,577 (326,497,579)
291,597,865

728,889,109

263,602,478

(355,417,627)
354,517,309
(1,878,888)
(2,779,206)
1,105,915,881
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3- Exposure to Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises when there is a mismatch between positions, which are subject to interest rate adjustment within a
specified period. The Group’s lending, funding and investment activities give rise to interest rate risk. The immediate impact
of variation in interest rate is on the Group’s net interest income, while a long term impact is on the Group’s net worth since
the economic value of the Group’s assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet exposures are affected.
The Group manages this risk by matching or hedging the repricing profile of assets and liabilities through risk
management strategies.
The Board has established interest rate gap limits for stipulated periods.
The effective interest rate (effective yield) of a monetary financial instrument is the rate that, when used in a present value
calculation, results in the carrying amount of the instrument. The rate is a historical rate for a fixed rate instrument carried
at amortized cost and a current market rate for a floating rate instrument or an instrument carried at fair value.
Below is a summary of the Group’s interest rate gap position on assets and liabilities reflected at carrying amounts at
year end segregated between floating and fixed interest rate earning or bearing and between Lebanese Pound and
foreign currencies base accounts:
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Interest rate gap position

Total Liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

470,812,464

74,545,417

20,294,131

43,595,654

321,386

25,900,201

115,543,454

-

-

2,553,347

18,937,426

40
141,443,655

35,712,927
(10,332,888)
23,068,898
166,833,959
14,047,242
545,357,881

94,052,681

8,271,065

11,388,902

28,852

24,824,302
108,348,248

4,059,161
30,741,312
-

10,305,394

-

Up to 3
months
LBP’000

269,838,368

Related parties' deposits at amortized cost

Customers' deposits at amortized cost

financial institutions

Deposits from banks and

LIABILITIES

ASSETS
Cash and central banks
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
Loans to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investment securities
Investments in associates and
other investments
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Goodwill
Property and equipment
Other assets
Total Assets

Non-interest
bearing
LBP’000

30,367

235,160

-

-

-

-

235,160

265,527

-

265,527
-

-

3 months to
1 year
LBP’000

165,983

-

-

-

-

-

-

165,983

-

165,983
-

-

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

200,410

-

-

-

-

-

-

200,410

-

200,410
-

-

955,095

-

-

-

-

-

-

955,095

-

955,095
-

-

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000

Floating Interest Rate

December 31, 2008

-

27,252,056

115,778,614

-

-

2,553,347

94,287,841

18,937,426

40
143,030,670

8,271,065

26,411,317
108,348,248

Total
LBP’000
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Interest rate gap position in LBP:
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Interest rate gap position

Total Liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

amortized cost

Related parties' deposits at

Customers' deposits at amortized cost

financial institutions

Deposits from banks and

LIABILITIES

ASSETS
Cash and central banks
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
Loans to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investment securities
Investments in associates and
other investments
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Goodwill
Property and equipment
Other assets
Total Assets

(1,122,445,729)

1,583,510,807

-

155,801

17,587,709

1,225,822,898

438,357

-

-

300,009

-

1,226,261,255

461,065,078

138,348

1,225,949,281

456,297,023

-

311,974
-

4,768,055
-

1,565,767,297

-

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

-

Over 3
months less
than 1 year
LBP’000
-

(139,077)

287,369

-

-

287,369

-

-

148,292

-

148,292
-

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

6,969,748

367,877

-

-

367,877

-

-

7,337,625

-

6,540,536
797,089
-

-

8,948,839

120,229

-

-

-

-

120,229

9,069,068

-

8,415,632
653,436
-

-

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000

Fixed Interest Rate

December 31, 2008

4,059,161
14,956,168
63,831,475
108,348,248

269,838,368

Grand Total
LBP’000

20,294,131

44,706,710

20,462,442

18,966,278

119,156,679

617,221,199

1,584,724,639 1,775,048,670

-

1,111,056

17,587,709

-

1,566,025,874 1,670,619,109

35,712,927
- (10,332,888)
23,068,898
- 166,833,959
14,047,282
1,703,881,318 2,392,269,869

1,682,246,304 1,701,906,271

14,956,168
6,678,846
-

Total
LBP’000
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357,520,164

Interest rate gap position

Total Liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

amortized cost

Related parties' deposits at

Customers' deposits at amortized cost

financial institutions

Deposits from banks and

LIABILITIES

254,049,130

103,471,034

16,187,780

754,393

24,083,127

50,627

62,395,107

8,809,892

Total Assets

Other assets

168,734,693

54,834,356

(11,368,117)

13,236,191

11,243,037

-

(64,708,592)

-

-

3,538,759

173,199,945

Property and equipment

Goodwill

of loans

Assets acquired in satisfaction

other investments

Investments in associates and

investment securities

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity

Loans and advances to related parties

Loans and advances to customers

Loans to banks

value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair

financial institutions

Deposits with banks and

Cash and central banks

ASSETS

Non-interest
bearing
LBP’000
-

(944,861,581)

1,101,057,535

-

-

17,227,010

93,956,970

989,873,555

156,195,954

-

-

-

-

-

38,455,016

93,319,568

22,689,899

-

-

1,731,471

Up to 3
months
LBP’000

1,382,494

1,824,000

-

-

-

-

1,824,000

3,206,494

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,206,494

-

-

-

-

3 months to
1 year
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

1,436,520

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,436,520

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,436,520

-

-

-

-

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

1,687,394

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,687,394

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,687,394

-

-

-

-

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

Floating Interest Rate

5,187,685

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,187,685

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

5,187,685

-

-

-

-

10,265,385

-

-

-

-

-

93,956,970

10,265,385

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,265,385

-

-

-

-

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000
-

-

(924,902,103)

1,102,881,535

-

-

17,227,010

-

991,697,555

177,979,432

-

-

-

-

-

38,455,016

93,319,568

44,473,377

-

1,731,471

Total
LBP’000
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Interest rate gap position in LBP:

151

152

Interest rate gap position

Total Liabilities

Provisions

Other liabilities

amortized cost

Related parties' deposits at

amortized cost

Customers' deposits at

financial institutions

Deposits from banks and

LIABILITIES

Total Assets

Other assets

Property and equipment

Goodwill

of loans

Assets acquired in satisfaction

other investments

Investments in associates and

investment securities

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity

Loans and advances to related parties

Loans and advances to customers

Loans to banks

value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair

financial institutions

Deposits with banks and

Cash and central banks

ASSETS

-

340,776,717

853,630,351

47,041

-

26,290,113

-

-

-

47,041

-

853,677,392

-

-

-

-

-

846,986,082

-

6,691,310

-

-

-

-

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

244

26,289,869

-

367,066,830

-

-

-

-

-

359,563,613

-

6,783,116

-

720,101

-

-

Over 3
months less
than 1 year
LBP’000

11,446,629

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,446,629

-

-

-

-

-

11,031,527

-

415,102

-

-

-

-

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

7,301,723

-

-

-

-

-

-

7,301,723

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

707

-

7,301,016

-

-

-

13,890,235

720,101

-

-

15,714,107

Total
LBP’000

93,319,568

(6,344,980)

720,101

15,714,107

5,270,230

173,199,945

Grand Total
LBP’000

8,413,091

-

-

-

-

-

-

8,413,091

-

-

-

-

-

54,834,356

94,007,597

1,783,405,261

8,809,892

168,734,693

(11,368,117)

13,236,191

1,221,568,511

26,337,154

-

-

244

550,715,538

1,232,689,723

16,187,780

24,083,127

17,981,647

26,336,910 1,080,429,572

-

1,247,905,665

-

-

-

-

-

- 1,217,581,222 1,267,279,275

-

-

-

8,413,091

-

-

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000

Fixed Interest Rate

December 31, 2007
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Up to 3
months
LBP’000

LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and
financial institutions
86,198,805
Customers' deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
Customers' deposits at amortized cost
238,868,584
Related parties' deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
Related parties' deposits at
amortized cost
6,609,451
Acceptances payable
118,431,252
Borrowings from banks and
financial institutions
Certificates of deposit
Other liabilities
124,411,151
Provisions
15,780,826
Total Liabilities
590,300,069
Interest rate gap position
1,631,207,186
33,679,012
34,433,370
39,304,966

517,205,876
3,161,276
5,963,350
2,138,827,032
906,735,995

50,083,644

73,738,336

321

-

23,698,033
-

1,570,953,634

6,975,765
43,107,879
-

31,557,002
8,642,753
-

12,473,873
280,851,083
(230,767,439)

268,377,210
-

-

-

-

-

-

754,037

-

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

9,840,548

3 months to
1 year
LBP’000

41,542,896

ASSETS
Cash and central banks
88,442,625
484,668,661
Deposits with banks and
financial Institutions
177,067,251 1,302,391,599
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
587,547
320,068
Loans to banks
42,550,682
Loans and advances to customers
131,815,507
841,536,776
Loans and advances to related parties
781,072,274
351,485,717
Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investment securities
540,465,077
22,609,524
Customers' acceptance liability
118,431,252
Investments in associates and
other investments
42,025,815
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
81,841,554
Goodwill
150,335,452
Property and equipment
21,107,797
Other assets
88,315,104
Total Assets
2,221,507,255 3,045,563,027

Non-interest
bearing
LBP’000

119,874,549
119,874,549
31,161,484

-

-

-

-

151,036,033

-

76,622,247
74,413,786
-

-

-

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

Floating Interest Rate

December 31, 2008

102,416,466
102,416,466
(26,976,813)

-

-

-

-

75,439,653

-

53,985,470
21,454,183

-

-

Total
LBP’000

1,302,391,599

3,399,084,727

46,307,557
-

-

1,570,953,955

53,464,610 3 2 5 , 0 6 9 , 7 8 6
-5 , 9 6 3 , 3 5 0
53,464,610 2,729,867,110
(50,240,576)
669,217,617

-7 8 5 , 5 8 3 , 0 8 6
-

-

-

-4 2 , 2 9 6 , 9 3 3

3,224,034

-

320,068
-1 5 7 , 7 0 5 , 6 9 6
3,224,034 1,024,910,698
372,939,900

-

-4 9 4 , 5 0 9 , 2 0 9

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000
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Interest rate gap position in F/CY:

153

154
45,355,053
137,067,927
571,304,970
-

30,942,223
15,324,349
1,740,133,705
41,304,352

334,337,945
-

529,470,781
-

72,933,186
-

-

582,254,611

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

8,947,084
8,947,084
1,145,385,758

10,647,696
1,476,999
452,178,397
464,303,092
720,355,486

1,154,332,842

947,459,741
-

148,768,000
58,105,101

-

-

5 to 10 years
LBP’000

-

-

Grand Total
LBP’000

697,020,390

2,877,581
1,404,913,626 2,197,106,163
118,431,252

2,877,581

239,998,608
239,998,608
5,268,008,283 7,077,830,822

568,524,652

42,025,815
81,841,554
150,335,452
21,107,797
100,184,835
188,499,939
6,378,143,671 11,998,735,653

3,054,423,823 3,641,196,457
118,431,252

76,297,276
77,204,891
15,324,349
173,030,045
2,125,465,404 3,282,191,609
99,409,453 1,253,421,627

40,319,114 1,519,777,964

866,719,417 1,449,671,251

Total
LBP’000

5,484,228
330,554,014
716,356,004
716,356,004
1,926,372
132,300,873
15,780,826
2,877,581 8,208,089,354 11,528,256,533
695,535,391 (1,829,945,683)
470,479,120

-

2,877,581

-

-

698,412,972

671,850,386
-

26,562,586
-

Over
10 years
LBP’000

Fixed Interest Rate

983,665,048 1,184,658,578

-

40,319,114

100,184,835
2,357,074,231

229,937,098

54,527,708

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and
financial institutions
260,725,605
307,799,047
Customers' deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
88,305,173
151,693,435
Customers' deposits at amortized cost
4,704,171,552
544,241,951
Related parties' deposits at
fair value through profit or loss
Related parties' deposits at
amortized cost
1,022,665,210
382,248,416
Acceptances payable
Borrowings from banks and
financial institutions
1,268,707
2,738,522
Certificates of deposit
264,177,607
Other liabilities
1,040,718
885,654
Provisions
Total Liabilities
6,078,176,965 1,653,784,632
Interest rate gap position
(3,721,102,734) (670,119,584)

ASSETS
Cash and central banks
Deposits with banks and financial
Institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
investment securities
Customers' acceptance liability
Investments in associates and
other investments
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Goodwill
Property and equipment
Other assets
Total Assets

Over 3
months less
than 1 year
LBP’000

December 31, 2008
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LIABILITIES
Deposits and banks and
financial institutions
Customers’ deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
Customers' deposits at amortized cost
Related parties' deposits at fair
value through profit or loss
Related parties' deposits at
amortized cost
Acceptances liability
Borrowings from banks and
financial institutions
Certificates of deposit
Other liabilities
Provisions
Total Liabilities
Interest rate gap position
1,824,329,937
16,368,223
684,583
6,167,737,496
(585,156,858)

4,015,415
62,304,148

153,216,902
5,358,263
710,059,911
613,568,822

184,618,578

5,147
5,582,580,638

13,907,877
4,065,556,829

-

763,632
-

485,092,982

167,659,170
7,888,415

1,932,704,196
219,153,600

138,719,405
153,912,011
30,706,567

-

-

14,529,883

662,723

-

2,860,030,466

246,890,047

9,070,993

3 months to
1 year
LBP’000

569,923,597

Up to 3
months
LBP’000

72,201

ASSETS
Cash and central banks
40,006,540
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
35,002,492
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
4,759,717
Loans and advances to customers
59,298,373
Loans and advances to related parties
100,053
Available-for-sale and
held-to-maturity securities
609,698,002
Customers' acceptance liability
62,304,148
Investments in associates and
other investments
59,027,604
Investment properties
6,034,649
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
92,933,956
Goodwill
112,034,024
Property and equipment
12,847,828
Other assets
229,581,347
Total Assets
1,323,628,733

Non-interest
bearing
LBP’000

284,423,867
(159,638,650)

264,080,511
-

-

20,343,356

-

124,785,217

-

124,686,064
99,153

-

-

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

104,930,232

-

-

-

-

104,930,232

-

104,930,232
-

-

-

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

Floating Interest Rate

December 31, 2007

173,894,559

-

-

-

-

173,894,559

-

148,515,106
25,379,453

-

-

4,147,789

-

-

-

-

4,147,789

-

4,147,789
-

-

-

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000

155,087,628
684,583
6,606,073,374
(431,116,361)

2,088,410,448
-

-

13,907,877
4,100,430,068

247,552,770

5,147
6,174,957,013

763,632
-

2,482,642,557
252,520,621

2,860,030,466

578,994,590

Total
LBP’000
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Interest rate gap position in F/CY:

155

156
50,579,749
451,636,272
542,191,113
571,765,184

566,616,769
12,588,175
263,973,370
998,565
1,867,272,618
(885,886,867)

1,113,956,297

-

981,385,751

687,449,088

593,359,784
-

39,975,092

667,846,216
-

507,874,024
-

1,738,060
11,075,992
-

140,683,150
510,032,070

85,854,223
60,276,484
33,662,172

66,104,052
101,510,350
-

-

-

-

5,395,018

507,782,461

3 to 5 years
LBP’000

104,286,750
113,664,620
920,431,327

-

-

9,377,870

-

1,034,095,947

1,011,267,614
-

7,316,127
1,450,105
14,062,101

-

-

58,869,656
62,077,338
611,475,550

-

3,207,682

-

-

673,552,888

668,692,199
-

4,860,689
-

-

-

5 to 10 years Over 10 years
LBP’000
LBP’000

Fixed Interest Rate

372,380,519

133,746,656

1 to 3 years
LBP’000

6,565,644

LIABILITIES
Deposits and banks and
financial institutions
14,876,022
Customers’ deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
1,206,000
Customers' deposits at amortized cost 1,444,536,414
Related parties' deposits at fair
value through profit or loss
Related parties' deposits at
amortized cost
32,476,184
Acceptances liability
Borrowings from banks and
financial institutions
35,940,110
Certificates of deposit
Other liabilities
451,670
Provisions
Total Liabilities
1,529,486,400
Interest rate gap position
(842,037,312)

ASSETS
Cash and central banks
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale and
held-to-maturity securities
Customers' acceptance liability
Investments in associates and
other investments
Investment properties
Assets acquired in satisfaction of loans
Goodwill
Property and equipment
Other assets
Total Assets

Over 3
months less
than 1 year
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

4,059,501,471
62,304,148

170,632,868
2,716,253,861
300,344,947

2,900,427,976

1,267,095,891

Grand Total
LBP’000

2,691,518,816
62,304,148

3,207,682

155,797,027
6,589,444,496

634,881,512

262,264,440
417,352,068
715,609,642
715,609,642
1,450,235
155,351,720
5,358,263
4,114,692,089 11,430,825,374
375,747,882
558,200,343

599,092,953
-

3,207,682

141,889,150
2,003,921,446

387,256,541

59,027,604
6,034,649
92,933,956
112,034,024
12,847,828
229,586,494
4,490,439,971 11,989,025,717

3,449,039,837
-

165,873,151
174,312,931
47,724,273

5,395,018

648,094,761

Total
LBP’000
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The effect of a 50 basis point change in interest rates upwards on the earnings of the Group for the subsequent fiscal year
for the same balance sheet structure and exposure would be a decrease of LBP 19 billion for the year 2008, a downwards
movement will have an inverse effect.
The effect of a change in interest rate by 50 basis points on fair values of financial assets and liabilities stated at fair value as
at December 31, 2008 would be in the range of LBP 1.8 billion summarized as follows:
Change in Fair Value
Trading assets (effect on profit or loss)

Available-for-sale investment securities (effect on equity)

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition
Related parties’ deposits at amortized cost

LBP'000

1,001

1,803,556
4,523

(4,523)

D– Operational Risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail to
perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial loss.
The operational risk management framework is implemented by an independent operational risk management team, in
coordination with other essential elements of the Group's control framework such as internal audit or information security and
business continuity.
Central to this framework are tried-and-tested principles such as redundancy of mission-critical systems, segregation of
duties, strict authorization procedures, daily reconciliation, risk management responsibility at the operational level and the
requirement to be able to price and value independently any proposed transaction. Where feasible, controls are systemdriven.
Insurance coverage is used as an external mitigant and is commensurate with activity, both in terms of volume and
characteristics. The capital charge calculated using Basel II’s basic indicator approach, amounted to LBP 87.2 billion.
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FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and
financial institutions
Customers' deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
Customers' deposits at amortized cost
Related parties' deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
Related parties' deposits at
amortized cost
Acceptances payable
Borrowings from banks and
financial institutions
Certificates of deposit
Other liabilities
Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and central banks
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loans to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale investment securities
Held-to-maturity investment securities
Other assets
Total

239,998,608
2,877,581
9,940,604
252,816,793

-

-

-

-

75,283,043
1,099,847
76,382,890

1,921,848
1,921,848

-

-

-

-

-

At FVTPL
LBP’000

-

Trading
Assets
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,961,470,532
3,961,470,532

AFS
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,381,632,196
1,381,632,196

HTM
LBP’000

-

1,523,837,125

1,719,509,619
1,523,837,125

1,719,509,619

Total carrying
Total Fair Value
value
LBP’000
LBP’000

2,217,568,605
118,431,252

-

8,748,449,931

715,986,668

2,217,568,605
118,431,252

2,877,581

239,998,608
8,748,449,931

715,986,668

2,244,613,012
118,431,252

2,877,581

239,998,608
8,776,739,290

747,652,884

77,204,891
77,204,891
187,986,213
187,986,213
- 3,346,023,084 3,334,674,670
- 1,361,769,875 1,361,769,875
- 3,961,470,532 3,961,470,532
- 1,381,632,196 1,323,023,317
533,657
141,443,594
141,443,594
3,243,880,401 13,700,877,129 13,630,919,836

1,523,837,125

1,719,509,619

Other at
Amortized
cost
LBP’000

330,554,014
330,554,014
330,554,014
716,356,004
716,356,004
685,413,311
9,940,604
9,940,604
- 12,847,346,474 13,100,163,267 13,156,220,556

-

-

-

-

187,986,213
3,346,023,084
1,361,769,875
139,810,090
5,035,589,262

Loans &
Receivables
LBP’000

December 31, 2008
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47. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The summary of the Group’s classification of each class of financial assets and liabilities
covered by IAS 39, and their fair values are as follows:

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits from banks and
financial institutions
Customers' deposits designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Customers' deposits at amortized cost
Related parties' deposits at fair value
through profit or loss
Related parties' deposits at amortized cost
Liability under acceptances
Borrowings from banks and
financial institutions
Certificates of deposit
Other liabilities
Total

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and central banks
Deposits with banks and
financial institutions
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loans to banks
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to related parties
Available-for-sale investment securities
Held-to-maturity investment securities
Other assets
Total

155,797,027
3,207,682
3,294,963
162,299,672

-

-

-

6,780,699
6,780,699

171,352,969
171,352,969

-

-

-

-

-

At FVTPL
LBP’000

-

Trading
Assets
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,622,741,068
3,622,741,068

AFS
LBP’000

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,701,039,678
1,701,039,678

HTM
LBP’000

-

2,905,698,206

1,440,295,836
2,905,703,352

1,440,737,961

Total carrying
Total Fair Value
value
LBP’000
LBP’000

2,709,500,463
62,304,148

7,669,874,068

728,889,109

3,207,682
2,709,500,463
62,304,148

155,797,027
7,669,874,068

728,889,109

3,207,682
2,790,467,979
62,304,148

155,797,027
7,769,291,925

744,897,053

171,352,969
171,352,969
15,714,107
15,714,107
15,714,107
- 2,709,908,881 2,712,824,024
393,664,515
394,615,342
- 3,622,741,068 3,622,741,068
- 1,701,039,678 1,589,883,807
177,482,857
177,482,857
4,361,708,149 13,137,898,117 13,031,055,487

2,905,698,206

1,440,295,836

Other at
Amortized
cost
LBP’000

417,352,068
417,352,068
417,230,385
715,609,642
715,609,642
688,065,991
3,294,963
3,294,963
- 12,303,529,498 12,465,829,170 12,634,557,153

-

-

-

2,709,908,881
393,664,515
170,702,158
3,274,275,554

Loans &
Receivables
LBP’000

December 31, 2007

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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a) Deposits with Central Bank and financial institutions:
The fair value of current deposits (including non-interest earning compulsory deposits with Central Banks), and overnight
deposits is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value of fixed interest earning deposits with maturities or interest reset
dates beyond one year from the balance sheet date is based on the discounted cash flows using prevailing money-market
interest rates for debts with similar credit risk and remaining maturity.
b) Loans and advances to customers and to banks:
The estimated fair value of loans and advances to customers is based on the discounted amount of expected future cash
flows determined at current market rates.
c) Securities:
The fair value of Lebanese Government bonds and certificates of deposits was calculated using a valuation model which
takes into account observable market data using a discounted cash flow model based on current interest yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity and credit spreads.
d) Deposits and borrowings from banks and customers’ deposits:
The fair value of deposits with current maturity or no stated maturity is their carrying amount. The estimated fair value on other
deposits is based on the discounted cash flows using interest rates for new deposits with similar remaining maturity.
e) Other borrowings and certificates of deposit:
The estimated fair value of other borrowings and certificates of deposits is the discounted cash flow based on a current yield
curve appropriate for the remaining period to maturity.
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48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2008 were approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held
on May 7, 2009.
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BankMed – Head Office
482 |Clemenceau Str.
Tel: 01-373937 | Fax: 01-362706 - 362806
P.O. Box: 11-0348, Riad El Solh, Beirut 1107 2030, Lebanon
www.bankmed.com.lb
Clemenceau Branch
BankMed Center | 482 Clemenceau Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-373937

REGION 1
Phoenicia Branch
Phoenix Tower | Ain Mreisseh | Tel & Fax: 01-369069/70
Hamra Branch
Al Nahar Bldg. | Banque Du Liban Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-353146/7/8 | 03-760007

Makdessi Branch
Diab Bldg. | Makdessi Str. | Hamra
Tel & Fax: 01-344395 | 01-346934 | 01-348167 | 03-288357
Koraytem Branch
Reda Mroue Bldg. | Mme Curie Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-780780 | 01-803160/1/2 | 03-760064
Raouche Branch
Salah Shamma Bldg. | Shouran Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-862696 | 01-808610/1 | 03-760002
Movenpick Branch
Movenpick Hotel | Tel & Fax: 01-799880/1

Justinian Branch
Justinian Center | Justinian Str. | Sanayeh | Beirut
Tel: 01-354866 | 03-094718 | Fax: 01-354474
Fosh Branch
Fosh Str. | Beirut Central District | Lebanon
Tel & Fax: 01-976444 | 03-922296
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REGION 2
Zarif Branch
Kaakeh Center | Jazaer Street | Beirut
Tel & Fax: 01-361802/807/809/812
Verdun Branch
Al Shuaa Bldg. | Rashid Karame Ave.
Tel & Fax: 01-866925/6/7 | 03-760063

Mazraa Branch
Etoile 2000 Center | Corniche El Mazraa
Tel & Fax: 01-818166/7/8 | 03-760017

Msaitbe Branch
Al Hana Bldg. | Mar Elias Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-819202/3 | 01-314655 | 03-760011
Summerland Branch
Coral Bldg. | Jnah
Tel & Fax: 01-853444/5/6 | 03-760020

Tarik Jdideh Branch
Malaab El Baladi Square
Tel & Fax: 01-303444 | 01-304861/3 | 03-035251
Airport Branch
MEA PREMISES
Tel & Fax: 01-629360/1/2/3 | 03-760026

Barbir Branch
Koussa Bldg. | Corniche Mazraa | Beirut
Tel & Fax: 01-653120/1 | 01-645115/6 | 03-094805

CORPORATE DIRECTORY

REGION 3

REGION 4

Ashrafieh Branch
Hadife Bldg. | Charles Malek Avenue
Tel & Fax: 01-200135/6/7/8/9/40 | 03-760001

Zouk Mkayel Branch
Abi Chaker Bldg, Zouk
Tel & Fax: 09-211116 | 09-211124 | 03-760003

Mkalles Branch
Al Shams Bldg. | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 01-684051/2 | 03-760008

Jbeil Branch
Cordahi & Matta Center | Jbeil |Tel & Fax: 09-540195 |03-760014

Hazmieh Branch
Brazilia Str. | Tufenkjian Center
Tel & Fax: 05-450186/7 | 05- 450182 | 03-652402

Broumana Branch
Rizk Plaza | Tel & Fax: 04-860995/6/7/8/9 | 03-760023
Burj Hammoud Branch
Gold & Jewelry Trade Center | 52 Abboud Str.
Tel & Fax: 01-244000 | 03-760065
Jdeideh Branch
Zainoun & Saad Bldg. | Nahr El Maout
Tel & Fax: 01-892055/9 | 03-760006
Zalka Branch
Breezvale Center | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 01-884570/1/2 | 03-760021

Furn El Chebbak
Atallah Freij Bldg. | Damascus Road
Tel & Fax: 01-291618/9/21 | 01-292076 | 03-760009
Sodeco Branch
Sodeco Square
Tel & Fax: 01-611444 | 01-397762 | 03-760027

Dora Branch
United Court Bldg. | Dora Highway
Tel & Fax: 01-257960/1 | 01- 257958 | 03-095098

Kaslik Branch
Dibs Center | Kaslik
Tel & Fax: 09-639472/4 | 09-640599 | 03-241898

Chekka Branch
Mikhael Karam Bldg. | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 06-545121 | 06-545081 | 03-760010
Amioun Branch
Shamas Bldg. | Cedars Str. | Amioun
Tel & Fax: 06-950988/57 | 03-099122
Halba Branch
Halba Main Road | Abdallah Bldg.
Tel & Fax: 06-694870/1/2/3/4/5/6/7

Tripoli Branch
Al Hana Bldg. | Jemmayzat Str.
Tel & Fax: 06-440443 /7 | 03-760013

Tripoli (Al Maarad ) Branch
Al-Maarad Street | Sara Center | Tripoli
Tel & Fax: 06-629435 | 03-094875

Mina Branch
Al Bawaba Street | Al – Shiraa Square | Jabado Bldg | Tripoli
Tel & Fax: 06-226700/1/2/3/4/5
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REGION 5
Chiyah Branch
Ismail Bldg. | Hadi Nasrallah Blvd. | Chiah
Tel & Fax: 01-551999 - 552999 | 01- 554999 | 03-794945

Saida Branch
Riad Chehab Bldg. | Riad Solh Str.
Tel & Fax: 07-721788 | 07-723381 | 07-735119/21 | 03-760012
Tyr Branch
Saab & Fardoun Bldg. | Central Bank Str.
Tel & Fax: 07-351151 | 07-351251 | 03-332243

Wastani Branch
Wastani Roundabout | Saida | Boulevard Dr. Nazih Bizri
BankMed Bldg,
Tel & Fax: 07-750362/364/365/70-867 789
Khaldé Branch
Salem Center | Main Road
Tel & Fax: 05-800703/4/5 | 03-760004

Saida (Eastern Boulevard) Branch
Al Misbah Bldg. | Jizzine Street | Saida
Tel & Fax: 07-725212 - 724892 - 728744 | 03-094868
Shehim Branch
Toufic Owaidat Bldg. | Shreifeh District | Shehim
Tel. & Fax: 07-241005/6/7 | 03-094873
Sineek Branch
Boulevard Maarouf Saad | BankMed Bldg
Tel & Fax: 07-728451/2/7

REGION 6
Chtaura Branch
Al Jinan Bldg. | Main Road
Tel. & Fax: 08-542491 | 03-760019

Zahlé Branch
Rashid Salim Khoury Bldg. | Hoshe Zaraina Blvd
Tel & Fax: 08-805777 | 08-802487 | 03-760015
Jib Jinnine Branch
Al Hana Bldg. | West Bekaa
Tel & Fax: 08-661503/4/5/6 | 03-760025

166

CYPRUS

Limassol (IBU)
9 Constantinou Paparigopoulou Str. | Frema House
CY-3106 Limassol | Cyprus.
P.O.Box 54232, CY- 3722 Limassol | Cyprus.
Tel: +357 25817152/3 | 25817157/8 | 25817178/9
Fax: +357 25372711 | e-mail: abbcy@cylink.com.cy

SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATES
BankMed Suisse
3, Rue du Mont-Blanc | casa postale 1523 1211
Geneva 1 | Switzerland
Tel: (+41-22) 9060606
BankMed (Suisse) Representative Office - Beirut
Bashir Al-Kassar Street | Al-Shua'a Building | 3rd floor
Verdun | Beirut | Lebanon | Tel: 01 862042 | Fax: 01 862276
Turkland Bank (T-Bank)
19 Mayıs Mah Sisli Plaza A Blok No:7 | Sisli 34360
Istanbul | Turkey
Tel: (90-212) 3683434 | Fax: (90-212) 3683535
www.turklandbank.com
Saudi Lebanese Bank S.A.L.
Bashir Al-Kassar Street | Al-Shua'a Bldg. | Verdun
Tel: 01- 868987 | Fax: 01- 790250
Telex: 43587 LABANK LE | Cable: SAULBANK
P.O.Box: 11-6765 Riad El Solh | Beirut 1107 2220 | Lebanon
Swift: SLBL LB BX
SaudiMed Investment Company
Suite 1104 | Futuro Building | Al Ma'ather Road
P.O.Box: 63851, Riyadh 11526
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
Tel: +966 920000371
Fax: +966 920000372
www.saudimed.com.sa
MedSecurities Investment
482 | Clemenceau Str
Tel: 01-373937 | Fax: 01-362706 - 362806
P.O. Box: 11-0348, Riad El Solh
Beirut 1107 2030, Lebanon
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LIST OF CORRESPONDENTS
COUNTRY

CORRESPONDENT BANKS

AUSTRALIA
AUSTRIA
BAHRAIN
BELGIUM

Arab Bank Australia *
Bank Austria Creditanstalt
Arab Banking Corporation
Fortis Bank *
ING Bank *
Royal Bank of Canada *
Bank of China Limited
Bank of Cyprus Public Company Limited *
Marfin Popular Bank Public Company Limited *
Danske Bank *
Arab Bank
BNP Paribas *
Natixis *
Commerzbank *
Deutsche Bank *
Bayerische Hypo-und Vereinsbank
Banca Nazionale del Lavoro
Banca UBAE
Intesa SanPaolo *
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ *
Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation
Arab Bank *
The Housing Bank for Trade & Finance *
Gulf Bank *
National Bank of Kuwait
DnB NOR Bank *
Qatar National Bank
Banque Saudi Fransi *
Riyad Bank *
Saudi Hollandi Bank *
The National Commercial Bank *
The Saudi Investment Bank *
The Standard Bank of South Africa *
Banco de Sabadell *
People's Bank *
Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) *
Nordea Bank
Svenska Handelsbanken AB *
BankMed (Suisse) *
Credit Suisse *
UBS *
Turkland Bank *
MashreqBank *
Standard Bank PLC
HSBC Bank *
Wachovia Bank *
American Express Bank *
Bank of New York *
Citibank *
HSBC Bank USA *
JPMorgan Chase Bank *
National Bank of Kuwait, New York Branch *
Wachovia Bank *

CANADA
CHINA
CYPRUS
DENMARK
EGYPT
FRANCE
GERMANY
ITALY
JAPAN
JORDAN
KUWAIT
NORWAY
QATAR
SAUDI ARABIA

SOUTH AFRICA
SPAIN
SRI LANKA
SWEDEN
SWITZERLAND
TURKEY
UNITED ARAB EMIRATES
UNITED KINGDOM
UNITED STATES OFAMERICA

* BankMed maintains Nostro account(s) with those banks.
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Keep Smiling

BankMed Center | 482, Clemenceau Street
Tel: 961.1.373937 | Fax: 961.1.362706 | 961.1.362806
P.O.Box: 11-348 | Riad El Solh | Beirut 1107 2030 | Lebanon
www.bankmed.com.lb

